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Item 1. Financial Statements

Revenue
Passenger ticket
Onboard and other
Total revenue
Cruise operating expense
Commissions, transportation and other
Onboard and other
Payroll and related
Fuel
Food
Other
Total cruise operating expense
Other operating expense
Marketing, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total other operating expense
Operating income
Non-operating income (expense)
Interest expense, net
Other expense
Total non-operating income (expense)
Net income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income
Weighted-average shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted
Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
$ 818,478 $ 787,991 $ 1,558,590 §$ 1,458,474
368,357 297,442 705,877 565,141
1,186,835 1,085,433 2,264,467 2,023,615
193,536 192,438 368,973 364,265
75,790 67,885 139,755 126,530
184,476 161,930 361,619 319,559
80,607 91,581 162,279 178,955
49,769 43,699 100,772 85,550
121,722 98,746 236,983 205,120
705,900 656,279 1,370,381 1,279,979
149,307 107,164 329,881 261,321
104,610 104,607 205,905 204,583
253,917 211,771 535,786 465,904
227,018 217,383 358,300 277,732
(68,420) (52,446) (128,174) (103,435)
(10,753) (3,717) (7,943) (33,856)
(79,173) (56,163) (136,122) (137,291)
147,845 161,220 222,178 140,441
(2,599) (2,726) (3,703) (3,403)
$ 145246 § 158,494 § 218475 $ 137,038
226,972,076 225,698,078 227,105,804 225,003,460
227,884,704 230,228,144 227,997,970 229,664,210
$ 064 $ 070 § 096 § 0.61
$ 064 $ 0.69 § 096 § 0.60
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Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Net income $ 145246 $ 158,494 218475 $ 137,038
Other comprehensive income:
Shipboard Retirement Plan 108 120 216 239
Cash flow hedges:
Net unrealized income (loss) 5,007 70,491 75,457 (33,274)
Amount realized and reclassified into earnings 23,781 26,564 58,331 48,450
Total other comprehensive income 28,896 97,175 134,004 15,415
Total comprehensive income $ 174,142 § 255,669 352479 $ 152,453

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except share data)

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 145,964 $ 115,937
Accounts receivable, net 60,366 44,996
Inventories 67,697 58,173
Prepaid expenses and other assets 166,003 121,305
Total current assets 440,030 340,411
Property and equipment, net 10,068,499 9,458,805
Goodwill 1,388,931 1,388,931
Tradenames 817,525 817,525
Other long-term assets 242,764 259,085
Total assets $ 12,957,749  $ 12,264,757
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 581,804 $ 629,840
Accounts payable 46,511 51,369
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 573,812 640,568
Due to Affiliate — 20,769
Advance ticket sales 1,390,137 1,023,973
Total current liabilities 2,592,264 2,366,519
Long-term debt 5,971,143 5,767,697
Other long-term liabilities 275,981 349,661
Total liabilities 8,839,388 8,483,877
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Shareholders’ equity:
Ordinary shares, $.001 par value; 490,000,000 shares authorized; 232,365,986 shares issued and 227,054,025 shares
outstanding at June 30, 2016 and 232,179,786 shares issued and 227,815,301 shares outstanding at December 31, 2015 232 232
Additional paid-in capital 3,849,537 3,814,536
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (278,646) (412,650)
Retained earnings 786,493 568,018
Treasury shares (5,311,961 and 4,364,485 ordinary shares at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, at cost) (239,255) (189,256)
Total shareholders’ equity 4,118,361 3,780,880
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 12,957,749  $ 12,264,757

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Loss on derivatives
Deferred income taxes, net
Gain on contingent consideration
Write-off of deferred financing fees
Provision for bad debts and inventory
Share-based compensation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Advance ticket sales
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to property and equipment, net
Settlement of derivatives
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of long-term debt
Repayments to Affiliate
Proceeds from long-term debt
Proceeds from the exercise of share options
Proceeds from employee share purchase plan
Purchases of treasury shares
Deferred financing fees and other
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2016 2015
218,475 $ 137,038
212,268 214,717

2,866 27,475
388 424
— (43,400)
11,427 195
1,115 —
31,449 14,166
(16,335) (4,369)
(9,674) (3,246)
(25,903) (9,932)
(10,865) (47,038)
(25,798) 13,063
358,625 412,602
748,038 711,695
(764,899) (205,056)
(34,129) —
(799,028) (205,056)
(2,386,427) (791,403)
(18,522) (18,522)
2,564,116 340,060
3,007 55,023
1,172
(49,999) —
(32,330) (3,663)
81,017 (418,505)
30,027 88,134
115,937 84,824
145964 $ 172,958
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Balance, December 31, 2014

Share-based compensation

Proceeds from the exercise of share options
Other comprehensive income, net

Net income

Balance, June 30, 2015

Balance, December 31, 2015

Share-based compensation

Proceeds from the exercise of share options
Proceeds from employee share purchase plan
Treasury shares

Other comprehensive income, net

Net income

Balance, June 30, 2016

Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Ordinary Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Treasury Shareholders’
Shares Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Shares Equity
$ 230 $ 3,702,344 $  (242,642) $ 140,881 (82,000) 3,518,813
— 14,166 — — — 14,166
2 55,021 — — — 55,023
— — 15,415 — — 15,415
— — — 137,038 — 137,038
$ 232§ 3,771,531  § (227,227) § 277,919 (82,000) 3,740,455
$ 232§ 3,814,536 $ (412,650) $ 568,018 (189,256) 3,780,880
_ 31,449 — — — 31,449
— 2,380 — — — 2,380
— 1,172 — — — 1,172
— — — — (49,999) (49,999)
— — 134,004 — — 134,004
— — — 218,475 — 218,475
$ 232§ 3,849537 $ (278,646)  $ 786,493 (239,255) 4,118,361

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references in this report to (i) the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to NCLH (as defined below) and its
subsidiaries (including Prestige (as defined below), except for periods prior to the consummation of the Acquisition of Prestige (as defined below)), (ii) “NCLC” refers to NCL
Corporation Ltd., (iii) “NCLH " refers to Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd., (iv) “Norwegian” refers to the Norwegian Cruise Line brand and its predecessors, (v)
“Prestige” refers to Prestige Cruises International, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries, (vi) “PCH " refers to Prestige Cruise Holdings, Inc., Prestige’s direct
wholly owned subsidiary, which in turn is the parent of Oceania Cruises, Inc. (“Oceania Cruises”) and Seven Seas Cruises S. DE R.L. (“Regent”’) (Oceania Cruises also refers
to the brand by the same name and Regent also refers to the brand Regent Seven Seas Cruises) and (vii) “Affiliate” refers to Genting Hong Kong Limited and/or its affiliates
(formerly Star Cruises Limited and/or its affiliates). References to the “U.S.” are to the United States of America, “dollars” or “$” are to U.S. dollars, the “U.K.” are to the
United Kingdom and “euros” or “€” are to the official currency of the Eurozone.

1. Description of Business and Organization

NCLH is a leading global cruise company which operates the Norwegian Cruise Line, Oceania Cruises and Regent Seven Seas Cruises brands. We have 24 ships with
approximately 46,500 Berths including Sirena, previously under a Bareboat Charter, which joined our Oceania Cruises’ fleet in April 2016 and Seven Seas Explorer which was
delivered in June 2016. We will introduce four additional ships to our fleet through 2020 including an Explorer Class Ship on order for delivery in the winter of 2020.
Norwegian Joy is on order for delivery in the spring of 2017 and two additional Breakaway Plus Class Ships are on order for deliveries to the Norwegian fleet in the spring of
2018 and fall of 2019. These additions to our fleet will increase our total Berths to approximately 59,300.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are unaudited and, in our opinion, contain all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair statement of the results for
the periods presented.

Our operations are seasonal and results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for the entire fiscal year. Historically, demand for cruises has been
strongest during the Northern Hemisphere’s summer months. The interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, which are included in our most recently filed Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Earnings Per Share

A reconciliation between basic and diluted earnings per share was as follows (in thousands, except share and per share data):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Net income $ 145,246  $ 158,494 § 218475 § 137,038
Basic weighted-average shares outstanding 226,972,076 225,698,078 227,105,804 225,003,460
Dilutive effect of share awards 912,628 4,530,066 892,166 4,660,750
Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 227,884,704 230,228,144 227,997,970 229,664,210
Basic earnings per share $ 064 $ 070 $ 096 $ 0.61
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.64 $ 0.69 $ 096 $ 0.60

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Deposits received from guests for future voyages are recorded as advance ticket sales and are subsequently recognized as passenger ticket revenue along with onboard and other
revenue, and all associated direct costs of a voyage are recognized as cruise operating expenses on a pro-rata basis over the period of the voyage. Guest cancellation fees are
recognized in passenger ticket revenue in the month of the cancellation. Certain of our product offerings are accounted for under the guidance included within multi-element
arrangements and result in an allocation of the fair value between passenger ticket revenue and onboard and other revenue.
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Revenue and expenses include port fees and taxes. The amounts included on a gross basis are $71.8 million and $62.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively, and $134.3 million and $114.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Foreign Currency

The majority of our transactions are settled in U.S. dollars. We translate assets and liabilities of our foreign subsidiaries at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date.
Gains or losses resulting from transactions denominated in other currencies are recognized in our consolidated statements of operations within other expense. We recognized
gains of $3.9 million and $0.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and a loss of $0.3 million and a gain of $5.7 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

The amortization of deferred financing fees is included in depreciation and amortization expense in the consolidated statements of cash flows; however, for purposes of the
consolidated statements of operations they are included in interest expense, net.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”’) No. 2016-12 which addresses improvements to the guidance
on revenue from contracts from customers regarding collectibility, noncash consideration, and completed contracts at transition. Additionally, it provides a practical expedient
for contract modifications at transition and an accounting policy election related to the presentation of sales taxes and other similar taxes collected from customers. The effective
date of this guidance is upon adoption of ASU No. 2014-09. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this newly issued guidance to our consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-11 which is a rescission of Securities and Exchange Commission guidance related to the issuance of ASU No. 2014-09 which is
presented below. The effective date of this guidance is upon adoption of ASU No. 2014-09. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this newly issued
guidance to our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-10, which does not change the core principle of the guidance in ASU No. 2014-09 but clarifies two aspects: identifying
performance obligations and the licensing implementation guidance, while retaining the related principles for those areas. The effective date of this guidance is upon adoption of
ASU No. 2014-09. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this newly issued guidance to our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09 to improve multiple aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including income tax consequences,
classification of awards as either equity or liabilities and classification on the statement of cash flows. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2016 and interim periods within those annual periods with early adoption permitted. We do not believe that the adoption of this guidance will be material to our
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a
contract (i.e. lessees and lessors). The ASU requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities on the balance sheet for the rights and obligations created by all leases with terms
of more than 12 months. The ASU further modifies lessors’ classification criteria for leases and the accounting for sales-type and direct financing leases. The ASU will also
require qualitative and quantitative disclosures designed to give financial statement users additional information on the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising
from leases. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2018 with early adoption
permitted. The ASU is to be applied using a modified retrospective approach. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this newly issued guidance to our
consolidated financial statements.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11 to simplify the measurement of inventory for all entities. This applies to all inventory that is measured using either the first-in,
first-out or average cost method. The guidance requires an entity to measure inventory at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The guidance must be applied prospectively
and will be effective for our interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of an interim or annual
reporting period. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this guidance to our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-05 to clarify a customer’s accounting for fees paid in a cloud computing arrangement. The amendments provide guidance to
customers about whether a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license or if the arrangement should be accounted for as a service contract. This guidance will
impact the accounting of software licenses but will not change a customer’s accounting for service contracts. The guidance will be effective for annual periods, including interim
periods
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within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2015. We have adopted this guidance and there has not been an impact to our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 which requires entities to recognize revenue through the application of a five-step model, including identification of the contract,
identification of the performance obligations, determination of the transaction price, allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligation and recognition of revenue
as the entity satisfies the performance obligations. Entities have the option of using either a full retrospective or a modified approach to adopt the guidance. In August 2015, the
FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14 deferring the effective date for one year. We can elect to adopt the provisions of ASU No. 2014-09 for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2017 including interim periods within that reporting period or we can elect to early adopt the guidance as of the original effective date. We are currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of this guidance to our consolidated financial statements.

3. Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amounts of intangible assets included within other long-term assets, the related accumulated amortization, the net carrying amounts and the weighted-
average amortization periods of the Company’s intangible assets are listed in the following table (in thousands, except amortization period):

June 30, 2016

Weighted-
Average
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Amortization
Amount Amortization Amount Period (Years)
Customer relationships $ 120,000 $ (26,060) $ 93,940 6.0
Licenses 3,368 (461) 2,907 5.6
Non-compete agreements 660 (165) 495 1.0
Total intangible assets subject to amortization $ 124,028 $ (26,686) $ 97,342
License (Indefinite-lived) $ 4427 3 — —
December 31, 2015
Weighted-
Average
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Amortization
Amount Amortization Amount Period (Years)
Customer relationships $ 120,000 $ (15,527) $ 104,473 6.0
Backlog 70,000 (70,000) — 1.0
Licenses 3,368 (208) 3,160 5.6
Total intangible assets subject to amortization $ 193,368 § (85,735 $ 107,633
License (Indefinite-lived) $ 4427 $ — 3 —
The aggregate amortization expense is as follows (in thousands):
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Amortization expense $ 5562 $ 20,992 $ 10,951 $ 39,222

The following table sets forth the Company’s estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the five years below (in thousands):

Amortization

Year ended December 31, Expense

2017 $ 31,342
2018 26,058
2019 18,489
2020 9,906
2021 75
4. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was as follows (in thousands):
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Change
Accumulated Change Related to
Other Related to Shipboard
Comprehensive Cash Flow Retirement
Income (Loss) Hedges Plan
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at beginning of period $ (412,650) $ (405,298) $ (7,352)
Current period other comprehensive income before reclassifications 75,457 75,457 —
Amounts reclassified into earnings 58,547 58,331(1) 216(2)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at end of period $ (278,646) $ (271,51003) $ (7,136)
(1)  We refer you to Note 7— “Fair Value Measurements and Derivatives” for the affected line items in the consolidated statements of operations.
(2)  Amortization of prior-service cost and actuarial loss reclassified to payroll and related expense.
(3)  Includes $73.6 million of loss expected to be reclassified into earnings in the next 12 months.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the six months ended June 30, 2015 was as follows (in thousands):
Change
Accumulated Change Related to
Other Related to Shipboard
Comprehensive Cash Flow Retirement
Income (Loss) Hedges Plan
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at beginning of period $ (242,642) $ (234,188) $ (8,454)
Current period other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (33,274) (33,274) —
Amounts reclassified into earnings 48,689 48,450(1) 239(2)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at end of period $ (227,227) $ (219,01 2) $ (8,21 5)

(1)  We refer you to Note 7— “Fair Value Measurements and Derivatives” for the affected line items in the consolidated statements of operations.
(2)  Amortization of prior-service cost and actuarial loss reclassified to payroll and related expense.

5. Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net increased $609.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 primarily due to the delivery of Seven Seas Explorer and the refurbishment of
several ships.

6. Long-Term Debt

In June 2016, NCLC and Voyager Vessel Company, LLC, indirect subsidiaries of NCLH, entered into a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Amended
Senior Secured Credit Facility”) with a syndicate of banks which restates the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2014 (the “Existing Senior
Secured Credit Facility”). The Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility amends the Existing Senior Secured Credit Facility to, among other things, (i) (a) increase the aggregate
amount of commitments under the Revolving Loan Facility from $625.0 million to $750.0 million (the “New Revolving Loan Facility”) and (b) increase the aggregate principal
amount outstanding under the $1.38 billion term loan facility from $1.16 billion to $1.51 billion (the “New Term Loan A Facility”) and (ii) extend the maturity of the New
Term Loan A Facility and the New Revolving Loan Facility to June 2021 (the “Extended Maturity Date”). The agreement incorporates a springing maturity date for the New
Term Loan A Facility and the New Revolving Loan Facility such that both mature on (A) the earlier date that is 91 days prior to the final maturity date of NCLC’s $680.0
million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% senior unsecured notes due 2019 (the “5.25% Notes”) if on such date (x) the 5.25% Notes have not been repaid (or refinanced with
indebtedness maturing after the Extended Maturity Date) by such date and (y) free liquidity does not exceed the aggregate principal amount of outstanding 5.25% Notes by at
least $50.0 million and (B) the earlier date that is 91 days prior to the final maturity date of NCLC’s $600.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.625% senior unsecured
notes due 2020 (the “4.625% Notes”) if on such date (x) the 4.625% Notes have not been repaid (or refinanced with indebtedness maturing after the Extended Maturity Date) by
such date and (y) free liquidity does not exceed the aggregate principal amount of outstanding 4.625% Notes by at least $50.0 million. NCLC used proceeds of approximately
$1.59 billion from the New Term Loan A Facility and the New Revolving Loan Facility to prepay the entire outstanding principal amount of the Revolving Loan Facility, the
$1.38 billion term loan facility and the $350.0 million term loan facility.

The New Term Loan A Facility and New Revolving Loan Facility bear interest at a rate per annum of (a) an adjusted LIBOR rate or (b) a base rate determined by reference to
the greatest of (i) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, (ii) the prime rate in effect on such day and (iii) the adjusted LIBOR rate plus 1%, in each case plus an applicable margin
that is determined by reference to a total leverage ratio, with an applicable margin of between 2.25% and 1.50% with respect to Eurocurrency loans and between 1.25% and
0.50% with respect to base rate loans. The initial applicable margin for borrowings is 2.25% with respect to Eurocurrency borrowings and 1.25% with respect to base rate
borrowings.
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The New Term Loan A Facility will be paid in quarterly installments commencing in September 2016, in a principal amount equal to (a) in the case of installments payable on
or prior to June 6, 2018, 1.25% of the loans outstanding immediately after the closing date under the New Term Loan A Facility and (b) in the case of installments payable after
June 6, 2018, 2.50% of the loans outstanding immediately after the closing date under the New Term Loan A Facility, with the remaining unpaid principal amount of loans
under the New Term Loan A Facility due and payable in full at maturity on June 6, 2021. Principal amounts outstanding under the New Revolving Loan Facility are due and
payable in full at maturity on June 6, 2021, subject to earlier repayment pursuant to the springing maturity date described above.

In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the borrowings, we are obligated to pay a quarterly commitment fee at a rate determined by reference to a total
leverage ratio, with a maximum commitment fee of 40% of the applicable margin for Eurocurrency loans.

In June 2016, we took delivery of Seven Seas Explorer. To finance the payment due upon delivery, we had export financing in place for 80% of the contract price. The
associated $373.6 million term loan bears interest at 3.43% with a maturity date of June 30, 2028. Principal and interest payments shall be paid semiannually.

7. Fair Value Measurements and Derivatives

Fair value is defined as the price at which an orderly transaction to sell an asset or to transfer a liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date
under current market conditions (that is, an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value should maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the
most observable inputs be used when available:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement dates.

Level 2 Significant other observable inputs that are used by market participants in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from independent sources.
Level 3 Significant unobservable inputs we believe market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available.

Derivatives

We are exposed to market risk attributable to changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and fuel prices. We attempt to minimize these risks through a
combination of our normal operating and financing activities and through the use of derivatives. We assess whether derivatives used in hedging transactions are “highly
effective” in offsetting changes in the cash flow of our hedged forecasted transactions. We use regression analysis for this hedge relationship and high effectiveness is achieved
when a statistically valid relationship reflects a high degree of offset and correlation between the fair values of the derivative and the hedged forecasted transaction. Cash flows
from the derivatives are classified in the same category as the cash flows from the underlying hedged transaction. The determination of ineffectiveness is based on the amount of
dollar offset between the cumulative change in fair value of the derivative and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged transaction at the end of the reporting period. If
it is determined that a derivative is not highly effective as a hedge, or if the hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable of occurring, then the amount recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is released to earnings. In addition, the ineffective portion of our highly effective hedges is recognized in earnings immediately
and reported in other income (expense) in our consolidated statements of operations. There are no amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness and there are

no credit-risk-related contingent features in our derivative agreements.

‘We monitor concentrations of credit risk associated with financial and other institutions with which we conduct significant business. Credit risk, including but not limited to
counterparty non-performance under derivatives and our New Revolving Loan Facility, is not considered significant, as we primarily conduct business with large, well-
established financial institutions that we have established relationships with and that have credit risks acceptable to us or the credit risk is spread out among a large number of
creditors. We do not anticipate non-performance by any of our significant counterparties.

10
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The following table sets forth our derivatives measured at fair value and discloses the balance sheet location (in thousands):

Asset Liability
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
Balance Sheet location 2016 2015 2016 2015
Fuel swaps designated as hedging instruments
Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 15972 §$ — $ — 3 —
Other long-term assets 7,084 — — —
Accrued expenses and other liabilities — — 82,672 128,740
Other long-term liabilities 7,340 — 79,646 132,494
Fuel swaps not designated as hedging
instruments
Accrued expenses and other liabilities — — 1,801 —
Foreign currency forward contracts designated
as hedging instruments
Prepaid expenses and other assets 6,135 — 3,414 —
Other long-term assets 2,577 3,446 386 1,370
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 731 — 13,514 8,737
Other long-term liabilities 1,814 551 20,165 24,181
Foreign currency collar not designated as a
hedging instrument
Accrued expenses and other liabilities — — — 42,993
Interest rate swaps designated as hedging
instruments
Accrued expenses and other liabilities — — 4,328 4,079
Other long-term liabilities — — 3,973 3,395

The fair values of swap and forward contracts are determined based on inputs that are readily available in public markets or can be derived from information available in
publicly quoted markets. The Company determines the value of options and collars utilizing an option pricing model based on inputs that are either readily available in public
markets or can be derived from information available in publicly quoted markets. The option pricing model used by the Company is an industry standard model for valuing
options and is used by the broker/dealer community. The inputs to this option pricing model are the option strike price, underlying price, risk-free rate of interest, time to
expiration, and volatility. The fair value of option contracts considers both the intrinsic value and any remaining time value associated with those derivatives that have not yet
settled. The Company also considers counterparty credit risk and its own credit risk in its determination of all estimated fair values. Our derivatives and financial instruments
were categorized as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, and we had no derivatives or financial instruments categorized as Level 1 or Level 3.

Our derivative contracts include rights of offset with our counterparties. We have elected to net certain assets and liabilities within counterparties when the rights of offset exist.
We are not required to post cash collateral related to our derivative instruments.

The following table discloses the gross and net amounts recognized within assets and liabilities (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amounts Total Net Amounts Not
June 30, 2016 Gross Amounts Offset Amounts Offset Net Amounts
Assets $ 31,768  $ (3,800) $ 27,968 § 2,715) $ 25,253
Liabilities 206,099 (9,885) 196,214 (30,707) 165,507
Gross Gross
Amounts Total Net Amounts Not
December 31, 2015 Gross Amounts Offset Amounts Offset Net Amounts
Assets $ 3446 S (1,370) $ 2076 $ (2,043) $ 33
Liabilities 344,619 (551) 344,068 (336,645) 7,423

Fuel Swaps

As of June 30, 2016, we had fuel swaps maturing through December 31, 2019 which are used to mitigate the financial impact of volatility in fuel prices pertaining to
approximately 1.8 million metric tons of our projected fuel purchases.

The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the fuel swaps which were designated as cash flow hedges were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Gain recognized in other comprehensive income — effective portion $ 85,808 § 34,133 $ 76,302 $ 31,332
Loss recognized in other expense — ineffective portion (3,524) (3,194) (8,751) (9,245)
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into fuel
expense 20,440 15,297 51,577 35,833
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As of June 30, 2016, we had fuel swaps pertaining to approximately 22,000 metric tons which were not designated as cash flow hedges. These fuel swaps were previously
designated as cash flow hedges and were dedesignated due to a change in our expected future fuel purchases mix.

The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the fuel swaps which were dedesignated and recognized into earnings were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Loss recognized in other expense $ 92 $ —  $ 92) $ —
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into other
expense 1,465 10,000 2,994 10,000
Fuel Collars

We had fuel collars that matured and were used to mitigate the financial impact of volatility in fuel prices of our fuel purchases.

The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the fuel collars which were designated as cash flow hedges were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into fuel
expense $ — 10 $ — 3 248

Foreign Currency Options
We had foreign currency options that matured which consisted of call options with deferred premiums. These options were used to mitigate the financial impact of volatility in
foreign currency exchange rates related to our ship construction contracts denominated in euros. If the spot rate at the date the ships were delivered was less than the strike price

under these option contracts, we would have paid the deferred premium and would not exercise the foreign currency options.

The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the foreign currency options which were designated as cash flow hedges were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into
depreciation and amortization expense $ 330§ 330§ 660 $ 660

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

As of June 30, 2016, we had foreign currency forward contracts which are used to mitigate the financial impact of volatility in foreign currency exchange rates related to our
ship construction contracts and forecasted Dry-dock payments denominated in euros. The notional amount of our foreign currency forward contracts was €2.3 billion, or $2.6
billion based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of June 30, 2016.

The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the foreign currency forward contracts which were designated as cash flow hedges were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income — effective portion $ (79,900) $ 36,928 $ 2,611 $ (60,447)
Gain (loss) recognized in other expense — ineffective portion 2) 8 9 7
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into
depreciation and amortization expense 656 (63) 1,301 (127)

We had foreign currency forward contracts that matured and were used to mitigate the volatility of foreign currency exchange rates related to financial instruments denominated
in foreign currencies.
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The effects on the consolidated financial statements of foreign currency forward contracts which were not designated as cash flow hedges were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Gain (loss) recognized in other expense $ 6,133) $ 9 3 6,133) $ 99

Foreign Currency Collars

We had foreign currency collars that matured and were used to mitigate the volatility of foreign currency exchange rates related to our ship construction contracts denominated
in euros.

The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the foreign currency collar which was designated as a cash flow hedge was as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into
depreciation and amortization expense $ ©1n $ ©1n $ (182) $ (182)

The effect on the consolidated financial statements of the foreign currency collar which was not designated as a cash flow hedge was as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Gain (loss) recognized in other expense $ (3,313) $ 9,350 $ 10312 $ (19,603)

Interest Rate Swaps

As of June 30, 2016, we had interest rate swap agreements to hedge our exposure to interest rate movements and to manage our interest expense. The notional amount of
outstanding debt associated with the interest rate swap agreements was $366.3 million.

The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the interest rate swaps which were designated as cash flow hedges were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Loss recognized in other comprehensive income — effective portion $ 901) $ (570) $ (3,456) $ (4,159)
Gain (loss) recognized in other expense — ineffective portion — 5) 3 (12)
Amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into
interest expense, net 981 1,081 1,981 2,018
We had an interest rate swap that matured in January 2015, which was used to mitigate our exposure to interest rate movements and to manage our interest expense.
The effect on the consolidated financial statements of the interest rate swap contract which was not designated as a hedging instrument was as follows (in thousands):
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Loss recognized in other expense $ — 8 — 3 — 3 )

Long-Term Debt
As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the fair value of our long-term debt, including the current portion, was $6.7 billion and $6.5 billion, respectively, which was $11.5

million higher and $6.6 million lower, respectively, than the carrying values. The difference between the fair value and carrying value of our long-term debt is due to our fixed
and variable rate debt obligations carrying interest rates that are above or below market rates at the measurement dates. The fair value of our long-term debt was
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calculated based on estimated rates for the same or similar instruments with similar terms and remaining maturities resulting in Level 2 inputs in the fair value hierarchy. Market
risk associated with our long-term variable rate debt is the potential increase in interest expense from an increase in interest rates. The calculation of the fair value of our long-

term debt is considered a Level 2 input.

Other

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets of all other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair value.

8. Employee Benefits and Compensation Plans

Share Option Awards

On March 1, 2016, we granted 1.0 million share option awards to our employees at an exercise price of $50.31 with a contractual term of ten years. The share options vest

equally over three years.

The following is a summary of option activity under our share option plan for the six months ended June 30, 2016 (excludes the impact of 364,584 previously awarded
performance-based options as no grant date has been established):

Weighted-
Number of Share Option Weighted-Average Exercise Average Aggregate
Awards Price Per Share Contractual Term Intrinsic Value
Time- Performance- Market- Time- Performance- Market-
Based Based Based Based Based Based
Awards Awards Awards Awards Awards Awards (years) (in thousands)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2015 7,702,071 432,752 208,333 § 4735 § 19.00 $ 59.43 859 § 104,864
Granted 1,060,000 52,083 — 50.13 59.43 —
Exercised (89,534) (51,857) — 25.48 19.00 =
Forfeited and cancelled (466,527) — — 49.10 — —
Outstanding as of June 30, 2016 8,206,010 432,978 208333 § 4785 § 2386 $ 59.43 831 § 30,800

Restricted Ordinary Share Awards

The following is a summary of restricted ordinary share activity for the six months ended June 30, 2016:

‘Weighted-
Number of Average Grant
Time-Based Date Fair
Awards Value Per Share

Non-vested as of January 1, 2016
Granted
Vested
Forfeited or expired
Non-vested and expected to vest as of June 30, 2016

(352)

43,653 § 5.87

(16,830) 5.85
2.50

26,471 $ 5.92

Restricted Share Unit Awards

On March 1, 2016, we granted 1.2 million restricted share unit awards to our employees which vest equally over three years.

The following is a summary of restricted share unit activity for the six months ended June 30, 2016 (excludes the impact of 87,500 previously awarded performance-based

restricted share units as no grant date was established):

‘Weighted- Number of Weighted- Number of ‘Weighted-
Number of Average Grant Performance- Average Grant Market- Average Grant
Time-Based Date Fair Based Date Fair Based Date Fair
Awards Value Per Share Awards Value Per Share Awards Value Per Share
Non-vested as of January 1, 2016 150,000 $ 59.43 — 3 — 50,000 $ 59.43
Granted 1,246,990 50.41 12,500 50.00 — —
Vested (37,500) 59.43 (12,500) 50.00 — —
Forfeited or expired (50,000) 50.31 — — — —
Non-vested and expected to vest as of June 30, 2016 1,309,490 § 51.19 — 3 — 50,000 $ 59.43

The share-based compensation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $31.4 million of which $27.7 million was recorded in marketing, general and administrative

expense and $3.7 million was recorded in payroll and related

expense.
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9. Commitments and Contingencies
Ship Construction Contracts

We have Norwegian Joy and two other Breakaway Plus Class Ships on order with Meyer Werft shipyard for delivery in the spring of 2017, spring of 2018 and fall of 2019,
respectively. These ships will be amongst the largest in our fleet, reaching approximately 164,600 Gross Tons. The combined contract price of these three ships is
approximately €2.6 billion, or $2.9 billion based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. We have export credit financing in place that provides financing for
80% of their contract prices. In June 2016, we took delivery of Seven Seas Explorer. We have an additional Explorer Class Ship on order with Fincantieri shipyard with an
original contract price of approximately €422.0 million, or approximately $468.7 million based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. We have export credit
financing in place that provides financing for 80% of the contract price. The additional Explorer Class Ship is expected to be delivered in the winter of 2020.

In connection with the contracts to build these ships, we do not anticipate any contractual breaches or cancellation to occur. However, if any would occur, it could result in,
among other things, the forfeiture of prior deposits or payments made by us, subject to certain refund guarantees, and potential claims and impairment losses which may
materially impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Litigation

In the normal course of our business, various claims and lawsuits have been filed or are pending against us. Most of these claims and lawsuits are covered by insurance and,
accordingly, the maximum amount of our liability is typically limited to our deductible amount.

Nonetheless, the ultimate outcome of these claims and lawsuits that are not covered by insurance cannot be determined at this time. We have evaluated our overall exposure
with respect to all of our threatened and pending litigation and, to the extent required, we have accrued amounts for all estimable probable losses associated with our deemed
exposure. We are currently unable to estimate any other potential contingent losses beyond those accrued, as discovery is not complete nor is adequate information available to
estimate such range of loss or potential recovery. We intend to vigorously defend our legal position on all claims and, to the extent necessary, seek recovery.

10.  Restructuring Costs

Due to the Acquisition of Prestige, a number of employee positions were consolidated. As of June 30, 2016, we had an accrual balance of $1.9 million for restructuring costs for
severance and other employee-related costs. The expense of $2.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 is included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

The following table summarizes changes in the accrual for restructuring costs (in thousands):

Restructuring costs

Accrued expense balance as of December 31, 2015 $ (4,144)
Amounts paid 4,610
Additional accrued expense (2,404)

Accrued expense balance as of June 30, 2016 $ (1,938)

11.  Supplemental Cash Flow Information

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, we had non-cash investing activities in connection with property and equipment of $32.0 million and for the six months ended June 30,
2015, we had non-cash investing activities in connection with capital leases of $27.6 million.

12.  Revision to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

During the three months ended September 30, 2015, we determined that for the six months ended June 30, 2015, cash payments related to property and equipment were
reported as a decrease in cash flows from operating activities related to the change in accrued expenses and other liabilities and prepaid and other assets when it should have
been reported as a decrease in cash flows from investing activities related to additions to property and equipment. The consolidated statements of cash flows for the six months
ended June 30, 2015 have been revised to increase cash from operating activities related to the change in accrued expenses and other liabilities and prepaid and other assets and
increase investing cash outflows from additions to property and equipment by $18.5 million. We have determined that the revision is not material to our consolidated financial
statements individually and in the aggregate.
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13.  Subsequent Event

Amendment to Credit Agreement

NCLC, a subsidiary of NCLH, entered into a Supplemental Agreement, dated July 26, 2016, by and among NCLC, as guarantor, Breakaway Four, Ltd. (the “Borrower”), as
borrower, NCL International Ltd., as shareholder, and KfW IPEX-Bank GmbH (“KfW”), as facility agent and lender (the “Credit Agreement Amendment”), which amends the
Credit Agreement, dated as of October 12, 2012, by and among NCLC, as parent, the Borrower and KfW, as facility agent and lender (the “Existing Credit Agreement”). The
Credit Agreement Amendment amends the Existing Credit Agreement to, among other things, increase the aggregate principal amount of commitments under the multi-draw

term loan credit facility from €590.5 million to €729.9 million.

Except as provided in the Credit Agreement Amendment, all other provisions of the Existing Credit Agreement remain in full force.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this report constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the U.S. federal securities laws intended to qualify for the safe harbor from liability
established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than statements of historical facts contained, or incorporated by reference, in this
report, including, without limitation, those regarding our business strategy, financial position, results of operations, plans, prospects and objectives of management for future
operations (including development plans and objectives relating to our activities), are forward-looking statements. Many, but not all, of these statements can be found by
looking for words like “expect,” “anticipate,” “goal,” “project,” “plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “will,” “may,” “forecast,” “estimate,” “intend” and “future” and similar words.
Forward-looking statements do not guarantee future performance and may involve risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause our actual results, performance or
achievements to differ materially from the future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied in those forward-looking statements. Examples of these risks,
uncertainties and other factors include, but are not limited to the impact of:

2 2 ” <

»  adverse general economic and related factors, such as fluctuating or increasing levels of unemployment, underemployment and the volatility of fuel prices, declines in
the securities and real estate markets, and perceptions of these conditions that decrease the level of disposable income of consumers or consumer confidence;

»  therisks and increased costs associated with operating internationally;

*  animpairment of our tradenames or goodwill could adversely affect our financial condition and operating results;

*  our efforts to expand our business into new markets;

«  adverse events impacting the security of travel, such as terrorist acts, acts of piracy, armed conflict and threats thereof and other international events;

*  breaches in data security or other disturbances to our information technology and other networks;

»  the spread of epidemics and viral outbreaks;

* adverse incidents involving cruise ships;

»  changes in fuel prices and/or other cruise operating costs;

*  our hedging strategies;

*  our inability to obtain adequate insurance coverage;

*  our substantial indebtedness, including the ability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, and to generate the necessary amount of cash to service our existing
debt;

*  restrictions in the agreements governing our indebtedness that limit our flexibility in operating our business;

« the significant portion of our assets pledged as collateral under our existing debt agreements and the ability of our creditors to accelerate the repayment of our
indebtedness;

*  our ability to incur significantly more debt despite our substantial existing indebtedness;

*  volatility and disruptions in the global credit and financial markets, which may adversely affect our ability to borrow and could increase our counterparty credit risks,
including those under our credit facilities, derivatives, contingent obligations, insurance contracts and new ship progress payment guarantees;

*  fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates;

* our inability to recruit or retain qualified personnel or the loss of key personnel;

»  future changes relating to how external distribution channels sell and market our cruises;

«  our reliance on third parties to provide hotel management services to certain ships and certain other services;

*  delays in our shipbuilding program and ship repairs, maintenance and refurbishments;

«  future increases in the price of, or major changes or reduction in, commercial airline services;

*  seasonal variations in passenger fare rates and occupancy levels at different times of the year;

*  our ability to keep pace with developments in technology;

*  amendments to our collective bargaining agreements for crew members and other employee relation issues;

« the continued availability of attractive port destinations;

»  pending or threatened litigation, investigations and enforcement actions;

*  changes involving the tax and environmental regulatory regimes in which we operate; and

»  other factors set forth under “Risk Factors” in our most recently filed Annual Report on Form 10-K and “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in this report.

The above examples are not exhaustive and new risks emerge from time to time. Such forward-looking statements are based on our current beliefs, assumptions, expectations,
estimates and projections regarding our present and future business strategies and the environment in which we will operate in the future. These forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date made. We expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement to reflect any
change in our expectations with regard thereto or any change of events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement was based, except as required by law.
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Terminology

This report includes certain non-GAAP financial measures, such as Net Revenue, Net Yield, Net Cruise Cost, Adjusted Net Revenue, Adjusted Net Yield, Adjusted Net Cruise
Cost Excluding Fuel, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted EPS. Definitions of these non-GAAP financial measures are included below. For further
information about our non-GAAP financial measures including detailed adjustments made in calculating our non-GAAP financial measures and a reconciliation to the most
directly comparable GAAP financial measure, we refer you to “Results of Operations” below.

Unless otherwise indicated in this report, the following terms have the meanings set forth below:

* Acquisition of Prestige. In November 2014, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, we acquired Prestige in a cash and stock transaction for total consideration of $3.025 billion,
including the assumption of debt.

* Adjusted EBITDA. EBITDA adjusted for other income (expense) and other supplemental adjustments.

* Adjusted EPS. Adjusted Net Income divided by the number of diluted weighted-average shares outstanding.

* Adjusted Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel. Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel adjusted for supplemental adjustments.

* Adjusted Net Income. Net income adjusted for supplemental adjustments.

* Adjusted Net Revenue. Net Revenue adjusted for supplemental adjustments.

* Adjusted Net Yield. Net Yield adjusted for supplemental adjustments.

* Bareboat Charter. The hire of a ship for a specified period of time whereby no crew or provisions are provided by the Company.

* Berths. Double occupancy capacity per cabin (single occupancy per studio cabin) even though many cabins can accommodate three or more passengers.
* Breakaway Class Ships. Norwegian Breakaway and Norwegian Getaway.

* Breakaway Plus Class Ships. The next generation of ships which are similar in design and innovation to Breakaway Class Ships.

* Business Enhancement Capital Expenditures. Capital expenditures other than those related to new ship construction and ROI Capital Expenditures.
* Capacity Days. Available Berths multiplied by the number of cruise days for the period.

* Constant Currency. A calculation whereby foreign currency-denominated revenue and expenses in a period are converted at the U.S. dollar exchange rate of a comparable
period in order to eliminate the effects of foreign exchange fluctuations.

* Dry-dock. A process whereby a ship is positioned in a large basin where all of the fresh/sea water is pumped out in order to carry out cleaning and repairs of those parts of a
ship which are below the water line.

« EBITDA. Earnings before interest, taxes, and depreciation and amortization.

« EPS. Earnings per share.

« Explorer Class Ships. Regent’s Seven Seas Explorer and a second ship on order.

* GAAP. Generally accepted accounting principles in the U.S.

 Gross Cruise Cost. The sum of total cruise operating expense and marketing, general and administrative expense.

» Gross Tons. A unit of enclosed passenger space on a cruise ship, such that one gross ton = 100 cubic feet or 2.831 cubic meters.

* Gross Yield. Total revenue per Capacity Day.

* Management NCL Corporation Units. NCLC’s previously outstanding profits interests issued to management (or former management) of NCLC which were converted into

units in NCLC. All Management NCL Corporation Units were exchanged for NCLH ordinary shares and restricted shares in the fourth quarter of 2014.
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* Merger Agreement. Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 2, 2014, by and among Prestige, NCLH, Portland Merger Sub, Inc. and Apollo Management, L.P.,
as amended, for the Acquisition of Prestige.

* Net Cruise Cost. Gross Cruise Cost less commissions, transportation and other expense and onboard and other expense.
* Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel. Net Cruise Cost less fuel expense.

* Net Revenue. Total revenue less commissions, transportation and other expense and onboard and other expense.

* Net Yield. Net Revenue per Capacity Day.

* New Revolving Loan Facility. $750.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility maturing on June 6, 2021, subject to an earlier springing maturity date as described in
Note 6— “Long-Term Debt” in our Consolidated Financial Statements included herein. The New Revolving Loan Facility amended and restated the Revolving Loan Facility.

* Occupancy Percentage. The ratio of Passenger Cruise Days to Capacity Days. A percentage in excess of 100% indicates that three or more passengers occupied some cabins.
* Passenger Cruise Days. The number of passengers carried for the period, multiplied by the number of days in their respective cruises.

* Revolving Loan Facility. $625.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility which was to mature on May 24, 2018 was amended and restated in June 2016 (such
amendment and restatement is referred to herein as the New Revolving Loan Facility).

* ROI Capital Expenditures. Comprised of project-based capital expenditures which have a quantified return on investment.

* Secondary Equity Offering(s). Secondary public offering(s) of NCLH’s ordinary shares in December 2015, August 2015, May 2015, March 2015, March 2014, December
2013 and August 2013.

« Shipboard Retirement Plan. An unfunded defined benefit pension plan for certain crew members which computes benefits based on years of service, subject to certain
requirements.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use certain non-GAAP financial measures, such as Net Revenue, Adjusted Net Revenue, Net Yield, Adjusted Net Yield, Net Cruise Cost, Adjusted Net Cruise Cost
Excluding Fuel, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted EPS, to enable us to analyze our performance. See “Terminology” for the definitions of these non-
GAAP financial measures. We utilize Net Revenue and Net Yield to manage our business on a day-to-day basis and believe that they are the most relevant measures of our
revenue performance because they reflect the revenue earned by us net of significant variable costs. In measuring our ability to control costs in a manner that positively impacts
net income, we believe changes in Net Cruise Cost and Adjusted Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel to be the most relevant indicators of our performance.

As our business includes the sourcing of passengers and deployment of vessels outside of the U.S., a portion of our revenue and expenses are denominated in foreign currencies,
particularly British pound, Canadian dollar, euro and Australian dollar which are subject to fluctuations in currency exchange rates versus our reporting currency, the U.S.
dollar. In order to monitor results excluding these fluctuations, we calculate certain non-GAAP measures on a Constant Currency basis whereby current period revenue and
expenses denominated in foreign currencies are converted to U.S. dollars using currency exchange rates of the comparable period. We believe that presenting these non-GAAP
measures on both a reported and Constant Currency basis is useful in providing a more comprehensive view of trends in our business.

We believe that Adjusted EBITDA is appropriate as a supplemental financial measure as it is used by management to assess operating performance. We believe that Adjusted
EBITDA is a useful measure in determining our performance as it reflects certain operating drivers of our business, such as sales growth, operating costs, marketing, general and
administrative expense and other operating income and expense. Adjusted EBITDA is not a defined term under GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended to be a measure of
liquidity or cash flows from operations or a measure comparable to net income as it does not take into account certain requirements such as capital expenditures and related
depreciation, principal and interest payments and tax payments and it includes other supplemental adjustments.

In addition, Adjusted Net Revenue and Adjusted Net Yield, which excludes certain business combination accounting entries, are non-GAAP financial measures that we believe
are useful as supplemental measures in evaluating the performance of our operating business and provide greater transparency into our results of operations. Adjusted Net
Income and Adjusted EPS are non-GAAP financial measures that exclude certain amounts and are used to supplement GAAP net income and EPS. We use Adjusted Net
Income
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and Adjusted EPS as key performance measures of our earnings performance. We believe that both management and investors benefit from referring to these non-GAAP
financial measures in assessing our performance and when planning, forecasting and analyzing future periods. These non-GAAP financial measures also facilitate
management’s internal comparison to our historical performance. The amounts excluded in the presentation of these non-GAAP financial measures may vary from period to
period; accordingly, our presentation of Adjusted Net Revenue, Adjusted Net Yield, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted EPS may not be indicative of future adjustments or
results. For example, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 we incurred an $11.4 million write-off of deferred financing fees due to the refinancing of certain credit
facilities. We included the $11.4 million as an adjustment in the reconciliation of Adjusted Net Income since these amounts are not representative of our day-to-day operations
and we have included other write-offs of deferred financing fees as adjustments in prior periods.

You are encouraged to evaluate each adjustment used in calculating our non-GAAP financial measures and the reasons we consider our non-GAAP financial measures
appropriate for supplemental analysis. In evaluating our non-GAAP financial measures, you should be aware that in the future we may incur expenses similar to the adjustments
in our presentation. Our non-GAAP financial measures have limitations as analytical tools, and you should not consider these measures in isolation or as a substitute for
analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Our presentation of our non-GAAP financial measures should not be construed as an inference that our future results will be
unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. Our non-GAAP financial measures may not be comparable to other companies. Please see a historical reconciliation of these
measures to the most comparable GAAP measure presented in our consolidated financial statements below in the “Results of Operations” section.

Financial Presentation

Revenue from our cruise and cruise-related activities are categorized by us as “passenger ticket revenue” and “onboard and other revenue.” Passenger ticket revenue and
onboard and other revenue vary according to product offering, the size of the ship in operation, the length of cruises operated and the markets in which the ship operates. Our
revenue is seasonal based on demand for cruises, which has historically been strongest during the Northern Hemisphere’s summer months.

Passenger ticket revenue primarily consists of revenue for accommodations, meals in certain restaurants on the ship, certain onboard entertainment, and includes revenue for
service charges and air and land transportation to and from the ship to the extent guests purchase these items from us. Onboard and other revenue primarily consists of revenue
from gaming, beverage sales, shore excursions, specialty dining, retail sales, spa services, photo services as well as certain Bareboat Charter revenue. We record onboard
revenue from onboard activities we perform directly or that are performed by independent concessionaires, from which we receive a share of their revenue.

Our cruise operating expense is classified as follows:
. Commissions, transportation and other primarily consists of direct costs associated with passenger ticket revenue. These costs include travel agent commissions, air
and land transportation expenses, related credit card fees, costs associated with service charges, certain port expenses and the costs associated with shore excursions

and hotel accommodations included as part of the overall cruise purchase price.

. Onboard and other primarily consists of direct costs that are incurred in connection with onboard and other revenue. These include costs incurred in connection with
gaming, beverage sales and shore excursions.

. Payroll and related consists of the cost of wages and benefits for shipboard employees and costs of certain inventory items, including food, for a third party that
provides crew and other hotel services for certain ships.

. Fuel includes fuel costs, the impact of certain fuel hedges and fuel delivery costs.
. Food consists of food costs for passengers and crew on certain ships.
. Other consists of repairs and maintenance (including Dry-dock costs), ship insurance and other ship expenses.

Critical Accounting Policies
For a discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates, see “Critical Accounting Policies” included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2015 under the caption “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” We have made no significant changes to our
critical accounting policies and estimates from those described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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Quarterly Overview

*  Seven Seas Explorer was delivered in June 2016 to our Regent fleet. This ship is approximately 55,000 Gross Tons with 750 Berths.

«  Sirena, previously under a Bareboat Charter, joined our Oceania Cruises fleet in April 2016. This ship is approximately 30,000 Gross Tons with 684 Berths.
Three months ended June 30, 2016 (“2016”) compared to the three months ended June 30, 2015 (“2015”)
Total revenue increased 9.3% to $1.2 billion in 2016 compared to $1.1 billion in 2015 primarily due to an increase in Capacity Days and improved pricing. Gross Yield was
relatively unchanged. Net Revenue in 2016 increased 11.2% to $917.5 million from $825.1 million in 2015 due to an increase in Capacity Days of 9.4% and an increase in Net
Yield of 1.7%. The increase in Capacity Days was primarily due to the delivery of Norwegian Escape in October 2015 and Sirena joining our fleet in April 2016 slightly offset
by the scheduled Dry-docks. The increase in Net Yield was primarily due to improved pricing.
We had net income and diluted EPS of $145.2 million and $0.64, respectively, in 2016. Operating income was $227.0 million in 2016 compared to $217.4 million in 2015. We
had Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted EPS of $192.6 million and $0.85, respectively, in 2016, which includes $47.3 million of adjustments primarily consisting of expenses

related to deferred financing fees, derivatives, non-cash compensation and certain other adjustments. Adjusted EBITDA improved 12.0% in 2016 compared to 2015. We refer
you to our “Results of Operations” below for a calculation of Net Revenue, Net Yield, Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted EPS and Adjusted EBITDA.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth operating data as a percentage of total revenue:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Revenue
Passenger ticket 69.0% 72.6% 68.8% 72.1%
Onboard and other 31.0% 27.4% 31.2% 27.9%
Total revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cruise operating expense
Commissions, transportation and other 16.3% 17.7% 16.3% 18.0%
Onboard and other 6.4% 6.3% 6.2% 6.3%
Payroll and related 15.5% 14.9% 16.0% 15.8%
Fuel 6.8% 8.5% 7.2% 8.9%
Food 4.2% 4.0% 4.4% 4.2%
Other 10.3% 9.1% 10.4% 10.1%
Total cruise operating expense 59.5% 60.5% 60.5% 63.3%
Other operating expense
Marketing, general and administrative 12.6% 9.9% 14.6% 12.9%
Depreciation and amortization 8.8% 9.6% 9.1% 10.1%
Total other operating expense 21.4% 19.5% 23.7% 23.0%
Operating income 19.1% 20.0% 15.8% 13.7%
Non-operating income (expense)
Interest expense, net (5.8)% (4.8)% (5.7)% (5.1)%
Other expense (0.9)% (0.4)% (0.3)% (1.7)%
Total non-operating income (expense) 6.7)% (5.2)% (6.0)% (6.8)%
Net income before income taxes 12.4% 14.8% 9.8% 6.9%
Income tax expense (0.2)% (0.2)% (0.2)% (0.1)%
Net income 12.2% 14.6% 9.6% 6.8%
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The following table sets forth selected statistical information:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Passengers carried 574,838 527,676 1,126,313 1,041,202
Passenger Cruise Days 4,237,020 3,948,773 8,522,314 7,716,888
Capacity Days 3,974,508 3,634,143 7,965,450 7,190,611
Occupancy Percentage 106.6% 108.7% 107.0% 107.3%

Net Revenue, Adjusted Net Revenue, Gross Yield, Net Yield and Adjusted Net Yield were calculated as follows (in thousands, except Capacity Days and Yield data):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2016
Constant Constant
2016 Currency 2015 2016 Currency 2015
Passenger ticket revenue $ 818,478 $ 822,398 § 787,991 $ 1,558,590 §$ 1,575,030 $ 1,458,474
Onboard and other revenue 368,357 368,358 297,442 705,877 705,877 565,141
Total revenue 1,186,835 1,190,756 1,085,433 2,264,467 2,280,907 2,023,615
Less:
Commissions, transportation and other expense 193,536 194,383 192,438 368,973 373,288 364,265
Onboard and other expense 75,790 75,790 67,885 139,755 139,755 126,530
Net Revenue 917,509 920,583 825,110 1,755,739 1,767,864 1,532,820
Non-GAAP Adjustment:
Deferred revenue (1) 297 297 7,294 757 757 28,488
Adjusted Net Revenue $ 917,806 $ 920,880 § 832,404 $ 1,756,496  § 1,768,621  $ 1,561,308
Capacity Days 3,974,508 3,974,508 3,634,143 7,965,450 7,965,450 7,190,611
Gross Yield $ 298.61 $ 299.60 $ 298.68 $ 28429 $ 28635 % 281.42
Net Yield $ 230.85 $ 231.62 $§ 227.04 $ 22042 $ 22194 § 213.17
Adjusted Net Yield $ 23092 $ 23170 $ 229.05 $ 220.51 $ 222.04 $ 217.13

(1) Reflects deferred revenue fair value adjustments related to the Acquisition of Prestige that were made pursuant to business combination accounting rules.

Gross Cruise Cost, Net Cruise Cost, Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel and Adjusted Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel were calculated as follows (in thousands, except Capacity
Days and per Capacity Day data):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2016
Constant Constant
2016 Currency 2015 2016 Currency 2015
Total cruise operating expense $ 705,900 $ 707,178  $ 656,279 $ 1,370,381 $ 1,376,337 $ 1,279,979
Marketing, general and administrative expense 149,307 149,288 107,164 329,881 330,604 261,321
Gross Cruise Cost 855,207 856,466 763,443 1,700,262 1,706,941 1,541,300
Less:
Commissions, transportation and other expense 193,536 194,383 192,438 368,973 373,288 364,265
Onboard and other expense 75,790 75,790 67,885 139,755 139,755 126,530
Net Cruise Cost 585,881 586,293 503,120 1,191,534 1,193,898 1,050,505
Less: Fuel expense 80,607 80,607 91,581 162,279 162,279 178,955
Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel 505,274 505,686 411,539 1,029,255 1,031,619 871,550
Less Non-GAAP Adjustments:
Non-cash deferred compensation (1) 792 792 1,029 1,583 1,583 2,482
Non-cash share-based compensation (2) 16,204 16,204 2,161 31,449 31,449 14,166
Secondary Equity Offerings’ expenses (3) — — 1,022 — — 1,022
869 869 3,289 2,899 2,899 13,676
Severance payments and other fees (4)
Management NCL Corporation Units exchange expenses
(5) — — — — — 624
Acquisition of Prestige expenses (6) 1,273 1,273 10,891 3,014 3,014 11,291
Contingent consideration adjustment (7) — — (34,300) — — (43,400)
Adjusted Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel $ 486,136  $ 486,548 $ 427447 $ 990,310 $ 992,674 $ 871,689
Capacity Days 3,974,508 3,974,508 3,634,143 7,965,450 7,965,450 7,190,611
Gross Cruise Cost per Capacity Day $ 21517 $ 21549 §$ 210.08 $ 21345 §$ 21429 $ 214.35
Net Cruise Cost per Capacity Day $ 14741 $ 14751 $ 138.44  $ 14959 $ 14988 $ 146.09
Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel per Capacity Day $ 127.13  § 12723 § 11324  $ 12921 § 129.51  $ 121.21
Adjusted Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel per Capacity Day  $ 122.31  $ 12242  § 117.62  § 12433  § 124.62 § 121.23
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(1)  Non-cash deferred compensation expenses related to the crew pension plan and other crew expenses, which are included in payroll and related expense.

(2)  Non-cash share-based compensation expenses related to equity awards, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense and payroll and related
expense.

(3)  Expenses related to the Secondary Equity Offerings, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

(4)  Severance payments and other expenses related to restructuring costs and other severance arrangements, which are included in marketing, general and
administrative expense.

(5)  Expenses related to the exchange of Management NCL Corporation Units for ordinary shares, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

(6)  Expenses related to the Acquisition of Prestige, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

(7)  Contingent consideration fair value adjustment related to the Acquisition of Prestige, which is included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted EPS were calculated as follows (in thousands, except share and per share data):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Net income 145,246 158,494 218,475 137,038
Non-GAAP Adjustments:
Non-cash deferred compensation (1) 792 1,029 1,583 2,482
Non-cash share-based compensation (2) 16,204 2,334 31,449 14,339
Secondary Equity Offerings’ expenses (3) — 1,022 — 1,022
Severance payments and other fees (4) 869 3,289 2,899 13,676
Management NCL Corporation Units exchange expenses (5) — — — 624
Acquisition of Prestige expenses (6) 1,273 10,891 3,014 11,291
Deferred revenue (7) 297 7,294 757 28,488
Amortization of intangible assets (8) 5,267 20,913 10,535 39,059
Contingent consideration adjustment (9) — (34,300) — (43,400)
Derivative adjustment (10) 10,911 650 (1,185) 29,603
Deferred financing fees and other (11) 11,714 — 11,714 —
Adjusted Net Income $ 192,573  $ 171,616 $ 279,241 $ 234,222
Diluted weighted—average shares outstanding 227,884,704 230,228,144 227,997,970 229,664,210
Diluted earnings per share $ 064 $ 069 $ 096 $ 0.60
Adjusted EPS $ 085 $ 075 $ 122 § 1.02

(1)  Non-cash deferred compensation expenses related to the crew pension plan and other crew expenses, which are included in payroll and related expense.

(2)  Non-cash share-based compensation expenses related to equity awards, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense and payroll and related
expense.

(3)  Expenses related to the Secondary Equity Offerings, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

(4)  Severance payments and other expenses related to restructuring costs and other severance arrangements, which are included in marketing, general and
administrative expense.

(5)  Expenses related to the exchange of Management NCL Corporation Units for ordinary shares, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

(6)  Expenses related to the Acquisition of Prestige, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

(7)  Deferred revenue fair value adjustments related to the Acquisition of Prestige that were made pursuant to business combination accounting rules, which are
primarily included in Net Revenue.
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(8)  Amortization of intangible assets related to the Acquisition of Prestige, which are included in depreciation and amortization expense.

(9)  Contingent consideration fair value adjustment related to the Acquisition of Prestige, which is included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

(10)  Losses and net gains for the fair value adjustment of a foreign exchange collar which does not receive hedge accounting and losses due to the dedesignation of
certain fuels swaps. These adjustments are included in other expense.

(11)  Primarily related to the write-off of deferred financing fees related to the refinancing of certain credit facilities, which is included in interest expense, net.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA were calculated as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Net income $ 145246  $ 158,494 § 218475 $ 137,038
Interest expense, net 68,420 52,446 128,174 103,435
Income tax expense 2,599 2,726 3,703 3,403
Depreciation and amortization expense 104,610 104,607 205,905 204,583
EBITDA 320,875 318,273 556,257 448,459
Other expense (1) 10,753 3,717 7,948 33,856
Non-GAAP Adjustments:
Non-cash deferred compensation (2) 792 1,029 1,583 2,482
Non-cash share-based compensation (3) 16,204 2,161 31,449 14,166
Secondary Equity Offerings’ expenses (4) — 1,022 — 1,022
Severance payments and other fees (5) 869 3,289 2,899 13,676
Management NCL Corporation Units exchange expenses (6) — — — 624
Acquisition of Prestige expenses (7) 1,273 10,891 3,014 11,291
Deferred revenue (8) 297 7,294 757 28,488
Contingent consideration adjustment (9) — (34,300) — (43,400)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 351,063 $ 313,376 $ 603,907 $ 510,664
@) Primarily consists of gains and losses, net for derivative contracts and forward currency exchanges.
?2) Non-cash deferred compensation expenses related to the crew pension plan and other crew expenses, which are included in payroll and related expense.
3) Non-cash share-based compensation expenses related to equity awards, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense and payroll and related
expense.
“ Expenses related to the Secondary Equity Offerings, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.
) Severance payments and other expenses related to restructuring costs and other severance arrangements, which are included in marketing, general and administrative
expense.
6) Expenses related to the exchange of Management NCL Corporation Units for ordinary shares, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.
@) Expenses related to the Acquisition of Prestige, which are included in marketing, general and administrative expense.
®) Deferred revenue fair value adjustments related to the Acquisition of Prestige that were made pursuant to business combination accounting rules, which are primarily
included in Net Revenue.
) Contingent consideration fair value adjustment related to the Acquisition of Prestige, which is included in marketing, general and administrative expense.

Three months ended June 30, 2016 (“2016”) compared to three months ended June 30, 2015 (“2015”)
Revenue

Total revenue increased 9.3% to $1.2 billion in 2016 compared to $1.1 billion in 2015 primarily due to an increase in Capacity Days and improved pricing. Gross Yield was
relatively unchanged. Net Revenue in 2016 increased 11.2% to $917.5 million from $825.1 million in 2015 due to an increase in Capacity Days of 9.4% and an increase in Net
Yield of 1.7%.The increase in Capacity Days was primarily due to the delivery of Norwegian Escape in October 2015 and Sirena joining our fleet in April 2016 slightly offset
by the scheduled Dry-docks. The increase in Net Yield was primarily due to improved pricing. Adjusted Net Revenue includes a deferred revenue fair value adjustment of $7.3
million in 2015 related to the Acquisition of Prestige. On a Constant Currency basis, Net Yield and Adjusted Net Yield increased 2.0% and 1.2%, respectively, in 2016
compared to 2015.
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Expense

Gross Cruise Cost increased 12.0% in 2016 compared to 2015 due to an increase in total cruise operating expense and marketing, general and administrative expense. Total
cruise operating expense increased 7.6% in 2016 compared to 2015 primarily due to the increase in Capacity Days as discussed above and an increase in Dry-dock expenses.
Total other operating expense increased 19.9% in 2016 compared to 2015 primarily due to an increase in marketing, general and administrative expenses, which included an
increase in share-based compensation expense of $11.8 million. The increase was also due to recognition of a $34.3 million contingent consideration adjustment related to the
Acquisition of Prestige which resulted in a reduction to expense in 2015 but not in 2016. Depreciation and amortization expense was relatively unchanged as the increase due to
the addition of Norwegian Escape and ship improvement projects in 2016 was offset by the recognition in 2015 of an incremental $15.6 million of amortization of intangible
assets due to the Acquisition of Prestige. On a Capacity Day basis, Net Cruise Cost increased 6.5% (6.6% on a Constant Currency basis) due to the increases in expenses
discussed above partially offset by a decrease in fuel expense which was primarily due to a 15.9% decrease in the average fuel price to $469 per metric ton in 2016 from $558
per metric ton in 2015. Adjusted Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel per Capacity Day increased 4.0% (4.1% on a Constant Currency basis) primarily due to the increase in certain
expenses discussed above. We refer you to the “Results of Operations” above for a reconciliation of Gross Cruise Cost to Adjusted Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel.

Interest expense, net increased to $68.4 million in 2016 from $52.4 million in 2015 primarily due to an increase in average debt balances outstanding primarily associated with
the delivery of Norwegian Escape in October 2015 and slightly higher interest rates due to an increase in LIBOR rates. The increase in interest expense, net also includes a
write-off of $11.4 million of deferred financing fees related to the refinancing of certain of our credit facilities.

Other expense was $10.8 million in 2016 compared to $3.7 million in 2015. In 2016, the expense was primarily related to unrealized and realized losses on fuel swap derivative
hedge contracts and foreign exchange derivative hedge contracts partially offset by gains on foreign currency exchange. In 2015, the expense was primarily related to the
dedesignation of certain fuel swap derivative hedge contracts and the ineffectiveness of settled fuel swaps in 2015. The expense in 2015 was partially offset by income related to
the fair value adjustment for a foreign exchange collar which does not receive hedge accounting treatment.

In 2016, we had an income tax expense of $2.6 million compared to $2.7 million in 2015.
Six months ended June 30, 2016 (“2016”) compared to six months ended June 30, 2015 (“2015”)
Revenue

Total revenue increased 11.9% to $2.3 billion in 2016 compared to $2.0 billion in 2015 primarily due to an increase in Capacity Days and improved pricing. Gross Yield
increased slightly. Net Revenue in 2016 increased 14.5% to $1.8 billion from $1.5 billion in 2015 due to an increase in Capacity Days of 10.8% and an increase in Net Yield of
3.4%.The increase in Capacity Days was primarily due to the delivery of Norwegian Escape in October 2015 slightly offset by the scheduled Dry-docks in 2016. The increase in
Net Yield was primarily due to improved pricing. Adjusted Net Revenue includes a deferred revenue fair value adjustment of $28.5 million in 2015 related to the Acquisition of
Prestige. On a Constant Currency basis, Net Yield and Adjusted Net Yield increased 4.1% and 2.3%, respectively, in 2016 compared to 2015.

Expense

Gross Cruise Cost increased 10.3% in 2016 compared to 2015 due to an increase in total cruise operating expense and marketing, general and administrative expense. Total
cruise operating expense increased 7.1% in 2016 compared to 2015 primarily due to the increase in Capacity Days as discussed above and an increase in Dry-dock expenses.
Total other operating expense increased 15.0% in 2016 compared to 2015 primarily due to an increase in marketing, general and administrative expenses which included an
increase in advertising expenses of $12.5 million and share-based compensation of $13.6 million. The increase was also due to recognition of a $43.4 million contingent
consideration adjustment related to the Acquisition of Prestige which resulted in a reduction to expense in 2015 but not in 2016. Depreciation and amortization expense was
relatively unchanged as the increase due to the addition of Norwegian Escape and ship improvement projects in 2016 was offset by the recognition in 2015 of an incremental
$28.5 million of amortization of intangible assets due to the Acquisition of Prestige. On a Capacity Day basis, Net Cruise Cost increased 2.4% (2.6% on a Constant Currency
basis) due to the increases in expenses discussed above partially offset by a decrease in fuel expense which was primarily due to a 16.4% decrease in the average fuel price to
$453 per metric ton in 2016 from $542 per metric ton in 2015. Adjusted Net Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel per Capacity Day increased 2.6% (2.8% on a Constant Currency basis)
primarily due to the increase in certain expenses discussed above. We refer you to the “Results of Operations” above for a reconciliation of Gross Cruise Cost to Adjusted Net
Cruise Cost Excluding Fuel.

Interest expense, net increased to $128.2 million in 2016 from $103.4 million in 2015 primarily due to an increase in average debt balances outstanding primarily associated
with the delivery of Norwegian Escape in October 2015 as well as higher interest rates due
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to an increase in LIBOR rates. The increase in interest expense, net also includes a write-off of $11.4 million of deferred financing fees related to the refinancing of certain of
our credit facilities.

Other expense was an expense of $7.9 million in 2016 compared to an expense of $33.9 million in 2015. In 2016, the expense was primarily related to unrealized and realized
losses on fuel swap derivative hedge contracts and losses on foreign exchange partially offset by gains on foreign exchange derivative hedge contracts. In 2015, the expense was
primarily related to the dedesignation of certain fuel swap derivative hedge contracts and the ineffectiveness of settled fuel swaps in 2015. Also included in 2015 was the
expense related to the fair value adjustment for a foreign exchange collar which does not receive hedge accounting treatment.

In 2016, we had an income tax expense of $3.7 million compared to $3.4 million in 2015.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

As of June 30, 2016, our liquidity was $817.0 million consisting of $146.0 million in cash and cash equivalents and $671.0 million under our New Revolving Loan Facility. Our
primary ongoing liquidity requirements are to finance working capital, capital expenditures and debt service.

As of June 30, 2016, we had a working capital deficit of $2.2 billion. This deficit included $1.4 billion of advance ticket sales, which represents the revenue we collect in
advance of sailing dates, and accordingly, are substantially more like deferred revenue balances rather than actual current cash liabilities. Our business model, along with our
New Revolving Loan Facility, allows us to operate with a working capital deficit and still meet our operating, investing and financing needs.

We evaluate potential sources of additional liquidity, including the capital markets, in the ordinary course of business. We believe that prevailing market conditions, particularly
in the debt capital markets, are generally favorable. We will continue to evaluate opportunities to increase our liquidity in the near term, taking into consideration our current
and expected requirements, our assessment of prevailing market conditions and expectations regarding future conditions, and the contractual and other restrictions to which we
are subject.

Sources and Uses of Cash
In this section, references to “2016” refer to the six months ended June 30, 2016 and references to “2015” refer to the six months ended June 30, 2015.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $748.0 million in 2016 as compared to $711.7 million in 2015. The change in net cash provided by operating activities reflects net
income in 2016 of $218.5 compared to a net income in 2015 of $137.0 million. The net cash provided by operating activities included timing differences in cash receipts and
payments relating to operating assets and liabilities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $799.0 million in 2016, primarily related to payments for the delivery of Seven Seas Explorer, ship improvements, ships under
construction and shoreside projects. Net cash used in investing activities was $205.1 million in 2015, primarily related to payments for ship improvements, ships under
construction and shoreside projects.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $81.0 million in 2016 primarily due to net proceeds of our New Revolving Loan Facility and other loan facilities partially offset
by the repurchase of our ordinary shares and deferred financing fees and other in 2016. Net cash used in financing activities was $418.5 million in 2015 primarily due to net
repayments of our Revolving Loan Facility and other loan facilities.

Future Capital Commitments

Future capital commitments consist of contracted commitments, including ship construction contracts, and future expected capital expenditures necessary for operations as well
as our ship refurbishment projects. As of June 30, 2016, anticipated capital expenditures were $0.2 billion for the remainder of 2016 and $1.3 billion for each of the years
ending December 31, 2017 and 2018, of which we have export credit financing in place for the expenditures related to ship construction contracts of $47.8 million for the
remainder of 2016, $0.6 billion for 2017 and $0.7 billion for 2018. These future expected capital expenditures will significantly increase our depreciation and amortization
expense.

We have Norwegian Joy and two other Breakaway Plus Class Ships on order with Meyer Werft shipyard for delivery in the spring of 2017, spring of 2018 and fall of 2019,
respectively. These ships will be the largest in our fleet, reaching approximately 164,600 Gross Tons. The combined contract price of these three ships is approximately €2.6
billion, or $2.9 billion based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. We have export credit financing in place that provides financing for 80% of their
contract prices. In June 2016, we took delivery of Seven Seas Explorer. We have an additional Explorer Class Ship on order with Fincantieri shipyard with an original contract
price of approximately €422.0 million, or approximately $468.7 million based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. We have export credit financing in
place that provides financing for 80% of the contract price. The additional Explorer Class Ship is expected to be delivered in the winter of 2020.
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In connection with the contracts to build these ships, we do not anticipate any contractual breaches or cancellation to occur. However, if any would occur, it could result in,
among other things, the forfeiture of prior deposits or payments made by us, subject to certain refund guarantees, and potential claims and impairment losses which may
materially impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Capitalized interest for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 was $8.9 million and $16.0 million, respectively, and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 was
$7.4 million and $15.1 million, respectively, primarily associated with the construction of our Breakaway Plus Class Ships.

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
None.
Contractual Obligations

As of June 30, 2016, our contractual obligations with initial or remaining terms in excess of one year, including interest payments on long-term debt obligations, were as follows
(in thousands):

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-term debt (1) $ 6,681,472 § 581,804 $ 1,098,874 $ 3,347,485 $ 1,653,309
Operating leases (2) 154,896 13,857 29,326 28,997 82,716
Ship construction contracts (3) 3,212,792 951,838 1,113,418 1,147,536 —
Port facilities (4) 280,723 43,177 67,001 53,843 116,702
Interest (5) 1,008,903 211,013 383,754 252,439 161,697
Other (6) 158,625 56,370 48,848 29,985 23,422
Total $ 11497411 $ 1,858,059 $ 2741221 $ 4860285 $ 2,037,846

(1) Includes premiums aggregating $0.6 million. Also includes capital leases. The amount excludes deferred financing fees which are included in the consolidated balance sheets
as an offset to long-term debt.

(2) Primarily for offices, motor vehicles and office equipment.

(3) For our newbuild ships based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. Export credit financing is in place from syndicates of banks.

(4) Primarily for our usage of certain port facilities.

(5) Includes fixed and variable rates with LIBOR held constant as of June 30, 2016.

(6) Future commitments for service and maintenance contracts and other Business Enhancement Capital Expenditures.

The table above does not include $11.2 million of unrecognized tax benefits.

Other

Certain service providers may require collateral in the normal course of our business. The amount of collateral may change based on certain terms and conditions.

As a routine part of our business, depending on market conditions, exchange rates, pricing and our strategy for growth, we regularly consider opportunities to enter into contracts
for the building of additional ships. We may also consider the sale of ships, potential acquisitions and strategic alliances. If any of these were to occur, they may be financed
through the incurrence of additional permitted indebtedness, through cash flows from operations, or through the issuance of debt, equity or equity-related securities.

Funding Sources

Our debt agreements contain covenants that, among other things, require us to maintain a minimum level of liquidity, as well as limit our net funded debt-to-capital ratio,
maintain certain other ratios and restrict our ability to pay dividends. Our ships and substantially all other property and equipment are pledged as collateral for our debt. We
believe we were in compliance with these covenants as of June 30, 2016.

The impact of changes in world economies and especially the global credit markets has created a challenging environment and may reduce future consumer demand for cruises
and adversely affect our counterparty credit risks. In the event this environment deteriorates, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
impacted.

We believe our cash on hand, expected future operating cash inflows, additional available borrowings under our New Revolving Loan Facility and our ability to issue debt

securities or raise additional equity, will be sufficient to fund operations, debt payment requirements, capital expenditures and maintain compliance with covenants under our
debt agreements over the next twelve-month
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period. There is no assurance that cash flows from operations and additional financings will be available in the future to fund our future obligations.
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
General

We are exposed to market risk attributable to changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and fuel prices. We attempt to minimize these risks through a
combination of our normal operating and financing activities and through the use of derivatives. The financial impacts of these derivative instruments are primarily offset by
corresponding changes in the underlying exposures being hedged. We achieve this by closely matching the amount, term and conditions of the derivatives with the underlying
risk being hedged. We do not hold or issue derivatives for trading or other speculative purposes. Derivative positions are monitored using techniques including market
valuations and sensitivity analyses.

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2016, we had interest rate swap agreements to hedge our exposure to interest rate movements and to manage our interest expense. As of June 30, 2016, 55% of
our debt was fixed and 45% was variable, which includes the effects of the interest rate swaps. The notional amount of outstanding debt associated with the interest rate swap
agreements as of June 30, 2016 was $366.3 million. Based on our June 30, 2016 outstanding variable rate debt balance, a one percentage point increase in annual LIBOR
interest rates would increase our annual interest expense by approximately $30.1 million excluding the effects of capitalization of interest.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2016, we had foreign currency derivatives to hedge the exposure to volatility in foreign currency exchange rates related to our ship construction contracts
denominated in euros. These derivatives hedge the foreign currency exchange rate risk on a portion of the payments on our ship construction contracts. The payments not
hedged aggregate €506.4 million, or $562.4 million based on the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. We estimate that a 10% change in the euro as of June 30,
2016 would result in a $56.2 million change in the U.S. dollar value of the foreign currency denominated remaining payments.

Fuel Price Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in fuel prices relates to the forecasted purchases of fuel on our ships. Fuel expense, as a percentage of our total cruise operating expense,
was 11.4% and 14.0% for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and 11.8% and 14.0% for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
We use fuel derivative agreements to mitigate the financial impact of fluctuations in fuel prices and as of June 30, 2016, we had hedged approximately 88%, 82%, 55% and 50%
of our remaining 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 projected metric tons of fuel purchases, respectively. We estimate that a 10% increase in our weighted-average fuel price would
increase our anticipated 2016 fuel expense by $13.0 million. This increase would be partially offset by an increase in the fair value of our fuel swap agreements of $8.0 million.
Fair value of our derivative contracts is derived using valuation models that utilize the income valuation approach. These valuation models take into account the contract terms
such as maturity, as well as other inputs such as fuel types, fuel curves, creditworthiness of the counterparty and the Company, as well as other data points.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management has evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures,

as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e), as of June 30, 2016. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and
procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and
procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Based upon our management’s evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2016 to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended June 30, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls
It should be noted that any system of controls, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system

will be met. In addition, the design of any control system is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events. Because of these and other inherent
limitations of control systems, there is only the reasonable assurance that our controls will succeed in achieving their goals under all potential future conditions.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of our business, various claims and lawsuits have been filed or are pending against us. Most of these claims and lawsuits are covered by insurance and,
accordingly, the maximum amount of our liability is typically limited to our deductible amount.

Nonetheless, the ultimate outcome of these claims and lawsuits that are not covered by insurance cannot be determined at this time. We have evaluated our overall exposure
with respect to all of our threatened and pending litigation and, to the extent required, we have accrued amounts for all estimable probable losses associated with our deemed
exposure. We are currently unable to estimate any other potential contingent losses beyond those accrued, as discovery is not complete nor is adequate information available to
estimate such range of loss or potential recovery. We intend to vigorously defend our legal position on all claims and, to the extent necessary, seek recovery.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We refer you to our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of the risk factors that affect our business and financial results. We wish to caution the reader that the
risk factors discussed in “Item 1 A. Risk Factors” in our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K, elsewhere in this report or other Securities and Exchange Commission filings, could
cause future results to differ materially from those stated in any forward-looking statements.

Other than the risk factors set forth below, there have been no material changes to our risk factors disclosed in our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The first risk factor
below is an amended and restated version of a risk factor included in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Conducting business internationally may result in increased costs and risks.

We operate our business internationally and plan to continue to develop our international presence. Operating internationally exposes us to a number of risks, including political
risks, risks of increases in duties and taxes, risks relating to anti-bribery laws, as well as risks that laws and policies affecting cruising, vacation or maritime businesses, or
governing the operations of foreign-based companies may change. Additional risks include imposition of trade barriers, restrictions on repatriation of earnings, withholding and
other taxes on remittances and other payments by subsidiaries and changes in and application of foreign taxation structures, including value added taxes. If we are unable to
address these risks adequately, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Operating internationally also exposes us to numerous and sometimes conflicting legal and regulatory requirements. In many parts of the world, including countries in which we
operate, practices in the local business communities might not conform to international business standards. We have implemented safeguards and policies to prevent violations
of various anti-corruption laws that prohibit improper payments or offers of payments to foreign governments and their officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining
business by our employees and agents. However, our existing safeguards and policies and any future improvements may prove to be less than effective and our employees or
agents may engage in conduct prohibited by our policies, but for which we nevertheless may be held responsible. If our employees or agents violate our policies, if we fail to
maintain adequate record-keeping and internal accounting practices to accurately record our transactions or if we fail to implement or maintain other adequate safeguards, we
may be subject to regulatory sanctions or severe criminal or civil sanctions and penalties.

We have operations in and source passengers from the United Kingdom and other member countries of the European Union. On June 23, 2016, voters in the United Kingdom
approved an advisory referendum to withdraw from the European Union. The proposed withdrawal has resulted in increased volatility in the global financial markets and caused
severe volatility in global currency exchange rate fluctuations that resulted in the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies, such as the euro, in which we do
business. The proposed withdrawal could potentially adversely affect tax, legal and regulatory regimes to which our business in the region is subject. The withdrawal could also,
among other potential outcomes, disrupt the free movement of goods, services and people between the United Kingdom and the European Union. Further, uncertainty around
these issues could lead to adverse effects on the economy of the United Kingdom and the other economies in which we operate making it more difficult to source passengers
from these regions. These events could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

An impairment of our tradenames or goodwill could adversely affect our financial condition and operating results.

We evaluate tradenames and goodwill for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently when circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a reporting unit may not be
recoverable. Several factors including a challenging operating environment, impacts affecting consumer demand or spending, the deterioration of general macroeconomic
conditions, or other factors could result in a change to the future cash flows we expect to derive from our operations. Reductions of the cash flows used in the impairment
analyses may result in the recording of an impairment charge to a reporting unit’s tradename or goodwill. We will continue to monitor these intangible assets for potential
impairment and perform interim testing of our tradenames or goodwill as necessary.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

On April 29, 2014, NCLH’s Board of Directors authorized, and NCLH announced, a three-year share repurchase program for up to $500.0 million. NCLH may make
repurchases in the open market, in privately negotiated transactions, in accelerated repurchase programs or in structured share repurchase programs, and any repurchases may
be made pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plans. There was no share repurchase activity during the three months ended June 30, 2016 and as of June 30, 2016, $263.5 million remained
available for repurchases of our outstanding ordinary shares under the share repurchase program.

Item 6. Exhibits

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 2, 2014, by and among Prestige Cruises International, Inc., Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd., Portland
Merger Sub, Inc. and Apollo Management, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.’s Form 8-K filed on
September 4, 2014 (File No. 001-35784))

2.2 Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 6, 2014, by and among Prestige Cruises International, Inc., Norwegian Cruise Line
Holdings Ltd., Portland Merger Sub, Inc. and Apollo Management, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.’s
Form 8-K filed on October 8, 2014 (File No. 001-35784))

10.1* Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2016, by and among NCL Corporation Ltd., as borrower, Voyager Vessel Company, LLC, as
co-borrower, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and as collateral agent and a syndicate of other banks party thereto as joint bookrunners,
arrangers, co-documentation agents and lenders+

10.2 Amended and Restated 2013 Performance Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.’s Form 8-K
filed on May 24, 2016 (File No. 001-35784))#

31.1%* Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
31.2* Certification of the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
32.1%* Certifications of the President and Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code

101* The following unaudited financial statements are from Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016,
formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL), as follows:

1) the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015;

(i)  the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015;
(iii)  the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015;

(iv)  the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015;

(v)  the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015; and

(vi)  the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged in summary and detail.

* Filed herewith.

ok Furnished herewith.

+ Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

# Management contract or compensatory plan.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

NORWEGIAN CRUISE LINE HOLDINGS LTD.

(Registrant)

By: /s/ FRANK J. DEL RIO

Name: Frank J. Del Rio

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ WENDY A. BECK

Name: Wendy A. Beck

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Dated: August 9, 2016

32




Exhibit 10.1

[¥]: THE CONFIDENTIAL PORTION HAS BEEN OMITTED PURSUANT TO A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT AND THE OMITTED
MATERIAL HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE COMMISSION.

EXECUTION VERSION

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT
dated as of June 6, 2016,
among

NCL CORPORATION LTD.,
as Company,

VOYAGER VESSEL COMPANY, LLC,
as Co-Borrower,

THE LENDERS PARTY HERETO,

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent and as Collateral Agent

NORDEA BANK FINLAND PLC, NEW YORK BRANCH
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
DNB BANK ASA
FIFTH THIRD BANK
DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC.,

as Joint Bookrunners and Arrangers
and

SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN AB (PUBL)
HSBC BANK PLC
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.
COMMERZBANK AG
BNP PARIBAS
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC.

THE BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI UFJ, LTD.
CREDIT AGRICOLE CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK
MIZUHO BANK, LTD.,
as Co-Documentation Agents
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SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT dated as of June 6, 2016 (this “Agreement”), among NCL CORPORATION LTD., a Bermuda
company (“NCL” or the “Company”), Voyager Vessel Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the ‘Co-Borrower” and, together with the Company, the
“Borrowers”), the Subsidiary Guarantors party hereto (with respect to Section 1.04 only), the LENDERS party hereto from time to time, and JPIMORGAN CHASE BANK,

N.A., as administrative agent (in such capacity, together with its successors and assigns in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”) and as collateral agent (in such capacity,
together with its successors and assigns in such capacity, the “Collateral Agent”).

WHEREAS, the Company, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent are party to a credit agreement dated as of May 24, 2013, as amended and restated by the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of October 31, 2014 (as further amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified prior to the date hereof, the “Original
Credit Agreement”). The parties hereto have agreed to amend and restate in its entirety the Original Credit Agreement and replace it in its entirety with this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Lenders are willing to extend such credit to the Borrowers on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein.

Accordingly, the parties hereto agree as follows:
ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS
Section 1.01. Defined Terms. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below:

“ABR” shall mean, for any day, a rateper annum equal to the greatest of (a) the Prime Rate in effect on such day, (b) the NYFRB Rate in effect on such day plus % of
1% and (c) the Adjusted LIBO Rate for a one month Interest Period on such day (or if such day is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day) plus 1%,
provided that, the Adjusted LIBO Rate for any day shall be based on the LIBO Rate (after giving effect to any minimum rate set forth therein) at approximately 11:00 a.m.
London time on such day. Any change in the ABR due to a change in the Prime Rate, the NYFRB Rate or the Adjusted LIBO Rate shall be effective from and including the
effective date of such change in the Prime Rate, the NYFRB Rate or the Adjusted LIBO Rate, respectively.

“ABR Borrowing” shall mean a Borrowing comprised of ABR Loans.
“ABR Loan” shall mean any ABR Term Loan or ABR Revolving Loan.

“ABR Revolving Facility Borrowing” shall mean a Borrowing comprised of ABR Revolving Loans.




“ABR Revolving Loan” shall mean any Revolving Facility Loan bearing interest at a rate determined by reference to the ABR in accordance with the provisions of
Article II.

“ABR Term Loan” shall mean any Term Loan bearing interest at a rate determined by reference to the ABR in accordance with the provisions of Article II.
“Acquired Company” shall mean the Target, together with its Subsidiaries.
“Acquisition” means the acquisition of the Target by Holdings pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement.

“Acquisition Agreement” shall mean the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 2, 2014 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time), by and among Prestige Cruises International, Inc., Holdings, Portland Merger Sub, Inc. and Apollo Management, L.P.

“Acquisition Closing Date” means November 19, 2014.

¢

‘Acquisition Loans” shall mean the Term Loans borrowed on the Acquisition Closing Date.

“Acquisition Transactions” shall mean the Acquisition, the Refinancing, the issuance of the 5.25% Notes, the borrowing of the Acquisition Loans, the rollover (or
borrowing) of the Prestige Newbuild Debt and the payment of fees and expenses in connection therewith.

“Additional Subsidiary Guarantor” shall mean any Material Subsidiary that the Company has elected to have become a Subsidiary Guarantor; provided that if such
Material Subsidiary is organized in any jurisdiction where no existing Subsidiary Guarantor is organized, then such Material Subsidiary shall be reasonably satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent (it being understood that the Specified Target Subsidiaries are reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent).

“Additional Subsidiary Guarantor Accession Supplement” shall mean a supplement to the Collateral Agreement substantially in the form attached thereto.

“Adjusted LIBO Rate” shall mean, with respect to any Eurocurrency Borrowing for any Interest Period, an interest rate per annum equal to (a) the LIBO Rate for the
applicable Class of Loans in effect for such Interest Period divided by (b) one minus the Statutory Reserves applicable to such Eurocurrency Borrowing, if any.

“Adjustment Date” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of “Pricing Grid.”

«

Administrative Agent” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement;provided that, with respect to periods prior to
the First Restatement Effective Date (and the activities of the Former Agent prior to such date), such term shall refer to the Former Agent.




“Administrative Agent Fees” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.12(c).
“Administrative Questionnaire” shall mean an Administrative Questionnaire in the form of Exhibit B or such other form supplied by the Administrative Agent.

“Affiliate” shall mean, when used with respect to a specified person, another person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, Controls or is
Controlled by or is under common Control with the person specified.

“Affiliate Lender” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.21(a).

“Agents” shall mean the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Mortgage Trustee.

“Agreement” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Agreement Currency” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.19.

“All-in Yield” shall mean, as to any Indebtedness, the yield thereon as reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent, whether in the form of interest rate, margin,
original issue discount, up-front fees, rate floors or otherwise; provided that original issue discount and up-front fees shall be equated to interest rate assuming a 4-year life to

maturity (or, if less, the life of such Indebtedness); and provided further that “All-in Yield” shall not include arrangement, underwriting, structuring or similar fees paid to
arrangers for such Indebtedness and customary consent fees for an amendment paid generally to consenting Lenders.

“Amended Tax Agreements” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.06(b).

“AML Laws” means all laws, rules, and regulations of any jurisdiction applicable to any Lender, the Company or the Company’s Subsidiaries from time to time
concerning or relating to anti-money laundering.

“Anti-Corruption Laws” means all laws, rules, and regulations of any jurisdiction applicable to the Company or its Subsidiaries from time to time concerning or
relating to bribery or corruption.

“Applicable Commitment Fee” shall mean the Applicable Commitment Fee as determined pursuant to the Pricing Grid or, with respect to the Other Revolving Facility
Commitments, Replacement Revolving Facility Commitment, or Incremental Revolving Facility Commitments, the “Applicable Commitment Fee” set forth in the applicable
Incremental Assumption Agreement.

“Applicable Margin” shall mean for any day (i) with respect to any Term A Loan or any Revolving Facility Loan the applicable rate determined pursuant to the Pricing
Grid, (ii) with




respect to any Other Incremental Term Loan or Other Incremental Revolving Loan, the “Applicable Margin” set forth in the Incremental Assumption Agreement relating thereto
and (iii) with respect to any Refinancing Term Loan or Other Revolving Loan, the “Applicable Margin” set forth in the Incremental Assumption Agreement relating thereto.

“Applicable Ship Percentage” shall mean the fair market value of the applicable Mortgaged Vessel divided by the fair market value of all the Mortgaged Vessels (in
each case based on the most recent Valuation).

“Approved Broker” shall mean Brax Shipping AS; Barry Rogliano Salles S.A., Paris; Clarksons, London; Rocca & Partners S.R.L., Genova; Fearnsale, a division of
Astrup Fearnley AS, Oslo; any affiliate of the foregoing; or any other independent sale and purchase ship brokerage firm nominated by the Company and approved by the
Administrative Agent (such approval not to be withheld unreasonably).

“Approved Fund” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(b)(ii).

“Approved Insurance Evaluator” shall mean (a) BankAssure, a division of Aon Corporation, or (b) any other firm of established and reputable independent marine
insurance brokers or other professional advisors on insurance matters appointed by the Company and approved by the Administrative Agent (such approval not to be withheld
unreasonably), which other firm has not placed or otherwise acted on behalf of any of the Loan Parties in connection with any of the insurances to be covered within any
insurance report required under Section 5.12.

“Approved Manager” shall mean NCL (Bahamas) Ltd. d/b/a NCL, a company incorporated in and existing under the laws of Bermuda, or one or more affiliates of the
Company, or any other company approved by the Administrative Agent (such approval not to be withheld unreasonably) from time to time as the technical manager of one or
more of the Mortgaged Vessels.

“Arranger” shall mean, collectively, each entity listed as such on the cover of this Agreement, in its capacity as such.

“ASC” shall mean the Accounting Standards Codification of the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

“Asset Sale” shall mean any loss, damage, destruction or condemnation of, or any sale, transfer or other disposition (including any sale and lease-back of assets and
any mortgage or lease of Real Property) to any person of any asset or assets of the Borrowers or any Subsidiary Guarantor.

“Assignee” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(b)(i).

“Assignment and Acceptance” shall mean an assignment and acceptance entered into by a Lender and an Assignee, and accepted by the Administrative Agent and the
Company (if required by Section 10.04), in the form of Exhibit A or such other form as shall be approved by the Administrative Agent.




“Assignment Taxes” shall have the meaning given such term in the definition of the term “Other Taxes.”

“Assignor” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(b)(i).

“Availability Period” shall mean, with respect to any Class of Revolving Facility Commitments, the period from and including the Restatement Effective Date (or, if
later, the effective date for such Class of Revolving Facility Commitments) to but excluding the earlier of the Revolving Facility Maturity Date for such Class and, in the case of
each of the Revolving Facility Loans, Revolving Facility Borrowings and Letters of Credit, the date of termination of the Revolving Facility Commitments of such Class.

“Available Unused Commitment” shall mean, with respect to a Revolving Facility Lender under any Class of Revolving Facility Commitments at any time, an amount
equal to the amount by which (a) the applicable Revolving Facility Commitment of such Revolving Facility Lender at such time exceeds (b) the applicable Revolving Facility
Credit Exposure of such Revolving Facility Lender at such time.

“Bahamas” shall mean the Commonwealth of The Bahamas.

“Bail-In Action” shall mean the exercise of any Write-Down and Conversion Powers by the applicable EEA Resolution Authority in respect of any liability of an EEA
Financial Institution.

“Bail-In Legislation” shall mean, with respect to any EEA Member Country implementing Article 55 of Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the
Council of the European Union, the implementing law for such EEA Member Country from time to time which is described in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule.

“Below Threshold Asset Sale Proceeds” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of the term “Cumulative Credit.”

“Board” shall mean the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States of America.
“Borrower Materials” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.17.
“Borrowers” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Borrowing” shall mean a group of Loans of a single Type under a single Facility, and made on a single date and, in the case of Eurocurrency Loans, as to which a
single Interest Period is in effect.

“Borrowing Minimum” shall mean $3,000,000.
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Borrowing Multiple” shall mean $1,000,000.
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Borrowing Request” shall mean a request by the Company, in accordance with the terms of Section 2.03 and substantially in the form ofExhibit D-1.
“Budget” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.04(e).

“Business Day” shall mean any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in New York City, Oslo and Frankfurt are authorized or
required by law to remain closed; provided, that when used in connection with a Eurocurrency Loan, the term “Business Day” shall also exclude any day on which banks are not
open for dealings in deposits in Dollars in the London interbank market.

“Capital Lease Obligations” of any person shall mean the obligations of such person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or other arrangement conveying
the right to use) real or personal property, or a combination thereof, which obligations are required to be classified and accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such
person under GAAP and, for purposes of this Agreement, the amount of such obligations at any time shall be the capitalized amount thereof at such time determined in
accordance with GAAP.

“Cash Collateralize” shall mean to pledge and deposit with or deliver to the Collateral Agent, for the benefit of one or more of the Issuing Banks or Lenders, as
collateral for Revolving L/C Exposure or obligations of the Lenders to fund participations in respect of Revolving L/C Exposure, cash or deposit account balances or, if the
Collateral Agent and each Issuing Bank shall agree in their sole discretion, other credit support, in each case pursuant to documentation in form and substance satisfactory to the
Collateral Agent and each applicable Issuing Bank. “Cash Collateral” shall have a meaning correlative to the foregoing and shall include the proceeds of such cash collateral
and other credit support.

“Cash Interest Expense” shall mean, with respect to the Company and the Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis for any period, Interest Expense for such period, less the
sum of, without duplication, (a) pay in kind Interest Expense or other non-cash Interest Expense (including as a result of the effects of purchase accounting), (b) to the extent
included in Interest Expense, the amortization of any financing fees paid by, or on behalf of, the Company or any Subsidiary, including such fees paid in connection with the
Transactions, (c) the amortization of debt discounts, if any, or fees in respect of Swap Agreements and (d) cash interest income of the Company and the Subsidiaries for such
period; provided, that Cash Interest Expense shall exclude any one time financing fees, including those paid in connection with the Transactions, or any amendment of this
Agreement.

A “Change in Control” shall be deemed to occur if:

(a) (i) a majority of the seats (other than vacant seats) on the board of directors of the Company shall at any time be occupied by persons who were neither (A)
nominated by the board of directors of the Company or a Permitted Holder, (B) appointed or approved by directors so nominated nor (C) appointed by a Permitted Holder or
(ii) a “change of control” (or similar event) shall occur under any Permitted Ratio Debt, a Senior Unsecured Notes Indenture or any Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness in
respect of any of the foregoing or any Disqualified Stock;




(b) any person or “group” (within the meaning of Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 under the Exchange Act as in effect on the Closing Date), other than any combination of
the Permitted Holders or any “group” including any Permitted Holders, shall have acquired beneficial ownership of 35% or more on a fully diluted basis of the voting interest in
the Company’s Equity Interests and the Permitted Holders shall own, directly or indirectly, less than such person or “group” on a fully diluted basis of the voting interest in the
Company’s Equity Interests; or

() a “Change of Control” occurs, as such term is defined under the Senior Unsecured Notes Indentures.

“Change in Law” shall mean (a) the adoption of any law, rule or regulation after the Closing Date, (b) any change in law, rule or regulation or in the interpretation or
application thereof by any Governmental Authority after the Closing Date or (¢) compliance by any Lender or Issuing Bank (or, for purposes of Section 2.15(b), by any lending
office of such Lender or by such Lender’s or Issuing Bank’s holding company, if any) with any written request, guideline or directive (whether or not having the force of law) of
any Governmental Authority made or issued after the Closing Date; provided that notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, (x) the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act and all requests, rules, guidelines or directives thereunder or issued in connection therewith and (y) all requests, rules, guidelines or directives
promulgated by the Bank for International Settlements, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (or any successor or similar authority) or the United States or foreign
regulatory authorities, in each case pursuant to Basel II1, shall in each case be deemed to be a “Change in Law,” regardless of the date enacted, adopted or issued.

“Charges” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.08.

“Class” shall mean (a) when used in respect of any Loan or Borrowing, whether such Loan or the Loans comprising such Borrowing are Term A Loans, Refinancing
Term Loans, Other Incremental Term Loans, Revolving Facility Loans, Other Revolving Loans or Other Incremental Revolving Loans and (b) when used in respect of any
Commitment, whether such Commitment is a Term A Loan Commitment, a Revolving Facility Commitment, a Replacement Revolving Facility Commitment, an Other
Revolving Facility Commitment, an Other Incremental Revolving Loan Commitment, or an Incremental Term Loan Commitment.

“Classification Society” shall mean, in respect of any Mortgaged Vessel, Bureau Veritas, the American Bureau of Shipping, Lloyd’s Register of Shipping, Det norske
Veritas, or such other classification society that is a member of the International Association of Classification Societies (IACS) as selected by the Company that is reasonably
acceptable to the Administrative Agent.

“Closing Date” shall mean May 24, 2013.

“Co-Borrower” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.




“Co-Documentation Agents” shall mean, collectively, each entity listed as such on the cover of this Agreement, in its capacity as such.

“Collateral” shall mean all the “Collateral” as defined in any Security Document and shall also include the Mortgaged Vessels and all other property that is subject or
purported to be subject to any Lien in favor of the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent or any Subagent for the benefit of the Secured Parties pursuant to any Security
Documents.

“Collateral Agent” shall mean the Administrative Agent acting as collateral agent for the Secured Parties.
“Collateral Agent Fees” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.12(c).

“Collateral Agreement” shall mean the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date, as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time, among the Subsidiary Guarantors and the Collateral Agent.

“Collateral and Guarantee Requirement” shall mean the requirement that:

(a) (i) on the Closing Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received a counterpart of the Collateral Agreement duly executed and delivered on behalf of each of
the Subsidiary Guarantors and the Perfection Certificate duly executed and delivered on behalf of each Loan Party and (ii) on the Acquisition Closing Date, the Collateral Agent
shall have received a counterpart of an Additional Subsidiary Guarantor Accession Supplement duly executed and delivered on behalf of each of the Specified Target
Subsidiaries and a Perfection Certificate duly executed and delivered on behalf of each Specified Target Subsidiary;

(b) (1) on the Closing Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received (i) each Subsidiary Guarantor Pledge Agreement duly executed and delivered by each holder
of Equity Interests of the applicable Subsidiary Guarantor(s) (and, if required under the applicable governing law, the applicable Subsidiary Guarantor(s)), effecting pledges of
all the issued and outstanding Equity Interests of the Subsidiary Guarantors, together with (ii) all certificates or other instruments (if any) representing such Equity Interests,
together with stock powers or other instruments of transfer (if applicable under the applicable governing law) with respect thereto endorsed in blank and (ii) on the Acquisition
Closing Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received (i) each Subsidiary Guarantor Pledge Agreement duly executed and delivered by each holder of Equity Interests of the
applicable Specified Target Subsidiary (and, if required under the applicable governing law, the applicable Specified Target Subsidiary), effecting pledges of all the issued and
outstanding Equity Interests of the Specified Target Subsidiaries, together with (ii) all certificates or other instruments (if any) representing such Equity Interests, together with
stock powers or other instruments of transfer (if applicable under the applicable governing law) with respect thereto endorsed in blank;

(c) on the Closing Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received all Instruments (as defined in the Collateral Agreement) that are held by a Loan Party and
required to be pledged pursuant to the applicable Security Document, together with instruments of transfer with respect thereto endorsed in blank;




(d) on the Closing Date, except as otherwise contemplated by any Security Document, all documents and instruments, including Uniform Commercial Code
financing statements, filings with the United States Patent and Trademark Office and United States Copyright Office and similar filings, instruments and registrations in any
applicable jurisdiction, and all other actions required by law or reasonably requested by the Collateral Agent to be taken, filed, registered or recorded to create the Liens
intended to be created by the Security Documents (in each case, including any supplements thereto) and perfect such Liens to the extent required by, and with the priority
required by, the Security Documents, shall have been taken, filed, registered or recorded or delivered to the Collateral Agent for filing, registration or the recording concurrently
with, or promptly following, the execution and delivery of each such Security Document;

(e) except as otherwise contemplated by any Security Document, each Loan Party shall have obtained all consents and approvals required to be obtained by it in
connection with (i) the execution and delivery of all Security Documents (or supplements thereto) to which it is a party and the granting by it of the Liens thereunder and (ii) the
performance of its obligations thereunder;

63} (i) on the Closing Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received (x) counterparts of each Vessel Mortgage and Deed of Covenants to be entered into with
respect to each Mortgaged Vessel duly executed and delivered by the registered owner of such Mortgaged Vessel and suitable for registration, recording or filing and (y) such
other documents, including any consents, agreements and confirmations of third parties, as may be required under such Vessel Mortgage, Deed of Covenants or otherwise as the
Collateral Agent may reasonably request with respect to any such Vessel Mortgage, Deed of Covenants or Mortgaged Vessel and (ii) on the Acquisition Closing Date, the
Collateral Agent shall have received (x) counterparts of each Vessel Mortgage and Deed of Covenants to be entered into with respect to each Specified Target Mortgaged Vessel
duly executed and delivered by the registered owner of such Specified Target Mortgaged Vessel and suitable for registration, recording or filing and (y) such other documents,
including any consents, agreements and confirmations of third parties, as may be required under such Vessel Mortgage, Deed of Covenants or otherwise as the Collateral Agent
may reasonably request with respect to any such Vessel Mortgage, Deed of Covenants or Specified Target Mortgaged Vessel;

(2) (i) on the Closing Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received (x) counterparts of each Earnings Assignment to be entered into with respect to each
Mortgaged Vessel duly executed and delivered by the applicable Subsidiary Guarantor and (y) such other documents, including any consents, agreements and confirmations of
third parties, as may be required under such Earnings Assignment or otherwise as the Collateral Agent may reasonably request with respect to any such Earnings Assignment
and (ii) on the Acquisition Closing Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received (x) counterparts of each Earnings Assignment to be entered into with respect to each Specified
Target Mortgaged Vessel duly executed and delivered by the applicable Specified Target Subsidiary and (y) such other documents, including any consents, agreements and
confirmations of third parties, as may be required under such Earnings Assignment or otherwise as the Collateral Agent may reasonably request with respect to any such
Earnings Assignment;




(h) (i) on the Closing Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received (x) counterparts of (A) each Insurance Assignment to be entered into with respect to each
Mortgaged Vessel duly executed and delivered by the applicable Subsidiary Guarantor and (B) the Insurance Assignment to be entered into with respect to all of the Mortgaged
Vessels duly executed and delivered by the Company and (y) such other documents, including any consents, agreements and confirmations of third parties, as may be required
under such Insurance Assignment or otherwise as the Collateral Agent may reasonably request with respect to any such Insurance Assignment; (ii) on the Acquisition Closing
Date, the Collateral Agent shall have received (x) counterparts of (A) each Insurance Assignment to be entered into with respect to each Specified Target Mortgaged Vessel duly
executed and delivered by the applicable Specified Target Subsidiary and (B) the Insurance Assignment to be entered into with respect to all of the Specified Target Mortgaged
Vessels duly executed and delivered by the policy holder thereof and (y) such other documents, including any consents, agreements and confirmations of third parties, as may be
required under such Insurance Assignment or otherwise as the Collateral Agent may reasonably request with respect to any such Insurance Assignment;

@) in the case of any person that becomes an Additional Subsidiary Guarantor after the Closing Date (other than the Specified Target Subsidiaries, which are
addressed in clauses (a) and (b) above), (i) the Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent shall have received an Additional Subsidiary Guarantor Accession Supplement
duly executed on behalf of such Additional Subsidiary Guarantor and the Company and the other documents required by Section 5.10(c), and (ii) all the issued and outstanding
Equity Interests of such Additional Subsidiary Guarantor shall have been pledged pursuant to the Collateral Agreement, an existing Subsidiary Guarantor Pledge Agreement or
an additional Subsidiary Guarantor Pledge Agreement, as applicable, and the Collateral Agent shall have received all certificates or other instruments (if any) representing such
Equity Interests, together with stock powers or other instruments of transfer (if applicable under the applicable governing law) with respect thereto endorsed in blank;

1) after the Closing Date (or the Acquisition Closing Date in the case of the Specified Target Subsidiaries), (i) all the Equity Interests of each Subsidiary
Guarantor issued after the Closing Date (or the Acquisition Closing Date in the case of the Specified Target Subsidiaries) shall have been pledged pursuant to the applicable
Subsidiary Guarantor Pledge Agreement, and (ii) all other Equity Interests of any other Subsidiary that are acquired by a Subsidiary Guarantor after the Closing Date (or the
Acquisition Closing Date in the case of the Specified Target Subsidiaries) shall have been pledged pursuant to the Collateral Agreement, and the Collateral Agent shall have
received all certificates or other instruments (if any) representing such Equity Interests, together with stock powers or other instruments of transfer (if applicable under the
applicable governing law) with respect thereto endorsed in blank; and

(k) after the Closing Date (or the Acquisition Closing Date in the case of the Specified Target Subsidiaries), the Administrative Agent or the Collateral Agent (as
applicable) shall have received (i) such other Security Documents as may be required to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.10, and (ii) upon reasonable request by the

Administrative Agent or the Collateral Agent (as applicable), evidence of compliance with any other requirements of Section 5.10.

“Commitment Fee” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.12(a).
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“Commitments” shall mean with respect to any Lender, such Lender’s Revolving Facility Commitment (including any Incremental Revolving Facility Commitment,
Replacement Revolving Facility Commitment, and Other Revolving Facility Commitment), Term A Loan Commitment or Incremental Term Loan Commitment.

“Company” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.

“Conduit Lender” shall mean any special purpose corporation organized and administered by any Lender for the purpose of making Loans otherwise required to be
made by such Lender and designated by such Lender in a written instrument; provided, that the designation by any Lender of a Conduit Lender shall not relieve the designating
Lender of any of its obligations to fund a Loan under this Agreement if, for any reason, its Conduit Lender fails to fund any such Loan, and the designating Lender (and not the
Conduit Lender) shall have the sole right and responsibility to deliver all consents and waivers required or requested under this Agreement with respect to its Conduit Lender;
provided, further, that no Conduit Lender shall (a) be entitled to receive any greater amount pursuant to Sections 2.15, 2.16, 2.17 or 10.05 than the designating Lender would
have been entitled to receive in respect of the extensions of credit made by such Conduit Lender, unless the grant of the Loan to such Conduit Lender is made with the
Company’s prior written consent (not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) or (b) be deemed to have any Commitment.

“Consolidated Debt” at any date shall mean the sum of (without duplication) all Indebtedness (other than letters of credit, to the extent undrawn) consisting of Capital
Lease Obligations, Indebtedness for borrowed money and Disqualified Stock of the Company and the Subsidiaries determined on a consolidated basis on such date in
accordance with GAAP.

“Consolidated Debt Service” shall mean, with respect to the Company and the Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis for any period, Cash Interest Expense for such
period plus scheduled principal amortization of Consolidated Debt for such period (it being understood that scheduled principal amortization does not include balloon payments
(for purposes of this definition, “balloon payments” shall not include any scheduled repayment installment of such Indebtedness for borrowed money which forms part of the
balloon) or any prepayments).

“Consolidated Net Income” shall mean, with respect to any person for any period, the aggregate of the Net Income of such person and its subsidiaries for such period,
on a consolidated basis; provided, however, that, without duplication:

(a) any net after tax extraordinary, nonrecurring or unusual gains or losses or income or expense or charge (less all fees and expenses relating thereto) including,
without limitation, any severance, relocation or other restructuring expenses, and fees, expenses or charges related to any offering of Equity Interests, any Investment,
acquisition (including the Acquisition) or Indebtedness permitted to be incurred hereunder (in each case, whether or not successful), including any such fees, expenses or
charges related to the Transactions, in each case, shall be excluded,




(b) any net after-tax income or loss from discontinued operations and any net after-tax gain or loss on disposal of discontinued operations shall be excluded,

() any net after-tax gain or loss (less all fees and expenses or charges relating thereto) attributable to business dispositions or asset dispositions other than in the
ordinary course of business (as determined in good faith by the board of directors of the Company) shall be excluded,

(d) any net after-tax income or loss (less all fees and expenses or charges relating thereto) attributable to the early extinguishment of indebtedness shall be
excluded,

(e) (i) the Net Income for such period of any person that is not a subsidiary of such person, or is an Unrestricted Subsidiary or that is accounted for by the equity
method of accounting, shall be included only to the extent of the amount of dividends or distributions or other payments paid in cash (or to the extent converted into cash) to the
referent person or a subsidiary thereof in respect of such period and (ii) the Net Income for such period shall include any ordinary course dividend, distribution or other payment
in cash received from any person in excess of the amounts included in clause (i),

® Consolidated Net Income for such period shall not include the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principles during such period,

(2 any increase in amortization or depreciation or any non-cash charges or increases or reductions in Net Income resulting from purchase accounting in
connection with the Transactions or any acquisition (including the Acquisition) that is consummated on or after the Closing Date shall be excluded,

(h) any non-cash impairment charges resulting from the application of ASC 350 and ASC 360, and the amortization of intangibles and other fair value
adjustments arising pursuant to ASC 805, shall be excluded,

@) any non-cash expenses realized or resulting from employee benefit plans or post-employment benefit plans, grants of stock appreciation or similar rights,
stock options, restricted stock grants or other rights to officers, directors and employees of such person or any of its subsidiaries shall be excluded,

1) accruals and reserves that are established within twelve months after the Closing Date and that are so required to be established in accordance with GAAP
shall be excluded; provided that to the extent (i) any such accrual or reserve is later reduced or eliminated or (ii) any cash expenditure is later incurred with respect to such
accrual or reserve, then in each case a corresponding amount shall be included in Consolidated Net Income in the same period,

k) non-cash gains, losses, income and expenses resulting from fair value accounting required by ASC 815 shall be excluded,

(1) any gain, loss, income, expense or charge resulting from the application of last in first out accounting shall be excluded,
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(m) currency translation gains and losses related to currency re-measurements of Indebtedness, and any net loss or gain resulting from Swap Agreements for

currency exchange risk, shall be excluded,

(n) to the extent covered by insurance and actually reimbursed, or, so long as such person has made a determination that there exists reasonable evidence that
such amount will in fact be reimbursed by the insurer and only to the extent that such amount is (i) not denied by the applicable carrier in writing within 180 days and (ii) in fact
reimbursed within 365 days of the date of such evidence (with a deduction for any amount so added back to the extent not so reimbursed within 365 days), expenses with respect
to liability or casualty events or business interruption shall be excluded; provided that any proceeds of such reimbursement when received shall be excluded from the calculation
of Consolidated Net Income to the extent the expense reimbursed was previously excluded pursuant to this clause (n), and

(0) non-cash charges for deferred tax asset valuation allowances shall be excluded.

“Consolidated Total Assets” shall mean, as of any date, the total assets of the Company and the Subsidiaries, determined on a consolidated basis in accordance with
GAAP, as set forth on the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of such date.

“Control” shall mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of a person, whether through the
ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise, and “Controlling” and “Controlled” shall have meanings correlative thereto.

“Control Agreement” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Collateral Agreement.

“Co-Syndication Agents” shall mean, collectively, each entity listed as such on the cover of this Agreement, in its capacity as such.

“Credit Event” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Article I'V.

“Cumulative Credit” shall mean, at any date, an amount, not less than zero in the aggregate, determined on a cumulative basis equal to, without duplication:
(a) $[*], plus:

(b) an amount (which amount shall not be less than zero) equal to [*]% of the Consolidated Net Income of the Company for the period (taken as one accounting
period) from June 30, 2009 to the end of the Company’s most recently ended fiscal quarter for which internal financial statements are available at such date, plus

() the aggregate amount of proceeds received after the Closing Date and prior to such time that would have constituted Net Proceeds pursuant to clause (a) of the
definition thereof except for the operation of clause (x) or (y) of the second proviso thereof (the “Below Threshold Asset Sale Proceeds”), plus
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(d) the cumulative amount of proceeds (including cash and the fair market value of property other than cash) from the sale of Equity Interests of a Parent Entity
after the Closing Date and on or prior to such time (including upon exercise of warrants or options) which proceeds have been contributed as common equity to the capital of
the Company and common Equity Interests of the Company issued upon conversion of Indebtedness (other than Indebtedness that is contractually subordinated to the
Obligations) of the Company or any Subsidiary owed to a person other than the Company or a Subsidiary not previously applied for a purpose other than use in the Cumulative
Credit; provided, that this clause (d) shall exclude Permitted Cure Securities and the proceeds thereof, sales of Equity Interests financed as contemplated by Section 6.04(d) and
any amounts used to finance the payments or distributions in respect of any Junior Financing pursuant to Section 6.09(b), plus

(e) [*¥1% of the aggregate amount of contributions to the common capital of the Company received in cash (and the fair market value of property other than cash)
after the Closing Date (subject to the same exclusions as are applicable to clause (d) above); plus

® the principal amount of any Indebtedness (including the liquidation preference or maximum fixed repurchase price, as the case may be, of any Disqualified
Stock) of the Company or any Subsidiary thereof issued after the Closing Date (other than Indebtedness issued to a Subsidiary), which has been converted into or exchanged for
Equity Interests (other than Disqualified Stock) in any Parent Entity, plus

(2) [*]% of the aggregate amount received by the Company or any Subsidiary in cash (and the fair market value of property other than cash received by the
Company or any Subsidiary) after the Closing Date from:

(A) the sale (other than to the Company or any Subsidiary) of the Equity Interests of an Unrestricted Subsidiary, or

(B) any dividend or other distribution by an Unrestricted Subsidiary,plus

(h) in the event any Unrestricted Subsidiary has been redesignated as a Subsidiary or has been merged, consolidated or amalgamated with or into, or transfers or
conveys its assets to, or is liquidated into, the Company or any Subsidiary, the fair market value of the Investments of the Company or any Subsidiary in such Unrestricted

Subsidiary at the time of such redesignation, combination or transfer (or of the assets transferred or conveyed, as applicable), plus

@) an amount equal to any returns (including dividends, interest, distributions, returns of principal, profits on sale, repayments, income and similar amounts)
actually received by the Company or any Subsidiary in respect of any Investments made pursuant to Section 6.04(i), minus

1) any amounts thereof used to make Investments pursuant to Section 6.04(a)(y) after the Closing Date prior to such timeminus
k) any amounts thereof used to make Investments pursuant to Section 6.04(i)(2) after the Closing Date prior to such timeminus
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0] the cumulative amount of dividends paid and distributions made pursuant to Section 6.06(e) prior to such time,minus

(m) payments or distributions in respect of Junior Financings pursuant to Section 6.09(b)(i) (other than payments made with proceeds from the issuance of Equity
Interests that were excluded from the calculation of the Cumulative Credit pursuant to clause (d) above);

provided, however, for purposes of Section 6.06(e), the calculation of the Cumulative Credit shall not include any Below Threshold Asset Sale Proceeds except to the extent
they are used as contemplated in clauses (j) and (k) above.

“Cure Amount” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 8.02(c).

“Cure Collateral Fair Market Value” shall mean, when determining the value to be ascribed to any property added as Collateral pursuant to Section 8.02(a), (a) for any
cash or Permitted Investments added as Collateral pursuant to Section 8.02(a), the Dollar Equivalent thereof as of any date of determination or (b) for any other property added
as Collateral pursuant to Section 8.02(a), the Administrative Agent’s determination (in its reasonable judgment) of the price at which a willing buyer would purchase, were it to
purchase, such other property in an arm’s-length transaction for all cash consideration on the date such property is added as Collateral pursuant to Section 8.02(a).

“Cure Right” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 8.02(c).

“Debtor Relief Laws” shall mean the Bankruptcy Code of the United States of America, and all other liquidation, conservatorship, bankruptcy, assignment for the
benefit of creditors, moratorium, rearrangement, receivership, insolvency, reorganization, or similar debtor relief laws of the United States or other applicable jurisdictions from
time to time in effect.

“Declined Proceeds” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.10(c)(ii).

“Declining Lender” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.10(c)(ii).

“Deed of Covenants” shall mean each deed of covenants collateral to a Vessel Mortgage, each substantially in the form of Exhibit G-1 or Exhibit G-2 or otherwise
reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

“Default” shall mean any event or condition that upon notice, lapse of time or both would constitute an Event of Default.
“Defaulting Lender” shall mean, subject to Section 2.22, any Lender that (a) has failed to (i) fund all or any portion of its Loans within two Business Days of the date
such Loans were required to be funded hereunder unless such Lender notifies the Administrative Agent and the Company in writing that such failure is the result of such

Lender’s determination that one or more conditions precedent to funding (each of which conditions precedent, together with any applicable default, shall be specifically
identified in such writing) has not been satisfied, or (ii) pay to the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any other Lender any other amount required to
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be paid by it hereunder (including in respect of its participation in Letters of Credit) within two Business Days of the date when due, (b) has notified the Company, the
Administrative Agent or any Issuing Bank in writing that it does not intend to comply with its funding obligations hereunder, or has made a public statement to that effect
(unless such writing or public statement relates to such Lender’s obligation to fund a Loan hereunder and states that such position is based on such Lender’s determination that a
condition precedent to funding (which condition precedent, together with any applicable default, shall be specifically identified in such writing or public statement) cannot be
satisfied), (c) has failed, within three Business Days after written request by the Administrative Agent or the Company, to confirm in writing to the Administrative Agent and the
Company that it will comply with its prospective funding obligations hereunder (provided that such Lender shall cease to be a Defaulting Lender pursuant to this clause (c)
upon receipt of such written confirmation by the Administrative Agent and the Company) or (d) has, or has a direct or indirect parent company that has, (i) become the subject
of a proceeding under any Debtor Relief Law, (ii) had appointed for it a receiver, custodian, conservator, trustee, administrator, assignee for the benefit of creditors or similar
person charged with reorganization or liquidation of its business or assets, including the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other state or federal regulatory authority
acting in such a capacity or (iii) becomes the subject of a Bail-In Action; provided that a Lender shall not be a Defaulting Lender solely by virtue of the ownership or acquisition
of any equity interest in that Lender or any direct or indirect parent company thereof by a Governmental Authority so long as such ownership interest does not result in or
provide such Lender with immunity from the jurisdiction of courts within the United States or from the enforcement of judgments or writs of attachment on its assets or permit
such Lender (or such Governmental Authority) to reject, repudiate, disavow or disaffirm any contracts or agreements made with such Lender. Any determination by the
Administrative Agent that a Lender is a Defaulting Lender under any one or more of clauses (a) through (d) above shall be conclusive and binding absent manifest error, and
such Lender shall be deemed to be a Defaulting Lender (subject to Section 2.22) as of the date established therefor by the Administrative Agent in a written notice of such
determination, which shall be delivered by the Administrative Agent to the Company, each Issuing Bank, and each Lender promptly following such determination.

“Designated Non-Cash Consideration” shall mean the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the Company) of non-cash consideration received by the
Company or one of its Subsidiaries in connection with an Asset Sale that is so designated as Designated Non-Cash Consideration pursuant to a certificate of a Responsible
Officer of the Company, setting forth such valuation, less the amount of cash or cash equivalents received in connection with a subsequent disposition of such Designated Non-
Cash Consideration.

“Disqualified Institutions” shall mean (a) those banks, financial institutions and other persons separately identified in writing to the Administrative Agent on or prior to
October 9, 2014 and their affiliates (i) that are reasonably identifiable on the basis of their names or (ii) that have been identified in writing to the Administrative Agent by the
Company from time to time and (b) competitors (which term shall exclude bona fide banks and institutional debt investors) of the Company and its Subsidiaries separately
identified in writing to the Administrative Agent from time to time and their affiliates that are reasonably identifiable on the basis of their names (other than, in the case of this
clause (b), bona fide banks and institutional debt investors).




“Disqualified Stock” shall mean, with respect to any person, any Equity Interest of such person that, by its terms (or by the terms of any security or other Equity
Interests into which it is convertible or for which it is exchangeable), or upon the happening of any event or condition, (a) matures or is mandatorily redeemable (other than
solely for Qualified Equity Interests), pursuant to a sinking fund obligation or otherwise (except as a result of a change of control or asset sale so long as any rights of the
holders thereof upon the occurrence of a change of control or asset sale event shall be subject to the prior repayment in full of the Loans and all other Obligations that are
accrued and payable and the termination of the Commitments), (b) is redeemable at the option of the holder thereof (other than solely for Qualified Equity Interests), in whole or
in part, (c) provides for the scheduled payments of dividends in cash or (d) is or becomes convertible into or exchangeable for Indebtedness or any other Equity Interests that
would constitute Disqualified Stock, in each case, prior to the date that is ninety-one (91) days after the Latest Maturity Date; provided, however, that only the portion of the
Equity Interests that so mature or are mandatorily redeemable, are so convertible or exchangeable or are so redeemable at the option of the holder thereof prior to such date shall
be deemed to be Disqualified Stock; provided, further, however, that if such Equity Interest is issued to any employee or to any plan for the benefit of employees of the
Company or the Subsidiaries or by any such plan to such employees, such Equity Interests shall not constitute Disqualified Stock solely because they may be required to be
repurchased by the Company or any Subsidiary in order to satisfy applicable statutory or regulatory obligations or as a result of such employee’s termination, death or disability;
provided further, however, that, with respect to clause (d) above, Equity Interests constituting Qualified Equity Interests when issued shall not cease to constitute Qualified
Equity Interests as a result of the subsequent extension of the Latest Maturity Date.

“Dollar Equivalent” shall mean, at any time, (a) with respect to any amount denominated in Dollars, such amount, and (b) with respect to any amount denominated in
any currency other than Dollars, the equivalent amount thereof in Dollars as determined by the Administrative Agent at such time on the basis of the Spot Rate (determined in
respect of the applicable date of determination) for the purchase of Dollars with such currency.

“Dollars” or “$” shall mean the lawful currency of the United States of America.

“Earnings Assignments” shall mean, collectively, each of the first priority collateral assignments of earnings entered into by each Subsidiary Guarantor in favor of the
Collateral Agent in respect of a Mortgaged Vessel, each in substantially the form of Exhibit H or otherwise reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

“EBITDA” shall mean, with respect to Company and the Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis for any period, the Consolidated Net Income of the Company and the

Subsidiaries for such period plus (a) the sum of (in each case without duplication and to the extent the respective amounts described in subclauses (i) through (vi) of this clause
(a) reduced such Consolidated Net Income (and were not excluded therefrom) for the respective period for which EBITDA is being determined):

17




1) provision for Taxes (including without duplication, Tax distributions) based on income, profits or capital of the Company and the Subsidiaries for such period,
including, without limitation, state, franchise and similar taxes,

(ii) Interest Expense (and to the extent not included in Interest Expense, (x) all cash dividend payments (excluding items eliminated in consolidation) on any series
of preferred stock or Disqualified Stock and (y) costs of surety bonds in connection with financing activities) of the Company and the Subsidiaries for such period (net of
interest income of the Company and the Subsidiaries for such period),

(iii) depreciation and amortization expenses of the Company and the Subsidiaries for such period,

@iv) business optimization expenses and other restructuring charges (which, for the avoidance of doubt, shall include, without limitation, the effect of optimization
programs, facility closures, retention, severance, systems establishment costs and excess pension charges); provided that with respect to each business optimization
expense or other restructuring charge, the Company shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent an officers’ certificate specifying and quantifying such expense or
charge,

W) any other non-cash charges; provided that, for purposes of this subclause (v) of this clause (a), any non-cash charges or losses shall be treated as cash charges or
losses in any subsequent period during which cash disbursements attributable thereto are made,

(vi) the amount of management, consulting, monitoring, transaction and advisory fees and related expenses paid to any Affiliate (or any accruals related to such fees
and related expenses) during such period not in contravention of this Agreement, and

minus (b) the sum of (without duplication and to the extent the amounts described in this clause (b) increased such Consolidated Net Income for the respective period for which
EBITDA is being determined) non-cash items increasing Consolidated Net Income of the Company and the Subsidiaries for such period (but excluding any such items (i) in
respect of which cash was received in a prior period or will be received in a future period or (ii) which represent the reversal of any accrual of, or cash reserve for, anticipated
cash charges in any prior period).

“EEA Financial Institution” shall mean (a) any credit institution or investment firm established in any EEA Member Country which is subject to the supervision of an
EEA Resolution Authority, (b) any entity established in an EEA Member Country which is a parent of an institution described in clause (a) of this definition, or (c) any
financial institution established in an EEA Member Country which is a subsidiary of an institution described in clauses (a) or (b) of this definition and is subject to consolidated
supervision with its parent;

“EEA Member Country” shall mean any of the member states of the European Union, Iceland, Liechtenstein, and Norway.
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“EEA Resolution Authority” shall mean any public administrative authority or any person entrusted with public administrative authority of any EEA Member Country
(including any delegee) having responsibility for the resolution of any EEA Financial Institution.

“environment” shall mean ambient and indoor air, surface water and groundwater (including potable water, navigable water and wetlands), the land surface or
subsurface strata, natural resources such as flora and fauna, the workplace or as otherwise defined in any Environmental Law.

“Environmental Claim” shall mean any and all actions, suits, orders, demands, directives, claims, liens, request for information, investigations, proceedings or notices
of noncompliance or violation by or from any person alleging liability of whatever kind or nature arising out of, based on or resulting from (i) the presence or Release of, or
exposure to, any Hazardous Materials at any location; or (ii) circumstances forming the basis of any violation, or alleged violation, of any Environmental Law (including any
matters related to compliance with OPA 90).

“Environmental Law” shall mean any applicable law, regulation, rule or ordinance, order, decree, judgment, injunction, or other legally binding requirement or
agreement issued, promulgated or entered into by any Governmental Authority, relating to pollution or protection of the environment, or health and safety, including laws
relating to Releases or threatened Releases of Hazardous Materials into the environment or otherwise relating to Hazardous Materials.

“Environmental Liability” shall mean any loss or liability (including any liability for damages, costs of remediation, fines, penalties or indemnities), of any Loan Party
directly or indirectly resulting from or based on: (a) any actual or alleged violation of any Environmental Law; (b) the generation, use, handling, transportation, storage,
treatment or disposal of any Hazardous Material; (c) exposure to any Hazardous Material; (d) any actual or alleged Release or threatened Release of any Hazardous Material; or
(e) any Environmental Claim that relates to or is based upon the operation of any Mortgaged Vessel, including Environmental Claims based on indemnities or other contractual
undertakings.

“Environmental Permits” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.16.
“Equity Interests” of any person shall mean any and all shares, interests, rights to purchase or otherwise acquire, warrants, options, participations or other equivalents
of or interests in (however designated) equity or ownership of such person, including any preferred stock, any limited or general partnership interest and any limited liability

company membership interest, and any securities or other rights or interests convertible into or exchangeable for any of the foregoing.

“ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as the same may be amended from time to time and any final regulations promulgated
and the rulings issued thereunder.

“ERISA Affiliate” shall mean any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that, together with any Loan Party or a Subsidiary, is treated as a single employer
under Section




414(b) or (c) of the Code, or, solely for purposes of Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the Code, is treated as a single employer under Section 414 of the Code.

“ERISA Event” shall mean (a) any Reportable Event or the requirements of Section 4043(b) of ERISA apply with respect to a Plan; (b) with respect to any Plan, the
failure to satisfy the minimum funding standard under Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA, whether or not waived; (c) the filing pursuant to Section 412(c) of the
Code or Section 302(c) of ERISA of an application for a waiver of the minimum funding standard with respect to any Plan, the failure to make by its due date a required
installment under Section 430(j) of the Code with respect to any Plan or the failure to make any required contribution to a Multiemployer Plan; (d) the incurrence by the
Company, any Subsidiary or any ERISA Affiliate of any liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect to the termination of any Plan or Multiemployer Plan; (e) the receipt by
the Company, a Subsidiary or any ERISA Affiliate from the PBGC or a plan administrator of any notice relating to an intention to terminate any Plan or to appoint a trustee to
administer any Plan under Section 4042 of ERISA; (f) the incurrence by the Company, a Subsidiary or any ERISA Affiliate of any liability with respect to the withdrawal or
partial withdrawal from any Plan or Multiemployer Plan; (g) the receipt by the Company, a Subsidiary or any ERISA Affiliate of any notice, or the receipt by any
Multiemployer Plan from the Company, a Subsidiary or any ERISA Affiliate of any notice, concerning the impending imposition of Withdrawal Liability or a determination
that a Multiemployer Plan is, or is expected to be, insolvent or in reorganization, within the meaning of Title IV of ERISA, or in “endangered” or “critical” status, within the
meaning of Section 432 of the Code or Section 305 of ERISA; (h) the conditions for imposition of a lien under ERISA shall have been met with respect to any Plan; (i) with
respect to a Plan, the provision of security pursuant to Section 206(g) of ERISA; (j) a determination that any Plan is, or is expected to be, in “at-risk” status (as defined in Section
303(1)(4) of ERISA or Section 430(i)(4) of the Code); or (k) the withdrawal of the Company, any Subsidiary or any ERISA Affiliate from a Plan subject to Section 4063 of
ERISA during a plan year in which such entity was a “substantial employer” as defined in Section 4001(a)(2) of ERISA or a cessation of operations that is treated as such a
withdrawal under Section 4062(e) of ERISA.

“EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule” shall mean the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule published by the Loan Market Association (or any successor person), as in effect
from time to time.

“Eurocurrency Borrowing” shall mean a Borrowing comprised of Eurocurrency Loans.
“Eurocurrency Loan” shall mean any Eurocurrency Term Loan or Eurocurrency Revolving Loan.
“Eurocurrency Revolving Facility Borrowing” shall mean a Borrowing comprised of Eurocurrency Revolving Loans.

“Eurocurrency Revolving Loan” shall mean any Revolving Facility Loan bearing interest at a rate determined by reference to the Adjusted LIBO Rate in accordance
with the provisions of Article II.

“Eurocurrency Term Loan” shall mean any Term Loan bearing interest at a rate determined by reference to the Adjusted LIBO Rate in accordance with the provisions
of Article II.
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“European Union” shall mean the political and economic community of twenty-seven member states as of January 1, 2007 (and all additional member states that
accede thereto thereafter in accordance with applicable laws of the European Union) with supranational and intergovernmental features, located in Europe.

“Event of Default” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 8.01.

“Event of Loss” shall mean any of the following events: (a) the actual or constructive total loss or the arranged or compromised total loss of a Mortgaged Vessel or (b)
the capture, condemnation, confiscation, requisition, purchase, sale, seizure or forfeiture of, or any taking of title to, a Mortgaged Vessel. An Event of Loss shall be deemed to
have occurred (i) in the event of an actual loss of a Mortgaged Vessel, at noon Greenwich Mean Time on the date of such loss, or if that is not known, on the date which such
Mortgaged Vessel was last heard from, (ii) in the event of damage which results in a constructive or compromised or arranged total loss of a Mortgaged Vessel, at noon
Greenwich Mean Time on the date of the event giving rise to such damage, or (iii) in the case of an event referred to in clause (b) above, at noon Greenwich Mean Time on the
date on which such event is expressed to take effect by the person making the same.

“Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
“Excluded Indebtedness” shall mean all Indebtedness permitted to be incurred under Section 6.01 (other than Section 6.01(z)).

“Excluded Taxes” shall mean, with respect to the Administrative Agent, any Lender, any Issuing Bank or any other recipient of any payment to be made by or on
account of any obligation of any Loan Party hereunder or under any other Loan Document, (a) Taxes imposed on or measured by its overall net income or branch profits
(however denominated, and including (for the avoidance of doubt) any backup withholding in respect thereof under Section 3406 of the Code or any similar provision of state,
local or foreign law), and franchise (and similar) Taxes imposed on it (in lieu of net income Taxes), in each case by a jurisdiction (including any political subdivision thereof) as
a result of such recipient being organized in, having its principal office in, or in the case of any Lender, having its applicable lending office in, such jurisdiction, or as a result of
any other present or former connection with such jurisdiction (other than any such connection arising solely from this Agreement or any other Loan Documents or any
transactions contemplated thereunder), (b) U.S. federal withholding Tax imposed on any payment by or on account of any obligation of any Loan Party hereunder or under any
other Loan Document that is required to be imposed on amounts payable to a Lender (other than to the extent such Lender is an assignee pursuant to a request by the Company
under Section 2.19) pursuant to laws in force at the time such Lender becomes a party hereto (or designates a new lending office), except to the extent that such Lender (or its
assignor, if any) was entitled, immediately prior to the designation of a new lending office (or assignment), to receive additional amounts or indemnification payments from any
Loan Party with respect to such withholding Tax pursuant to Section 2.17, (¢) any withholding Tax imposed on any payment by or on account of any obligation of any Loan
Party hereunder or under any other Loan Document that is attributable to the Administrative Agent’s, any Lender’s or any other recipient’s failure to comply with
Section 2.17(e), or (d) any U.S. federal withholding Tax imposed under FATCA.
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“Existing Commitments” means all outstanding “Revolving Facility Commitments” under the Original Credit Agreement immediately prior to the Restatement

Effective Date.

“Existing Letters of Credif” means the Letters of Credit outstanding under the Original Credit Agreement immediately prior to the Restatement Effective Date.

“Existing Loans” means all outstanding “Term A Loans”, “Term B Loans”, “Revolving Facility Loans” and “Swingline Loans” under and as defined in the Original
Credit Agreement immediately prior to the Restatement Effective Date.

“Extended Revolving Facility Commitment” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(e).

“Extended Term Loan” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(e).

“Extending I ender” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(e).
“Extension” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(e).
“Facility” shall mean the respective facility and commitments utilized in making any Class of Loans and Extensions thereunder.

“EATCA?” shall mean Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, as of the date of this Agreement (or any amended or successor version that is substantively comparable
and not materially more onerous to comply with), any Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder or official administrative interpretations thereof and any agreements entered
into pursuant to current Section 1471(b)(1) of the Code (or any amended or successor version described above) or any intergovernmental agreement (and any related laws or

legislation) implementing the foregoing.

“Federal Funds Effective Rate” shall mean, for any day, the rate calculated by the NYFRB based on such day’s federal funds transactions by depositary institutions, as
determined in such manner as the NYFRB shall set forth on its public website from time to time, and published on the next succeeding Business Day by the NYFRB as the

federal funds effective rate.

“Fees” shall mean the Commitment Fees, the L/C Participation Fees, the Issuing Bank Fees, the Administrative Agent Fees and the Collateral Agent Fees.
“Financial Officer” of any person shall mean the Chief Financial Officer, principal accounting officer, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer or Controller of such person.

“First Lien Intercreditor Agreement” shall mean an Intercreditor Agreement between the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the authorized representative
named therein for the Senior Secured Notes, substantially in the form of Exhibit K-2, with such changes that are reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

“First Restatement Effective Date” shall mean November 6, 2014.

“First Valuation” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.16.
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“Fiscal Year” shall mean the fiscal year of the Company and the Subsidiaries ending on December 3 1t of each calendar year or such other calendar date as notified by
the Company to the Administrative Agent.

“Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio” shall mean, with respect to any person for any period, the ratio of EBITDA of such person for such period to the Fixed Charges (other
than Fixed Charges in respect of Indebtedness that is non-recourse to the Loan Parties) of such person for such period.

“Fixed Charges” shall mean, with respect to any person for any period, the sum, without duplication, of:
(a) Interest Expense of such person for such period, and
(b) all cash dividend payments (excluding items eliminated in consolidation) on any series of Disqualified Stock of such person and its Subsidiaries.

“Foreign Lender” shall mean any Lender (a) that is not disregarded as separate from its owner for U.S. federal income tax purposes and that is not a “United States
person” as defined by Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code or (b) that is disregarded as separate from its owner for U.S. federal income tax purposes and whose regarded owner is
not a “United States person” as defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code.

“Foreign Subsidiary” shall mean any Subsidiary that is incorporated or organized under the laws of any jurisdiction other than the United States of America, any state
thereof or the District of Columbia.

“Former Agent” shall mean Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, in its capacity as administrative agent and collateral agent under the Original Credit Agreement
prior to the First Restatement Effective Date.

“Free Liquidity” shall mean, at any date of determination, the aggregate amount of Unrestricted Cash and any Available Unused Commitments or other amounts
available for drawing under other revolving or other credit facilities of the Company, which remain undrawn, could be drawn for general working capital purposes or other
general corporate purposes and would not, if drawn, be mandatorily repayable within six months.

“Fronting Exposure” shall mean, at any time there is a Defaulting Lender, with respect to any Issuing Bank, such Defaulting Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage of
Revolving L/C Exposure with respect to Letters of Credit issued by such Issuing Bank other than such Revolving L/C Exposure as to which such Defaulting Lender’s
participation obligation has been reallocated to other Lenders or Cash Collateralized in accordance with the terms hereof.

“GAAP” shall mean generally accepted accounting principles in effect from time to time in the United States, applied on a consistent basis, subject to the provisions of

Section 1.02; provided that any reference to the application of GAAP in Sections 3.13(b), 3.19, 5.03, 5.04, 5.07 and 6.02(e) to any Subsidiary that is incorporated or organized
under the laws of any jurisdiction
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other than the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia (but not as a consolidated Subsidiary of the Company) shall mean generally accepted accounting
principles in effect from time to time in the jurisdiction of organization of such non-U.S. Subsidiary.

“Governmental Authority” shall mean the government of the United States of America, or any other nation, or of any political subdivision thereof, whether state or
local, and any agency, authority, instrumentality, regulatory body, court, central bank or other entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or
administrative powers or functions of or pertaining to government (including any supra-national bodies such as the European Union or the European Central Bank) and any
group or body charged with setting financial accounting or regulatory capital rules or standards (including, without limitation, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the
Bank for International Settlements or the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision or any successor or similar authority to any of the foregoing).

“Guarantee” of or by any person (the “guarantor”) shall mean (a) any obligation, contingent or otherwise, of the guarantor guaranteeing or having the economic effect
of guaranteeing any Indebtedness or other obligation of any other person (the “primary obligor”) in any manner, whether directly or indirectly, and including any obligation of
the guarantor, direct or indirect, (i) to purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for the purchase or payment of) such Indebtedness or other obligation (whether arising by
virtue of partnership arrangements, by agreement to keep well, to purchase assets, goods, securities or services, to take-or-pay or otherwise) or to purchase (or to advance or
supply funds for the purchase of) any security for the payment of such Indebtedness or other obligation, (ii) to purchase or lease property, securities or services for the purpose of
assuring the owner of such Indebtedness or other obligation of the payment thereof, (iii) to maintain working capital, equity capital or any other financial statement condition or
liquidity of the primary obligor so as to enable the primary obligor to pay such Indebtedness or other obligation, (iv) entered into for the purpose of assuring in any other manner
the holders of such Indebtedness or other obligation of the payment thereof or to protect such holders against loss in respect thereof (in whole or in part) or (v) as an account
party in respect of any letter of credit or letter of guaranty issued to support such Indebtedness or other obligation, or (b) any Lien on any assets of the guarantor securing any
Indebtedness or other obligation (or any existing right, contingent or otherwise, of the holder of Indebtedness or other obligation to be secured by such a Lien) of any other
person, whether or not such Indebtedness or other obligation is assumed by the guarantor; provided, however, the term “Guarantee” shall not include endorsements of
instruments for deposit or collection in the ordinary course of business or customary and reasonable indemnity obligations in effect on the Closing Date or entered into in
connection with any acquisition or disposition of assets permitted by this Agreement (other than such obligations with respect to Indebtedness). The amount of any Guarantee
shall be deemed to be an amount equal to the stated or determinable amount of the Indebtedness in respect of which such Guarantee is made or, if not stated or determinable, the
maximum reasonably anticipated liability in respect thereof (assuming such person is required to perform thereunder) as determined by such person in good faith.

“guarantor” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of the term “Guarantee.”
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“Hazardous Materials” shall mean all pollutants, contaminants, wastes, chemicals, materials, substances and constituents, including explosive or radioactive substances
or petroleum by-products or petroleum distillates, asbestos or asbestos-containing materials, polychlorinated biphenyls or radon gas, biological waste, toxic mold, infectious
materials, potentially infectious materials or disinfecting agents, of any nature subject to regulation or which can give rise to liability under any Environmental Law.

“Holdings” shall mean Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd., an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda.

“Immaterial Subsidiary” shall mean any Subsidiary that (a) did not, as of the last day of the fiscal quarter of the Company most recently ended, have assets with a
value in excess of 5% of the Consolidated Total Assets or revenues representing in excess of 5% of total revenues of the Company and the Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis
as of such date, and (b) taken together with all Immaterial Subsidiaries as of the last day of the fiscal quarter of the Company most recently ended, did not have assets with a
value in excess of 10% of Consolidated Total Assets or revenues representing in excess of 10% of total revenues of the Company and the Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis as
of such date. Each Immaterial Subsidiary shall be set forth in Schedule 1.01(a), and the Company shall update such Schedule from time to time after the Closing Date as
necessary to reflect all Immaterial Subsidiaries at such time (the selection of Subsidiaries to be added to or removed from such Schedule to be made as the Company may
determine). Notwithstanding the foregoing, no New Vessel Subsidiary, Subsidiary Guarantor or the Co-Borrower shall be an Immaterial Subsidiary.

¢

‘Impacted Interest Period” shall have the meaning assigned to it in the definition of “LIBO Rate.”

“Increased Amount” of any Indebtedness shall mean any increase in the amount of such Indebtedness in connection with any accrual of interest, the accretion of
accreted value, the amortization of original issue discount, the payment of interest in the form of additional Indebtedness with the same terms, the accretion of original issue
discount or liquidation preference and increases in the amount of Indebtedness outstanding solely as a result of fluctuations in the exchange rate of currencies.

“Increased Amount Date” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(a)(ii).

“Incremental Amount” shall mean, at any time, (i) the excess, if any, of (a) $[*], over (b) the sum of (x) the aggregate amount of all Incremental Term Loan
Commitments and Incremental Revolving Facility Commitments, in each case, established after the Restatement Effective Date and prior to such time pursuant to Section 2.21
(other than any Incremental Term Loan Commitments and Incremental Revolving Facility Commitments in respect of Refinancing Term Loans, Extended Term Loans,
Extended Revolving Facility Commitments or Replacement Revolving Facility Commitments) and (y) the aggregate principal amount of Indebtedness incurred pursuant to
Section 6.01(aa); plus (ii) any additional amounts so long as after giving effect to the issuance or incurrence of such Indebtedness the Loan-to-Value Ratio (assuming, when
being tested in connection with any Incremental Revolving Facility Commitments, that such Incremental
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Revolving Facility Commitments are fully drawn as of such test date) on a Pro Forma Basis is equal to or less than [*] to 1.0.

“Incremental Assumption Agreement” shall mean an Incremental Assumption Agreement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent,
among the Borrowers, the Administrative Agent and one or more Incremental Term Lenders and/or Incremental Revolving Facility Lenders.

“Incremental Revolving Facility Commitment” shall mean any increased or incremental Revolving Facility Commitment provided pursuant to Section 2.21.

“Incremental Revolving Facility Lender” shall mean a Lender (including an Incremental Revolving Facility Lender) with a Revolving Facility Commitment or an
outstanding Revolving Facility Loan as a result of an Incremental Revolving Facility Commitment.

“Incremental Term Borrowing” shall mean a Borrowing comprised of Incremental Term Loans.
“Incremental Term Facility” shall mean the Incremental Term Loan Commitments of any Class and the Incremental Term Loans made thereunder.
“Incremental Term Lender” shall mean a Lender with an Incremental Term Loan Commitment or an outstanding Incremental Term Loan.

“Incremental Term Loan Commitment” shall mean the commitment of any Lender, established pursuant to Section 2.21, to make Incremental Term Loans to the
Borrowers.

“Incremental Term Loan Installment Date” shall have, with respect to any tranche of Incremental Term Loans established pursuant to an Incremental Assumption
Agreement, the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.10(a)(ii).

“Incremental Term Loans” shall mean Term Loans made by one or more Lenders to the Borrowers pursuant to Section 2.01(c). Incremental Term Loans may be made
in the form of additional Term A Loans, or, to the extent permitted by Section 2.21 and provided for in the relevant Incremental Assumption Agreement, Other Incremental
Term Loans.

“Indebtedness” of any person shall mean, without duplication, (a) all obligations of such person for borrowed money, (b) all obligations of such person evidenced by
bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments, (c) all obligations of such person under conditional sale or other title retention agreements relating to property or assets
purchased by such person, (d) all obligations of such person issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of property or services, to the extent that the same would be
required to be shown as a long term liability on a balance sheet prepared in accordance with GAAP, (e) all Capital Lease Obligations of such person, (f) all payments that such
person would have to make in the event of an early termination, on the date Indebtedness of such person is being determined, in respect of outstanding Swap Agreements, (g) the
principal component of all obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such person as an account party in respect of letters of credit, (h) the principal component of all obligations of
such
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person in respect of bankers’ acceptances, (i) all Guarantees by such person of Indebtedness described in clauses (a) to (h) above) and (j) the amount of all obligations of such
person with respect to the redemption, repayment or other repurchase of any Disqualified Stock (excluding accrued dividends that have not increased the liquidation preference
of such Disqualified Stock); provided that Indebtedness shall not include (A) trade payables, accrued expenses and intercompany liabilities arising in the ordinary course of
business, (B) prepaid or deferred revenue arising in the ordinary course of business, (C) purchase price holdbacks arising in the ordinary course of business in respect of a
portion of the purchase prices of an asset to satisfy unperformed obligations of the seller of such asset or (D) earn-out obligations until such obligations become a liability on the
balance sheet of such person in accordance with GAAP. The Indebtedness of any person shall include the Indebtedness of any partnership in which such person is a general
partner, other than to the extent that the instrument or agreement evidencing such Indebtedness expressly limits the liability of such person in respect thereof.

“Indemnified Taxes” shall mean all Taxes imposed on or with respect to or measured by any payment by or on account of any obligation of any Loan Party hereunder
or under any other Loan Document other than (a) Excluded Taxes and (b) Other Taxes.

“Indemnitee” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.05(b).
“Information” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.14(a).
“Information Memorandum” shall mean the Confidential Information Memorandum dated April 18, 2013, as modified or supplemented prior to the Closing Date.

“Insurance Assignments” shall mean each of the first priority assignments of insurance made or to be made by (a) a Subsidiary Guarantor in favor of the Collateral
Agent in respect of a Mortgaged Vessel and (b) the Company in favor of the Collateral Agent in respect of all of the Mortgaged Vessels, in each case substantially in the form of
Exhibit I or otherwise reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

“Interest Election Request” shall mean a request by the Company to convert or continue a Term Borrowing or Revolving Facility Borrowing in accordance with
Section 2.07.

“Interest Expense” shall mean, with respect to any person for any period, the sum of (a) gross interest expense (including any commitment or utilization fees in respect
of available or undrawn amounts under loan, letter of credit or similar facilities) of such person for such period on a consolidated basis, including (i) the amortization of debt
discounts, (ii) the amortization of all fees (including fees with respect to Swap Agreements) payable in connection with the incurrence of Indebtedness to the extent included in
interest expense and (iii) the portion of any payments or accruals with respect to Capital Lease Obligations allocable to interest expense and (b) capitalized interest of such
person. For purposes of the foregoing, gross interest expense shall be determined after giving effect to any net payments made or received and costs incurred by the Company
and the Subsidiaries with respect to Swap Agreements.

“Interest Payment Date” shall mean, (a) with respect to any Eurocurrency Loan, the last day of the Interest Period applicable to the Borrowing of which such Loan is a
part and, in the
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case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing with an Interest Period of more than three months’ duration, each day that would have been an Interest Payment Date had successive Interest
Periods of three months’ duration been applicable to such Borrowing and, in addition, the date of any refinancing or conversion of such Borrowing with or to a Borrowing of a
different Type and (b) with respect to any ABR Loan, the last day of each calendar quarter, or if any such day is not a Business Day, on the next succeeding Business Day.

“Interest Period” shall mean, as to any Eurocurrency Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of such Borrowing or on the last day of the immediately preceding
Interest Period applicable to such Borrowing, as applicable, and ending on the numerically corresponding day (or, if there is no numerically corresponding day, on the last day)
in the calendar month that is 1, 2, 3 or 6 months thereafter (or 12 months or a period shorter than one month, if at the time of the relevant Borrowing, all Lenders make interest
periods of such length available), as the Company may elect, or the date any Eurocurrency Borrowing is converted to an ABR Borrowing in accordance with Section 2.07 or
repaid or prepaid in accordance with Sections 2.09, 2.10 or 2.11; provided, however, that if any Interest Period would end on a day other than a Business Day, such Interest
Period shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day unless such next succeeding Business Day would fall in the next calendar month, in which case such Interest
Period shall end on the next preceding Business Day. Interest shall accrue from and including the first day of an Interest Period to but excluding the last day of such Interest
Period.

“Interpolated Rate” shall mean, at any time, for any Interest Period, the rate per annum (rounded to the same number of decimal places as the LIBO Screen Rate)
determined by the Administrative Agent (which determination shall be conclusive and binding absent manifest error) to be equal to the rate that results from interpolating on a
linear basis between: (a) the LIBO Screen Rate for the longest period for which the LIBO Screen Rate is available that is shorter than the Impacted Interest Period; and (b) the
LIBO Screen Rate for the shortest period for which that LIBO Screen Rate is available that exceeds the Impacted Interest Period, in each case, at such time.

“Investment” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.04.

“ISM Code” shall mean the International Management Code for the Safe Operation of Ships and for Pollution Prevention adopted pursuant to Resolution A.741(18) of
the International Maritime Organization and incorporated into the International Convention for the Safety of Life at Sea 1974 (SOLAS), and shall include any amendments or
extensions thereto and any regulation issued pursuant thereto.

“ISM Code Documentation” in relation to any Mortgaged Vessel includes: (a) the document of compliance (‘DOC”) and safety management certificate (‘SMC”)
issued pursuant to the ISM Code in relation to such Mortgaged Vessel within the periods specified by the ISM Code, (b) all other documents and data which are relevant to the
ISM Safety Management Systems and its implementation and verification which the Administrative Agent may reasonably require and (c) any other documents which are
prepared or which are otherwise relevant to establish and maintain such Mortgaged Vessel’s or the relevant Subsidiary Guarantor’s compliance with the ISM Code which the
Administrative Agent may reasonably require.
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“ISM Safety Management Systems” shall mean the Safety Management System referred to in Clause 1.4 (or any other relevant provision) of the ISM Code.

“ISP” shall mean, with respect to any Letter of Credit, the “International Standby Practices 1998” published by the Institute of International Banking Law & Practice
(or such later version thereof as may be in effect at the time of issuance).

“ISPS Code” shall mean the International Ship and Port Facility Security Code incorporated into the International Convention for the Safety of Life at Sea 1974
(SOLAS), and shall include any amendments or extensions thereto and any regulation issued pursuant thereto.

“Issuing Bank” shall mean each of JPMCB, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, Barclays Bank PLC (provided that Barclays Bank PLC shall have no obligation to
issue any Trade Letters of Credit) and each other Issuing Bank designated pursuant to Section 2.05(k) that agrees in writing to act as an Issuing Bank, in each case in its
capacity as an issuer of Letters of Credit hereunder, and its successors in such capacity as provided in Section 2.05(i). An Issuing Bank may, in its discretion, arrange for one or
more Letters of Credit to be issued by Affiliates of such Issuing Bank, in which case the term “Issuing Bank” shall include any such Affiliate with respect to Letters of Credit
issued by such Affiliate.

“Issuing Bank Fees” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.12(b).

“Issuing Bank Sublimit” shall mean (i) with respect to each Issuing Bank on the Restatement Effective Date, 1/3 of the Letter of Credit Sublimit on the Restatement
Effective Date and (ii) with respect to any Issuing Bank that becomes an Issuing Bank following the Restatement Effective Date, such amount as may be agreed among the
Company and such additional Issuing Bank (and notified to the Administrative Agent) at the time such additional Issuing Bank becomes an Issuing Bank.

“Joint Bookrunners” shall mean, collectively, each entity listed as such on the cover of this Agreement, in its capacity as such.

“JPMCB?” shall mean JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.

“Judgment Currency” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.19.

“Junior Financing” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.09(b).

“Junior Indebtedness” shall mean Indebtedness of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries that (a) is expressly subordinated to the prior payment in full in cash of the
Obligations (and any related Guarantees) on terms reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, (b) provides that interest in respect of such Indebtedness shall not be
payable in cash, (c) has a final maturity date that is not earlier than the Latest Maturity Date and has no scheduled payments of principal thereon (including pursuant to a sinking

fund obligation or mandatory redemption obligations (other than pursuant to customary provisions relating to redemption or repurchase upon change of control or sale of assets))
prior to such final maturity date and (d) is not subject to covenants, events of default and remedies that, in the aggregate, are more onerous to the Borrowers,
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than the terms of this Agreement; provided that such Indebtedness shall not be subject to any financial maintenance covenants;provided, further that Indebtedness constituting
Junior Indebtedness when incurred shall not cease to constitute Junior Indebtedness as a result of the subsequent extension of the Latest Maturity Date.

“L/C Disbursement” shall mean a payment or disbursement made by an Issuing Bank pursuant to a Letter of Credit.
“L/C Participation Fee” shall have the meaning assigned such term in Section 2.12(b).

“Latest Maturity Date” shall mean, at any date of determination, the latest of the latest Revolving Facility Maturity Date and the latest Term Facility Maturity Date in
each case as extended in accordance with the Agreement from time to time.

“Lender” shall mean each Lender under the Original Credit Agreement immediately prior to the Restatement Effective Date, each financial institution listed on
Schedule 2.01, as well as any person that becomes a “Lender” hereunder pursuant to Section 10.04 or Section 2.21 (in each case, other than any such person that has ceased to
be a party hereto pursuant to an Assignment and Acceptance in accordance with Section 10.04).

¢

‘Lending Office” shall mean, as to any Lender, the applicable branch(es), office(s) or Affiliate(s) of such Lender designated by such Lender in its Administrative
Questionnaire or otherwise to make Loans.

“Letter of Credit” shall mean any letter of credit issued pursuant to Section 2.05, including any Trade Letter of Credit or Standby Letter of Credit.

“Letter of Credit Commitment” shall mean, with respect to each Issuing Bank, the commitment of such Issuing Bank to issue Letters of Credit pursuant to
Section 2.05.

“Letter of Credit Sublimit” shall mean the aggregate Letter of Credit Commitments of the Issuing Banks, in an amount not to exceed $200,000,000.

“LIBO Rate” shall mean, with respect to any Eurocurrency Borrowing for any Interest Period, the London interbank offered rate as administered by ICE Benchmark
Administration (or any other person that takes over the administration of such rate) for Dollars for a period equal in length to such Interest Period as displayed on pages
LIBORO1 or LIBORO2 of the Reuters screen that displays such rate (or, in the event such rate does not appear on a Reuters page or screen, on any successor or substitute page
on such screen that displays such rate, or on the appropriate page of such other information service that publishes such rate from time to time as selected by the Administrative
Agent in its reasonable discretion; in each case the “LIBO Screen Rate”) at approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, two Business Days prior to the commencement of such
Interest Period; provided that if the LIBO Screen Rate shall be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for the purposes of this Agreementprovided further that if
the LIBO Screen Rate shall not be available at such time for such Interest Period (an “Impacted Interest Period”) then the LIBO Rate shall be the Interpolated Rate;provided
that if any Interpolated Rate shall be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of this Agreement.
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“LIBO Screen Rate” shall have the meaning assigned to it in the definition of “LIBO Rate.”

“Lien” shall mean, with respect to any asset, (a) any mortgage, deed of trust, lien, hypothecation, pledge, charge, assignment, security interest or encumbrance of any
kind in or on such asset and (b) the interest of a vendor or a lessor under any conditional sale agreement, capital lease or title retention agreement (or any financing lease having
substantially the same economic effect as any of the foregoing) relating to such asset.

«

Loan Component” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of Loan-to-Value Ratio in this Section 1.01.

“Loan Documents” shall mean this Agreement, any Letter of Credit, the Security Documents, each Incremental Assumption Agreement, any First Lien Intercreditor
Agreement, any Second Lien Intercreditor Agreement, any Note issued under Section 2.09(e) and, solely for the purposes of Section 8.01 of this Agreement, any fee letters
entered into between the Agents, the Arrangers, the Joint Bookrunners and the Borrowers (including the fee letter relating to the financing commitments for the Acquisition).

“Loan Parties” shall mean the Borrowers and the Subsidiary Guarantors.
“Loans” shall mean the Term Loans, the Incremental Term Loans (if any) and the Revolving Facility Loans.

“Loan-to-Value Ratio” shall mean, as of any date, the ratio of (a) the aggregate principal amount (the ‘Loan Component”) of all Term Loans outstanding on such day,
all Pari Passu Senior Secured Notes outstanding on such date and the aggregate Revolving Facility Credit Exposure on such date 7o (b) the sum (the “Value Component”) of (i)
the aggregate amount of the most recent Valuations (determined in accordance with Section 5.16) for each of the Mortgaged Vessels plus (ii) the Cure Collateral Fair Market
Value of all property added as Collateral pursuant to Section 8.02(a) through such date. Each determination of the Loan-to-Value Ratio on any day shall be made (A) first,
without giving effect to any cure transaction permitted by Section 8.02(a) or (b) made (or to be made) on such day and (B) then, to determine compliance, with giving effect to
any such cure transaction made on such day.

“Local Time” shall mean New York City time.

“Majority Lenders” of any Facility shall mean, at any time, Lenders under such Facility having Loans and unused Commitments representing more than 50% of the
sum of all Loans outstanding under such Facility and unused Commitments under such Facility at such time.

“Management Group” shall mean the group consisting of the directors, executive officers and other management personnel of the Company and any subsidiary of the
Company, as the case may be, on the Closing Date together with (a) any new directors whose election by such boards of directors or whose nomination for election by the
shareholders of Company and its subsidiary, as the case may be, was approved by a vote of a majority of the directors of the Company and the relevant subsidiary, as the case
may be, then still in office who were either directors
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on the Closing Date or whose election or nomination was previously so approved and (b) executive officers and other management personnel of the Company and any
subsidiary of the Company, as the case may be, hired at a time when the directors on the Closing Date together with the directors so approved constituted a majority of the
directors of the Company and any subsidiary of the Company, as the case may be.

“Margin Stock” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Regulation U.

“Material Adverse Effect” shall mean a material adverse effect on (i) the business, property, operations or condition of the Company and the Subsidiaries (taken as a
whole), (ii) the validity or enforceability of any of the Loan Documents or the rights and remedies of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders thereunder or (iii) the value of
the Collateral.

“Material Indebtedness” shall mean Indebtedness (other than Loans and Letters of Credit) of any one or more of the Company or any Subsidiary in an aggregate
principal amount exceeding $75,000,000.

“Material Subsidiary” shall mean any Subsidiary other than an Immaterial Subsidiary or an Unrestricted Subsidiary.
“Maximum Rate” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.08.

“Minimum Collateral Amount” shall mean, at any time, (i) with respect to Cash Collateral consisting of cash or deposit account balances, an amount equal to [*]% of
the Fronting Exposure of all Issuing Banks with respect to Letters of Credit issued and outstanding at such time and (ii) otherwise, an amount determined by the Administrative
Agent and the Issuing Banks in their sole discretion.

247

“Moody’s” shall mean Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

“Mortgaged Vessel” shall mean (i) each of the NORWEGIAN DAWN, the NORWEGIAN GEM, the NORWEGIAN PEARL, the NORWEGIAN SPIRIT, the
NORWEGIAN STAR, the NORWEGIAN SUN, and, in each case, all appurtenances thereto, (ii) the Specified Target Mortgaged Vessels and (iii) any other vessel constituting
Collateral.

“Mortgaged Vessel Operations Agreements” shall mean the Assigned Contracts (as such term is defined in the Collateral Agreement).

“Mortgage Trustee” shall mean the Administrative Agent acting as mortgage trustee for the Secured Parties.

“Multiemployer Plan” shall mean a multiemployer plan as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA to which the Company, any Subsidiary or any ERISA Affiliate

(other than one considered an ERISA Affiliate only pursuant to subsection (m) or (0) of Code Section 414) is making or accruing an obligation to make contributions, or has
within any of the preceding six plan years made or accrued an obligation to make contributions.
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“Net Income” shall mean, with respect to any person, the net income (loss) of such person, determined in accordance with GAAP and before any reduction in respect
of preferred stock dividends.

“Net Proceeds” shall mean

(a) (x) If the Loan-to-Value Ratio on a Pro Forma Basis will be greater than [*] to 1.0 or if the relevant Asset Sale does not involve a Vessel, [¥]% or (y)
otherwise, the Applicable Ship Percentage, in each case, of the cash proceeds actually received by any Borrower or any Subsidiary Guarantor (including any cash payments
received by way of deferred payment of principal pursuant to a note or installment receivable or purchase price adjustment receivable or otherwise and including casualty
insurance settlements and condemnation awards, but only as and when received) from any Asset Sale or Event of Loss (other than those pursuant to Section 6.05(a), (b), (¢),
(d), (e), () or (i), excluding any such Asset Sale or Event of Loss of, or related to, a Mortgaged Vessel), net of, without duplication, (i) attorneys’ fees, accountants’ fees,
investment banking fees, survey costs, title insurance premiums, and related search and recording charges, transfer taxes, deed or mortgage recording taxes, required debt
payments and required payments of other obligations relating to the applicable asset to the extent such debt or obligations are secured by a Lien permitted hereunder (other than
pursuant to the Loan Documents and other than debt or obligations secured by Liens ranking pari passu or junior to the Liens securing the Obligations) on such asset, other
customary expenses and brokerage, consultant and other customary fees actually incurred in connection therewith, (ii) Taxes paid or payable as a result thereof and (iii) the
amount of any reasonable reserve established in accordance with applicable law or GAAP against any adjustment to the sale price or any liabilities (other than any Taxes
deducted pursuant to clause (i) or (ii) above) (x) related to any of the applicable assets and (y) retained by the Company or any Subsidiary including, without limitation, pension
and other post-employment benefit liabilities and liabilities related to environmental matters or against any indemnification obligations (however, the amount of any subsequent
reduction of such reserve (other than in connection with a payment in respect of any such liability) shall be deemed to be Net Proceeds of such Asset Sale occurring on the date
of such reduction)); provided that, if no Default or Event of Default exists and the Company shall deliver a certificate of a Responsible Officer of the Company to the
Administrative Agent promptly following receipt of any such proceeds setting forth the Company’s intention to use any portion of such proceeds, to acquire, maintain, develop,
construct, improve, upgrade or repair assets useful in the business of the Company and the Subsidiaries or to make investments in Permitted Business Acquisitions, in each case
within 18 months of such receipt, such portion of such proceeds shall not constitute Net Proceeds except to the extent not, within 18 months of such receipt, so used or
contractually committed to be so used (it being understood that if any portion of such proceeds are not so used within such 18-month period but within such 18-month period are
contractually committed to be used, then upon the termination or expiration of such contract, such remaining portion shall constitute Net Proceeds as of the date of such
termination or expiration without giving effect to this proviso); provided, further, that (x) no proceeds realized in a single transaction or series of related transactions shall
constitute Net Proceeds unless such proceeds shall exceed $30,000,000 and (y) no proceeds shall constitute Net Proceeds in any fiscal year until the aggregate amount of all
such proceeds in such fiscal year shall exceed $60,000,000; and
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(b) [*1% (or, to the extent contemplated by the definition of the term “Senior Secured Notes,” [*]%) of the cash proceeds from the incurrence, issuance or sale by
any Borrower or any Subsidiary Guarantor of any Indebtedness (other than Excluded Indebtedness), net of all taxes and fees (including investment banking fees), commissions,

costs and other expenses, in each case incurred in connection with such issuance or sale.

For purposes of calculating the amount of Net Proceeds, fees, commissions and other costs and expenses payable to the Company or any Affiliate of the Company shall
be disregarded, except for financial advisory fees customary in type and amount paid to any Affiliate not prohibited from being paid hereunder.

‘New Vessel Financing” shall mean any financing arrangement entered into by any New Vessel Subsidiary in connection with any acquisition of one or more Vessels.
“New Vessel Subsidiary” shall mean any Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company that is formed for the purpose of acquiring one or more Vessels.

“New York Courts” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.15(a).

“Non-Bank Tax Certificate” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.17(e).

“Non-Consenting Lender” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.19(c).

“Non-Defaulting Lender” shall mean, at any time, each Lender that is not a Defaulting Lender at such time.

“NORWEGIAN DAWN?” shall mean the Vessel Norwegian Dawn, IMO number 9195169, currently registered in the name of Norwegian Dawn Limited under the
laws of the Commonwealth of The Bahamas with the official number 9000046.

“NORWEGIAN GEM?” shall mean the Vessel Norwegian Gem, IMO number 9355733, currently registered in the name of Norwegian Gem, Ltd. under the laws of the
Commonwealth of The Bahamas with the official number 8001151.

“NORWEGIAN PEARL” shall mean the Vessel Norwegian Pearl, IMO number 9342281, currently registered in the name of Norwegian Pearl, Ltd. under the laws of
the Commonwealth of The Bahamas with the official number 8001150.

“NORWEGIAN SPIRIT” shall mean the Vessel Norwegian Spirit, IMO number 9141065, currently registered in the name of Norwegian Spirit, Ltd. under the laws of
the Commonwealth of The Bahamas with the official number 8000814.

“NORWEGIAN STAR” shall mean the Vessel Norwegian Star, IMO number 9195157, currently registered in the name of Norwegian Star Limited under the laws of
the Commonwealth of The Bahamas with the official number 8000359.
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“NORWEGIAN SUN” shall mean the Vessel Norwegian Sun, IMO number 9218131, currently registered in the name of Norwegian Sun Limited under the laws of the
Commonwealth of The Bahamas with the official number 8000245.

“Note” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.09(e).
“NYFRB” shall mean the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

“NYFRB Rate” shall mean, for any day, the greater of (a) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect on such day and (b) the Overnight Bank Funding Rate in effect on
such day (or for any day that is not a Business Day, for the immediately preceding Business Day); provided that if none of such rates are published for any day that is a Business
Day, the term “NYFRB Rate” means the rate for a federal funds transaction quoted at 11:00 a.m. on such day received by the Administrative Agent from a Federal funds broker
of recognized standing selected by it; provided. further, that if any of the aforesaid rates shall be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of this
Agreement.

“Obligations” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Collateral Agreement and shall include, for the avoidance of doubt, the “Obligations” and “Loan
Document Obligations” (each as defined therein) of each Borrower under the Collateral Agreement as supplemented by Section 1.04.

“Offering Memorandum” shall mean the confidential Offering Memorandum, dated February 1, 2013, amended or modified from time to time, in respect of the 5.0%
Notes.

“OPA 90” shall mean the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, 33 U.S.C. §2701 et seq.

“Original Credit Agreement” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.
“Other Incremental Revolving Loans” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(a).

“Other Incremental Term Loans” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(a).

“Other Revolving Facility Commitments™ shall mean one or more Classes of revolving credit commitments that result from a modification of the Revolving Facility
Commitments pursuant to an Incremental Assumption Agreement.

“Other Revolving Loans” shall mean the revolving loans made pursuant to an Other Revolving Facility Commitment.
“Other Taxes” shall mean any and all present or future stamp, registration, documentary, intangible, recording, filing or any other excise, property or similar Taxes

(including related reasonable out-of-pocket expenses with regard thereto) arising from any payment made hereunder or made under any other Loan Document or from the
execution or delivery of, registration or
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enforcement of, consummation or administration of, or otherwise with respect to, this Agreement or any other Loan Document; provided that such term shall not include any of
the foregoing Taxes (i) that result from an assignment, grant of a participation pursuant to Section 10.04(d) or transfer or assignment to or designation of a new lending office or
other office for receiving payments under any Loan Document (“Assignment Taxes”) to the extent such Assignment Taxes are imposed as a result of a connection between the
assignor/participating Lender and/or the assignee/Participant and the taxing jurisdiction (other than a connection arising solely from any Loan Documents or any transactions
contemplated thereunder), except to the extent that any such action described in this proviso is requested or required by the Company, or (ii) Excluded Taxes.

“Other Term Loan Installment Date” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.10(a)(iii).

“QOverdraft Line” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.01(x).

“Overnight Bank Funding Rate” shall mean, for any day, the rate comprised of both overnight federal funds and overnight Eurodollar borrowings by U.S.-managed
banking offices of depository institutions, as such composite rate shall be determined by the NYFRB as set forth on its public website from time to time, and published on the
next succeeding Business Day by the NYFRB as an overnight bank funding rate (from and after such date as the NYFRB shall commence to publish such composite rate).

“parent” shall have the meaning given such term in the definition of the term “subsidiary.”

“Parent Entity” shall mean any direct or indirect parent of the Company.

“Pari Passu Senior Secured Notes” shall mean Senior Secured Notes that are intended to be secured by the Collateral pari passu with the Obligations under the Loan
Documents.

“Participant” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(d)(i).
“Participant Register” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(d)(i).
“PBGC” shall mean the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation referred to and defined in ERISA.

“Perfection Certificate” shall mean a certificate in the form of Exhibit M or any other form approved by the Collateral Agent, as the same shall be supplemented from
time to time.

“Permitted Additional Debt” shall mean any Indebtedness for borrowed money (a) for which the average life to maturity of such Permitted Additional Debt is greater
than or equal to the remaining weighted average life to maturity of the Class of Term Loans then outstanding with the greatest remaining weighted average life to maturity and
(b) that does not have a stated maturity prior to the date that is 91 days after the Latest Maturity Date; provided that Indebtedness
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constituting Permitted Additional Debt when incurred shall not cease to constitute Permitted Additional Debt as a result of the subsequent extension of the Latest Maturity Date.

“Permitted Business Acquisition” shall mean any acquisition of all or substantially all of the assets of, or all or a majority of the common Equity Interests in, a person
or division or line of business of a person (or any subsequent investment made in a person, division or line of business previously acquired in a Permitted Business Acquisition),
if immediately after giving effect thereto: (i) no Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would result therefrom; (ii) all transactions related thereto shall be
consummated in accordance with applicable laws; (iii) with respect to any such acquisition or investment with cash consideration in excess of $[*], the Company and the
Subsidiaries shall be in Pro Forma Compliance after giving effect to such acquisition or investment and any related transactions; (iv) any acquired or newly formed Subsidiary
shall not be liable for any Indebtedness except for Indebtedness permitted by Section 6.01; (v) to the extent required by Section 5.10, any person acquired in such acquisition, if
acquired by a Borrower or a Subsidiary Guarantor, shall be merged into a Borrower or a Subsidiary Guarantor or become upon consummation of such acquisition a Subsidiary
Guarantor; and (vi) unless immediately after giving effect to such acquisition the Company is in Ratio Compliance, the aggregate cash consideration in respect of such
acquisitions and investments in assets that are not owned by the Borrowers or a Restricted Subsidiary or in Equity Interests in persons that do not become Restricted
Subsidiaries upon consummation of such acquisition shall not exceed the greater of (x) [*]% of Consolidated Total Assets and (y) $[*]. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Acquisition shall constitute a “Permitted Business Acquisition” for all purposes hereunder and shall not be subject to the foregoing criteria.

“Permitted Cure Securities” shall mean any Equity Interests of the Company other than Disqualified Stock, and upon which all dividends or distributions (if any) shall,
prior to 91 days after the Latest Maturity Date, be payable solely in additional shares of such Equity Interests; provided that Equity Interests constituting Permitted Cure
Securities when issued shall not cease to constitute Permitted Cure Securities as a result of the subsequent extension of the Latest Maturity Date.

“Permitted Flag Jurisdiction” shall mean the Republic of the Marshall Islands, the Bahamas, Panama, Bermuda, the Republic of Cyprus, Isle of Man, Liberia, the
United Kingdom, the United States of America, or any other jurisdiction approved by the Administrative Agent (such approval not to be withheld unreasonably).

“Permitted Holder” shall mean, at any time, each of (i) the Sponsors, (ii) the Management Group, (iii) any person that has no material assets other than the Equity
Interests of the Company and, directly or indirectly, holds or acquires 100% of the total voting power of the Equity Interests of the Company, and of which no other person or
group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or Section 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, or any successor provision), other than any of the other Permitted Holders specified in
clauses (i) and (ii) above and (iv) below, holds more than 50% of the total voting power of the Equity Interests thereof and (iv) any group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)
(3) or Section 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, or any successor provision) the members of which include any of the Permitted Holders specified in clauses (i) and (ii) above and
that, directly or indirectly, hold or acquire beneficial ownership of the Equity Interests
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of the Company (a “Permitted Holder Group”), so long as (1) each member of the Permitted Holder Group has voting rights proportional to the percentage of ownership
interests held or acquired by such member and (2) no person or other “group” (other than the Permitted Holders specified in clauses (i) and (ii) above) beneficially owns more
than 50% on a fully diluted basis of the Equity Interests held by the Permitted Holder Group.

“Permitted Investments” shall mean:

(a) direct obligations of the United States of America or any member of the European Union or any agency thereof or obligations guaranteed by the United States
of America or any member of the European Union or any agency thereof, in each case with maturities not exceeding two years;

(b) time deposit accounts, certificates of deposit and money market deposits maturing within 180 days of the date of acquisition thereof issued by a bank or trust
company that is organized under the laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or any foreign country recognized by the United States of America having capital,
surplus and undivided profits in excess of $500,000,000 and whose long-term debt, or whose parent holding company’s long-term debt, is rated A (or such similar equivalent
rating or higher by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization (registered under Section 15E of the Exchange Act);

() repurchase obligations with a term of not more than 180 days for underlying securities of the types described in clause (a) above entered into with a bank
meeting the qualifications described in clause (b) above;

(d) commercial paper, maturing not more than one year after the date of acquisition, issued by a corporation (other than the Company or an Affiliate of the
Company) organized and in existence under the laws of the United States of America or any foreign country recognized by the United States of America with a rating at the

time as of which any investment therein is made of P-1 (or higher) according to Moody’s, or A-1 (or higher) according to S&P;

(e) securities with maturities of two years or less from the date of acquisition issued or fully guaranteed by any State, commonwealth or territory of the United
States of America, or by any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof, and rated at least A by S&P or A by Moody’s;

® shares of mutual funds whose investment guidelines restrict 95% of such funds’ investments to those satisfying the provisions of clauses (a) through (e)
above;

(2) money market funds that (i) comply with the criteria set forth in Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940, (ii) are rated AAA by S&P and Aaa
by Moody’s and (iii) have portfolio assets of at least $500,000,000;

(h) time deposit accounts, certificates of deposit and money market deposits in an aggregate face amount not in excess of 0.5% of the total assets of the Company
and the Subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, as of the end of the Company’s most recently completed fiscal year; and
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1) instruments equivalent to those referred to in clauses (a) through (h) above denominated in any foreign currency comparable in credit quality and tenor to
those referred to above and commonly used by corporations for cash management purposes in any jurisdiction outside the United States to the extent reasonably required in
connection with any business conducted by the Company or any Subsidiary organized in such jurisdiction.

“Permitted Liens” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.02.

“Permitted Loan Purchase Assignment and Acceptance” shall mean an assignment and acceptance entered into by a Lender as an Assignor and the Company as an
Assignee, and accepted by the Administrative Agent, in the form of Exhibit N or such other form as shall be approved by the Administrative Agent and the Company (such
approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

“Permitted Loan Purchases” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(i).

“Permitted Loan Purchases Amount” shall mean [*]% of the sum of (x) the aggregate principal amount of the Term A Facility on the Restatement Effective Date plus
(y) the aggregate principal amount of any Incremental Term Loans incurred since the Restatement Effective Date.

“Permitted Ratio Debt” shall mean secured or unsecured debt issued by the Company or its Subsidiaries, (i) if secured by the Collateral, the Liens with respect to
which are subordinated to the Liens securing the Obligations pursuant to an intercreditor agreement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent,
(ii) the terms of which do not provide for a stated maturity date prior to the date that is 91 days after the Latest Maturity Date and (iii) the covenants, events of default,
Subsidiary guarantees and other terms of which (other than interest rate and redemption premiums), taken as a whole, either (x) are not more restrictive to the Company and its
Subsidiaries than the terms of the Senior Unsecured Notes Documents, or (y) if more restrictive, the Loan Documents are amended to contain such more restrictive terms (which
amendments shall automatically occur); provided that Indebtedness constituting Permitted Ratio Debt when incurred shall not cease to constitute Permitted Ratio Debt as a
result of the subsequent extension of the Latest Maturity Date.

“Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness” shall mean any Indebtedness issued in exchange for, or the net proceeds of which are used to extend, refinance, renew, replace,
defease or refund (collectively, to “Refinance”), the Indebtedness being Refinanced (or previous refinancings thereof constituting Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness);
provided, that (a) the principal amount (or accreted value, if applicable) of such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness does not exceed the principal amount (or accreted value, if
applicable) of the Indebtedness so Refinanced (plus unpaid accrued interest and premium thereon and underwriting discounts, fees, commissions and expenses), (b)(i) the final
maturity date of such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness is on or after the earlier of (x) the final maturity date of the Indebtedness being Refinanced and (y) 91 days after the
Latest Maturity Date and (ii) the average life to maturity of such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness is greater than or equal to the lesser of (i) the weighted average life to
maturity of the Indebtedness being Refinanced and (ii) the weighted average life to maturity of the Class of Term Loans then outstanding with the greatest remaining weighted
average life to maturity, (c) if
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the Indebtedness being Refinanced is subordinated in right of payment to the Obligations under this Agreement, such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness shall be subordinated
in right of payment to such Obligations on terms at least as favorable to the Lenders as those contained in the documentation governing the Indebtedness being Refinanced, (d)
no Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness shall have obligors that are not obligated with respect to the Indebtedness so Refinanced, or greater guarantees or security, than the
Indebtedness being Refinanced and (e) if the Indebtedness being Refinanced is secured by any collateral (whether equally and ratably with, or junior to, the Secured Parties or
otherwise), such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness may be secured by such collateral (including in respect of working capital facilities of Subsidiaries that are not Subsidiary
Guarantors otherwise permitted under this Agreement only, any collateral pursuant to after-acquired property clauses to the extent any such collateral secured the Indebtedness
being Refinanced) on terms no less favorable to the Secured Parties than those contained in the documentation governing the Indebtedness being Refinanced; provided further.
that with respect to a Refinancing of (x) Permitted Additional Debt that is subordinated, such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness shall (i) be subordinated to the guarantee by
the Subsidiary Guarantors of the Facilities, and (ii) be otherwise on terms (other than interest rate and redemption premiums), taken as a whole, not materially less favorable to
the Lenders than those contained in the documentation governing the Indebtedness being refinanced, and (y) Permitted Additional Debt, such Permitted Refinancing
Indebtedness shall meet the requirements of the definition of “Permitted Additional Debt”; provided further, that Indebtedness constituting Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness
shall not cease to constitute Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness as a result of the subsequent extension of the Latest Maturity Date.

“Permitted Vessel Transfer” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.10(g).

“person” shall mean any natural person, corporation, business trust, joint venture, association, company, partnership, limited liability company or government,
individual or family trusts, or any agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Plan” shall mean any employee pension benefit plan (other than a Multiemployer Plan) that is (i) subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of the
Code or Section 302 of ERISA, (ii) sponsored or maintained or contributed to (at the time of determination or at any time within the five years prior thereto) by any Loan Party
or ERISA Affiliate, and (iii) in respect of which the Loan Party or ERISA Affiliate is (or, if such plan were terminated, would under Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be)
an “employer” as defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA.

“Platform” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.17.

“Pledged Collateral” shall have the meaning assigned to such term or any equivalent term in any Subsidiary Guarantor Pledge Agreement or in the Collateral
Agreement.

“Prestige Newbuild Debt” shall mean Indebtedness under each of (A) that certain Loan Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2013, by and amonginter alios Explorer New

Build, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank as agent, (B) that certain Loan Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2008, by
and among inter alios Marina
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New Build, LLC, a limited liability company formed in the Marshall Islands, and Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank (formerly known as Calyon) as agent and (C)
that certain Loan Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2008, by and among inter alios Riviera New Build, LLC, a limited liability company formed in the Marshall Islands, and
Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank (formerly known as Calyon) as agent, in each case as amended, restated, amended and restated, extended, refinanced, replaced,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

“Pricing Grid” shall mean:

(a) for purposes of the definition of “Applicable Margin” the table set forth below:

Applicable Applicable
Margin for Margin for
ABR Term A Eurocurrency
Loans, and Term A Loans
Revolving and Revolving
Total Leverage Ratio Facility Loans Facility Loans
Greater than or equal to [*] to 1.00 1.25% 2.25%
Greater than or equal to [*] to 1.00, but less than [*] to 1.00 1.00% 2.00%
Greater than or equal to [*] to 1.00, but less than [*] to 1.00 0.75% 1.75%
Less than [*] to 1.00 0.50% 1.50%
and
(b) for purposes of the definition of “Applicable Commitment Fee” the table set forth below:
Total Leverage Ratio Applicable Commitment Fee
Greater than or equal to [*] to 1.00 40% of the Applicable Margin for Eurocurrency Term A Loans and
Revolving Facility Loans
Greater than or equal to [*] to 1.00, but less than [*] to 1.00 0.50%
Greater than or equal to [*] to 1.00, but less than [*] to 1.00 0.375%
Less than [*] to 1.00 0.30%
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For the purposes of the foregoing, changes in the Applicable Margin and Applicable Commitment Fee resulting from changes in the Total Leverage Ratio shall
become effective on the date (the “Adjustment Date”) that is three Business Days after the date on which financial statements are delivered to the Lenders pursuant to
Section 5.04 and shall remain in effect until the next change to be effected pursuant to this paragraph. If any financial statements referred to above are not delivered within the
time periods specified in Section 5.04, then, at the option of the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders, until the date that is three Business Days after the date on which
such financial statements are delivered, the pricing level that is one pricing level higher than the pricing level theretofore in effect shall apply as of the first Business Day after
the date on which such financial statements were to have been delivered but were not delivered.

“primary obligor” shall have the meaning given such term in the definition of the term “Guarantee.”

“Prime Rate” shall mean the rate of interest per annum determined from time to time by the Administrative Agent as its prime rate in effect at its principal office in
New York City and notified to the Company.

“Pro Forma Basis” shall mean, as to any person, for any events as described below that occur subsequent to the commencement of a period for which the financial
effect of such events is being calculated, and giving effect to the events for which such calculation is being made, such calculation as will give pro forma effect to such events as
if such events occurred on the first day of the four consecutive fiscal quarter period ended on or before the occurrence of such event (the “Reference Period”): (i) in making any
determination of EBITDA, (x) effect shall be given to any Asset Sale, any acquisition, Investment, improvement (or any similar transaction or transactions not otherwise
permitted under Section 6.04 or 6.05 that require a waiver or consent of the Required Lenders and such waiver or consent has been obtained), any dividend, distribution or other
similar payment, any designation of any Subsidiary as an Unrestricted Subsidiary and any Subsidiary Redesignation and any restructurings of the business of the Company or
any Subsidiary that are expected to have a continuing impact and are factually supportable, which would include cost savings resulting from head count reduction, closure of
facilities and similar operational and other cost savings, which adjustments the Company determines are reasonable as set forth in a certificate of a Financial Officer of the
Company (the foregoing, together with any transactions related thereto or in connection therewith, the “relevant transactions™), in each case that occurred during the Reference
Period or, in the case of determinations made pursuant to the definition of the term “Permitted Business Acquisition” or pursuant to Article VI, occurring during the Reference
Period or thereafter and through and including the date upon which the respective Permitted Business Acquisition or relevant transaction is consummated, and (y) on or
following the delivery date of any new Vessel and for so long as such Reference Period includes such delivery date, in the event that the Company or any Subsidiary took
delivery of any new Vessel during such Reference Period, EBITDA shall include the projected EBITDA (based on reasonable assumptions) for such Vessel as if such Vessel
had been in operation on the first day of such Reference Period (as set forth in reasonable detail on an officer’s certificate prepared in good faith by a Responsible Officer of the
Company), and (ii) in making any determination on a
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Pro Forma Basis, all Indebtedness (including Indebtedness issued, incurred or assumed as a result of, or to finance, any relevant transactions and for which the financial effect is
being calculated, whether incurred under this Agreement or otherwise, but excluding normal fluctuations in revolving Indebtedness incurred for working capital purposes, in
each case not to finance any acquisition) issued, incurred, assumed or permanently repaid during the Reference Period (or, in the case of determinations made pursuant to the
definition of the term, “Permitted Business Acquisition” or pursuant to Article VI, occurring during the Reference Period or thereafter and through and including the date upon
which the respective Permitted Business Acquisition or relevant transaction is consummated) shall be deemed to have been issued, incurred, assumed or permanently repaid at
the beginning of such period except that any Indebtedness incurred in connection with the financing of a new Vessel shall be deemed to have not been incurred until the relevant
delivery date for such Vessel, and (iii) (A) any Subsidiary Redesignation then being designated, effect shall be given to such Subsidiary Redesignation and all other Subsidiary
Redesignations after the first day of the relevant Reference Period and on or prior to the date of the respective Subsidiary Redesignation then being designated, collectively, and
(B) any designation of a Subsidiary as an Unrestricted Subsidiary, effect shall be given to such designation and all other designations of Subsidiaries as Unrestricted
Subsidiaries after the first day of the relevant Reference Period and on or prior to the date of the then applicable designation of a Subsidiary as an Unrestricted Subsidiary,
collectively. Pro forma calculations made pursuant to the definition of the term “Pro Forma Basis” shall be determined in good faith by a Responsible Officer of the Company
and may include adjustments to reflect (1) operating expense reductions and other operating improvements or synergies reasonably expected to result from any relevant pro
forma event and (2) all adjustments of the nature used in connection with the calculation of Adjusted EBITDA as set forth in footnote 4 to the “Summary Consolidated Financial
Data” in the Offering Memorandum to the extent such adjustments, without duplication, continue to be applicable to such Reference Period. The Company shall deliver to the
Administrative Agent a certificate of a Financial Officer of the Company setting forth such demonstrable or additional operating expense reductions, other operating
improvements or synergies and adjustments pursuant to clause (2), and information and calculations supporting them in reasonable detail.

“Pro Forma Compliance” shall mean, at any date of determination, that, on a Pro Forma Basis after giving effect to the relevant transactions (including the assumption,
the issuance, incurrence and permanent repayment of Indebtedness), the Company would not violate the financial covenants set forth in Sections 6.12, 6.13, 6.14 and 6.15, after
recomputing the ratios and amounts measured thereunder as of the last day of the most recently ended fiscal quarter of the Company for which the financial statements and
certificates required pursuant to Section 5.04 have been delivered, and the Company shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent a certificate of a Responsible Officer of
the Company to such effect, together with all relevant financial information.

“Pro Rata Extension Offer” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(e).

“Process Agent” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.15(c).
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“Projections” shall mean the projections of the Company and the Subsidiaries included in the Information Memorandum and any other projections and any forward-
looking statements (including statements with respect to booked business) of such entities furnished to the Lenders or the Administrative Agent by or on behalf of the Company
or any Subsidiary prior to the Closing Date.

“Public Lender” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.17.
“Qualified Equity Interests” shall mean any Equity Interest other than Disqualified Stock.

“Ratio Compliance” shall mean, at any date of determination, that (A) the Loan-to-Value Ratio on a Pro Forma Basis is equal to or less than [*] to 1.0, or (B) the Fixed
Charge Coverage Ratio on a Pro Forma Basis is at least [*] to 1.0.

“Rate” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of the term “Type.”

“Real Property” shall mean, collectively, all right, title and interest (including any leasehold estate) in and to any and all parcels of or interests in real property owned
in fee or leased by any Loan Party, whether by lease, license, or other means, together with, in each case, all easements, hereditaments and appurtenances relating thereto, all
improvements and appurtenant fixtures and equipment, incidental to the ownership, lease or operation thereof.

“Reference Period” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of the term “Pro Forma Basis.”

” ¢

“Refinance” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of the term “Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness,
have a meaning correlative thereto.

‘Refinancing” and “Refinanced” shall

“Refinancing” shall mean the payment in full, satisfaction or discharge, as applicable, of all Indebtedness (and termination of all related commitments) under each of
(i) that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of July 2, 2013, by and among, inter alios Oceania Cruises, Inc., a corporation organized under the Laws of the Republic of Panama,
and OCI Finance Corp., a Delaware corporation, as borrowers, the lenders from time to time party thereto and Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as administrative agent
and mortgage trustee (as amended, restated, amended and restated, extended, refinanced, replaced, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time), (ii) that certain
Credit Agreement, dated as of August 21, 2012, by and among, inter alios Classic Cruises, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and Classic Cruises 11, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, collectively as Holdings, Regent and SSC Finance Corp., a Delaware corporation, as borrowers, the lenders from time to time party thereto and
Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as administrative agent and collateral agent (as amended, restated, amended and restated, extended, refinanced, replaced, supplemented
or otherwise modified from time to time) and (iii) the outstanding aggregate principal amount of 9.125% Second-Priority Senior Secured Notes due 2019 issued by Seven Seas
Cruises S. DE R.L., as issuer, pursuant to an indenture, dated as of May 19, 2011, among Seven Seas Cruises S. DE R.L., the guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trust
FSB, as trustee and collateral agent.
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“Refinancing Effective Date” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(j).

“Refinancing Term Loans” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(j).

“Register” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(b)(iv).

“Regulation U” shall mean Regulation U of the Board as from time to time in effect and all official rulings and interpretations thereunder or thereof.
“Regulation X” shall mean Regulation X of the Board as from time to time in effect and all official rulings and interpretations thereunder or thereof.

“Related Parties” shall mean, with respect to any specified person, such person’s Affiliates and the respective directors, trustees, officers, employees, agents and

advisors of such person and such person’s Affiliates.
“Release” shall mean any spilling, leaking, seepage, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, dumping, disposing, depositing,
emanating or migrating in, into, onto or through the environment or into or out of any property of Hazardous Materials.

“Remaining Present Value” shall mean, as of any date with respect to any lease, the present value as of such date of the scheduled future lease payments with respect to
such lease, determined with a discount rate equal to a market rate of interest for such lease reasonably determined at the time such lease was entered into.

“Replacement Revolving Facility Commitments” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(1).
“Replacement Revolving Facility Effective Date” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(1).

“Replacement Revolving Loans” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(1).

“Reportable Event” shall mean any reportable event as defined in Section 4043(c) of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder, other than those events as to which
the 30 day notice period referred to in Section 4043(c) of ERISA has been waived, with respect to a Plan (other than a Plan maintained by an ERISA Affiliate that is considered

an ERISA Affiliate only pursuant to subsection (m) or (0) of Section 414 of the Code).

“Required Lenders” shall mean, at any time, Lenders having (a) Loans, (b) Revolving L/C Exposure and (c) Term A Loan Commitments and Available Unused
Commitments, that taken together, represent more than 50% of the sum of (i) all Loans outstanding, (ii) Revolving L/C Exposure and (iii) the total Term A Loan Commitments

and Available Unused Commitments

45




at such time. The Loans, Revolving L/C Exposure, Term A Loan Commitments and Available Unused Commitment of any Defaulting Lender shall be disregarded in
determining Required Lenders at any time.

“Responsible Officer” of any person shall mean any executive officer or Financial Officer of such person and any other officer or similar official thereof responsible
for the administration of the obligations of such person in respect of this Agreement.

“Restatement” shall mean the amendment and restatement of the Original Credit Agreement pursuant to this Agreement.
“Restatement Effective Date” shall mean the date on which each of the conditions set forth in Section 4.02 has been satisfied.
“Restricted Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary that is not an Unrestricted Subsidiary.

“Revolving Facility” shall mean the Revolving Facility Commitments of any Class and the extensions of credit made hereunder by the Revolving Facility Lenders of
such Class and, for purposes of Section 10.08(b), shall refer to all such Revolving Facility Commitments as a single Class.

“Revolving Facility Borrowing” shall mean a Borrowing comprised of Revolving Facility Loans of the same Class.

“Revolving Facility Commitment” shall mean, with respect to each Revolving Facility Lender, the commitment of such Revolving Facility Lender to make Revolving
Facility Loans pursuant to Section 2.01, expressed as an amount representing the maximum aggregate permitted amount of such Revolving Facility Lender’s Revolving Facility
Credit Exposure hereunder, as such commitment may be (a) reduced from time to time pursuant to Section 2.08, (b) reduced or increased from time to time pursuant to
assignments by or to such Lender under Section 10.04, and (c) increased as provided under Section 2.21. The amount of each Lender’s Revolving Facility Commitment on the
Restatement Effective Date is set forth on Schedule 2.01, or in the Assignment and Acceptance or Incremental Assumption Agreement pursuant to which such Lender shall
have assumed its Revolving Facility Commitment (or Incremental Revolving Facility Commitment), as applicable. The aggregate amount of the Lenders’ Revolving Facility
Commitments is $750,000,000 on the Restatement Effective Date. After the Restatement Effective Date additional Classes of Revolving Facility Commitments may be added or
created pursuant to Incremental Assumption Agreements.

“Revolving Facility Credit Exposure” shall mean, at any time with respect to any Class of Revolving Facility Commitments, the sum of (a) the aggregate principal
amount of the Revolving Facility Loans of such Class outstanding at such time and (b) the Revolving L/C Exposure applicable to such Class at such time minus, for the purpose
of Sections 6.12, 6.13, 6.15 and 8.02, the amount of Letters of Credit that have been Cash Collateralized in an amount equal to the Minimum Collateral Amount at such time.
The Revolving Facility Credit Exposure of any Revolving Facility Lender at any time shall be the product of (x) such Revolving Facility Lender’s
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Revolving Facility Percentage of the applicable Class and (y) the aggregate Revolving Facility Credit Exposure of such Class of all Revolving Facility Lenders, collectively, at
such time.

“Revolving Facility Lender” shall mean a Lender with a Revolving Facility Commitment or with outstanding Revolving Facility Credit Exposure.

“Revolving Facility Loan” shall mean a Loan made by a Revolving Facility Lender pursuant to Section 2.01. Unless the context otherwise requires, the term
“Revolving Facility Loans” shall include the Other Revolving Loans.

“Revolving Facility Maturity Date” shall mean, as the context may require, (a) with respect to the Revolving Facility in effect on the Restatement Effective Date, June
6, 2021; provided that (i) the Revolving Facility Maturity Date shall be the earlier date that is 91 days prior to the final maturity date of the 5.25% Notes if on such date (x) the
5.25% Notes have not been repaid (or refinanced with Indebtedness maturing after the Revolving Facility Maturity Date) by such date and (y) Free Liquidity does not exceed
the aggregate principal amount of outstanding 5.25% Notes by at least $50,000,000 and (ii) the Revolving Facility Maturity Date shall be the earlier date that is 91 days prior to
the final maturity date of the 4.625% Notes if on such date (x) the 4.625% Notes have not been repaid (or refinanced with Indebtedness maturing after the Revolving Facility
Maturity Date) by such date and (y) Free Liquidity does not exceed the aggregate principal amount of outstanding 4.625% Notes by at least $50,000,000 and (b) with respect to
any other Classes of Revolving Facility Commitments, the maturity dates specified therefor in the applicable Incremental Assumption Agreement.

“Revolving Facility Percentage” shall mean, with respect to any Revolving Facility Lender of any Class, the percentage of the total Revolving Facility Commitments
of such Class represented by such Lender’s Revolving Facility Commitment of such Class. If the Revolving Facility Commitments of such Class have terminated or expired, the
Revolving Facility Percentages of such Class shall be determined based upon the Revolving Facility Commitments of such Class most recently in effect, giving effect to any
assignments pursuant to Section 10.04.

“Revolving L/C Exposure” of any Class shall mean at any time the sum of (a) the aggregate undrawn amount of all Letters of Credit applicable to such Class
outstanding at such time and (b) the aggregate principal amount of all L/C Disbursements applicable to such Class that have not yet been reimbursed at such time. The
Revolving L/C Exposure of any Class of any Revolving Facility Lender at any time shall mean its applicable Revolving Facility Percentage of the aggregate Revolving L/C
Exposure applicable to such Class at such time. For all purposes of this Agreement, if on any date of determination a Letter of Credit has expired by its terms but any amount
may still be drawn thereunder by reason of the operation of Rule 3.14 of the ISP, such Letter of Credit shall be deemed to be “outstanding” in the amount so remaining available
to be drawn. Unless otherwise specified herein, the amount of a Letter of Credit at any time shall be deemed to be the stated amount of such Letter of Credit in effect at such
time; provided, that with respect to any Letter of Credit that, by its terms or the terms of any document related thereto, provides for one or more automatic increases in the stated
amount thereof, the amount of such Letter of Credit shall be deemed to be the maximum stated amount of such Letter of Credit after
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giving effect to all such increases, whether or not such maximum stated amount is in effect at such time.
“S&P” shall mean Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group, Inc.

“Sale and Lease-Back Transaction” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.03.

“Sanctioned Country” means, at any time, a country, region or territory which is itself the subject or target of comprehensive Sanctions (at the time of this Agreement,
Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Sudan, Syria and Crimea).

“Sanctioned Person” means, at any time, any person with whom dealings are prohibited under Sanctions, including (a) any person listed in any Sanctions-related list of
designated persons maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, the U.S. Department of State, or by the United Nations Security
Council, the European Union, any European Union member state, or Her Majesty’s Treasury of the United Kingdom (b) any person organized or resident in a Sanctioned
Country or (c) any person owned or controlled by any such person or persons described in the foregoing clauses (a) or (b).

“Sanctions” means economic or financial sanctions or trade embargoes imposed, administered or enforced from time to time by (a) the U.S. government, including
those administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the U.S. Department of State or (b) the United Nations Security Council,
the European Union, any European Union member state or Her Majesty’s Treasury of the United Kingdom.

“SEC” shall mean the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or any successor thereto.

“Second Lien Intercreditor Agreement” shall mean an Intercreditor Agreement between the Administrative Agent and the authorized representative named therein for
the Senior Secured Notes, substantially in the form of Exhibit K-3, with such changes that are reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

“Second Valuation” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.16.

“Secured Parties” shall mean the “Secured Parties” as defined in the Collateral Agreement.

“Securities Act” shall mean the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Security Documents” shall mean the Vessel Mortgages, the Deeds of Covenants, the Collateral Agreement, the Subsidiary Guarantor Pledge Agreements, the

Earnings Assignments, the Insurance Assignments and each of the security agreements and other instruments and documents executed and delivered pursuant to any of the
foregoing or pursuant to Section 5.10.
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“Senior Secured Note Obligations” shall mean all obligations defined as “Senior Secured Note Obligations” in the Collateral Agreement and the other Security
Documents.

“Senior Secured Notes” shall mean secured or unsecured notes or other debt of the Company issued after the Closing Date, and the Indebtedness represented thereby;
provided that (a) the terms of which do not provide for any scheduled repayment, mandatory redemption or sinking fund obligations prior to the Latest Maturity Date (other
than customary offers to repurchase upon a change of control, asset sale or event of loss and customary acceleration right after an event of default), (b) (i) [*]% of the Net
Proceeds of all Pari Passu Senior Secured Notes and (ii) [*]% of the Net Proceeds of all other Senior Secured Notes shall be applied, on the date of the incurrence thereof, to
prepay Term Loans and accrued but unpaid interest, premiums and fees and expenses associated with such prepayment, (c) in respect of any Senior Secured Notes secured by
Collateral, no Affiliate of the Company (other than a Loan Party or a temporary escrow issuer) shall be an obligor (including pursuant to a Guarantee) in respect thereof, (d) the
covenants, events of default, guarantees, collateral and other terms of which (other than interest rate and redemption premiums), taken as a whole, are not more restrictive to the
Company and its Subsidiaries than those in this Agreement (or, if more restrictive, the Loan Documents are amended to contain such more restrictive terms (which amendments
shall automatically occur)), (e) in respect of any Senior Secured Notes secured by Collateral, the obligations in respect thereof shall not be secured by any Lien on any asset of
the Company, any Subsidiary or any other Affiliate (other than a transitory escrow issuer) of the Company, other than any asset constituting Collateral, (f) if such Senior
Secured Notes are intended to be secured by the Collateral on a pari passu basis with the Obligations, then all security therefor shall be granted pursuant to the Security
Documents, and the secured parties thereunder, or a trustee or collateral agent on their behalf, shall have become a party to a First Lien Intercreditor Agreement and shall have
executed and delivered to the Collateral Agent a joinder agreement to the applicable Security Documents in substantially the form attached thereto or otherwise in form and
substance reasonably acceptable to the Collateral Agent, and (g) if such Senior Secured Notes are intended to be secured by the Collateral on a junior basis to the Obligations,
then all security therefor shall be granted pursuant to separate security documents in substantially the same form and substance as the Security Documents, and the secured
parties thereunder, or a trustee or collateral agent on their behalf, shall have become a party to a Second Lien Intercreditor Agreement; provided further that, with respect to
clause (a) above, Indebtedness constituting Senior Secured Notes when issued shall not cease to constitute Senior Secured Notes as a result of the subsequent extension of the
Latest Maturity Date.

“Senior Secured Notes Indenture” shall mean any indenture under which any Senior Secured Notes are issued, as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented,
substituted, replaced, refinanced, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time in accordance with Section 6.01(z).

“Senior Unsecured Notes” shall mean (i) NCL’s 5.00% senior notes due 2018 (the ‘5.00% Notes”), pursuant to an indenture, dated as of February 6, 2013, between

the NCL and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “5.00% Notes Indenture”), and/or any notes issued by NCL in exchange for, and as contemplated by, the 5.00%
Notes and the related registration rights agreement with substantially identical terms as the 5.00% Notes, (ii) NCL’s 9.50%
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senior notes due 2018 (the ‘9.50% Notes™), pursuant to an indenture, dated as of November 9, 2010, between the NCL and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the
“9.50% Notes Indenture”), and/or any notes issued by NCL in exchange for, and as contemplated by, the 9.50% Notes and the related registration rights agreement with
substantially identical terms as the 9.50% Notes, (iii) NCL’s 5.25% senior notes due 2019 (the “5.25% Notes”), pursuant to an indenture, dated as of November 19, 2014,
between NCL and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “5.25% Notes Indenture”) and (iv) NCL’s 4.625% senior notes due 2020 (the ‘4.625% Notes™), pursuant to

an indenture, dated as of November 10, 2015, between NCL and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “4.625% Notes Indenture”), in each case as in effect on the
Restatement Effective Date and as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time in accordance with the requirements thereof and of this Agreement.

“Senior Unsecured Notes Documents” shall mean the Senior Unsecured Notes and the Senior Unsecured Notes Indentures.

“Senior Unsecured Notes Indentures” shall mean the 5.00% Notes Indenture, the 9.50% Notes Indenture, the 5.25% Notes Indenture and the 4.625% Notes Indenture,
in each case as in effect on the Restatement Effective Date and as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time in accordance with the requirements
thereof and of this Agreement.

“Similar Business” shall mean a business, the majority of whose revenues are derived from the activities of the Company and its Subsidiaries as of the Restatement
Effective Date or any business or activity that is reasonably similar or complementary thereto or a reasonable extension, development or expansion thereof or ancillary thereto.

“Specified Target Mortgaged Vessels” shall mean each of the Vessels identified on Schedule 1.01(c).
“Specified Target Subsidiaries” shall mean each of the persons identified on Schedule 1.01(b).

“Sponsors” shall mean (i) Apollo Management, L.P. and any of its respective Affiliates other than any portfolio companies not primarily engaged in the cruise
business (collectively, the “Apollo Sponsors”), (ii) TPG Global, LLC, TPG Capital and any of their respective Affiliates other than any portfolio companies (collectively, the
“TPG Sponsors™), (iii) Genting Hong Kong Limited, and any of its respective Affiliates (collectively, the ‘Genting Sponsors”), and (iv) any person that forms a group (within
the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or Section 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, or any successor provision) with any Apollo Sponsors, TPG Sponsors and/or Genting Sponsors;
provided that the Apollo Sponsors, TPG Sponsors and/or Genting Sponsors (x) owns a majority of the voting power and (y) controls a majority of the board of directors of such

group.
“Spot Rate” for a currency means the rate determined by the Administrative Agent or an Issuing Bank, as applicable, to be the rate quoted by the person acting in such

capacity as the spot rate for the purchase by such person of such currency with another currency through its principal foreign exchange trading office at approximately
11:00 a.m. on the date two Business Days prior to the date as of which the foreign exchange computation is made; provided that the
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Administrative Agent or such Issuing Bank may obtain such spot rate from another financial institution designated by the Administrative Agent or such Issuing Bank if the
person acting in such capacity does not have as of the date of determination a spot buying rate for any such currency.

“Standby Letter of Credit” shall have the meaning provided in Section 2.05(a).

“Statutory Reserves” shall mean, with respect to any currency, any reserve, liquid asset or similar requirements established by any Governmental Authority of the
United States, the United Kingdom or the European Union or of the jurisdiction of such currency or any jurisdiction in which Loans in such currency are made to which banks in
such jurisdiction are subject for any category of deposits or liabilities customarily used to fund loans in such currency or by reference to which interest rates applicable to Loans
in such currency are determined.

“Subagent” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.02.

“subsidiary” shall mean, with respect to any person (herein referred to as the ‘parent”), any corporation, partnership, association or other business entity (a) of which
securities or other ownership interests representing more than 50% of the equity or more than 50% of the ordinary voting power or more than 50% of the general partnership
interests are, at the time any determination is being made, directly or indirectly, owned, Controlled or held, or (b) that is, at the time any determination is made, otherwise
Controlled, by the parent or one or more subsidiaries of the parent or by the parent and one or more subsidiaries of the parent.

“Subsidiary” shall mean, unless the context otherwise requires, a subsidiary of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing (and except for purposes of Sections 3.08,
3.09, 3.13, 3.15, 3.16, 5.03, 5.09 and 8.01(k), and the definition of “Unrestricted Subsidiary” contained herein), an Unrestricted Subsidiary shall be deemed not to be a
Subsidiary of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries for purposes of this Agreement.

“Subsidiary Guarantor” shall mean (i) each direct and indirect Subsidiary of the Company which directly owns a Mortgaged Vessel (other than the Co-Borrower) and
(ii) each Additional Subsidiary Guarantor.

“Subsidiary Guarantor Pledge Agreement” shall mean each of (a) the Bermuda law Pledge Agreement dated as of the Closing Date between NCL International, Ltd.
and the Collateral Agent in respect of the equity of each Subsidiary Guarantor incorporated in and existing under the laws of Bermuda and (b) the Isle of Man law Pledge
Agreement dated as of the Closing Date between NCL International, Ltd. and the Collateral Agent in respect of the equity of each Subsidiary Guarantor incorporated in and
existing under the laws of the Isle of Man, (c) the New York law Pledge Agreement dated as of the Acquisition Closing Date between the Oceania Cruises, Inc. and the
Collateral Agent in respect of the equity of each Subsidiary Guarantor named therein, (d) the New York law Pledge Agreement dated as of the Acquisition Closing Date
between Seven Seas Cruises s. de r.l. and the Collateral Agent in respect of the equity of each Subsidiary Guarantor named therein, and (e) any additional pledge agreement
relating to the Equity Interests of any Subsidiary Guarantor.
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“Subsidiary Redesignation” shall have the meaning provided in the definition of “Unrestricted Subsidiary.”

“Swap Agreement” shall mean any agreement with respect to any swap, forward, future or derivative transaction or option or similar agreement involving, or settled by
reference to, one or more rates, currencies, commodities, equity or debt instruments or securities, or economic, financial or pricing indices or measures of economic, financial
or pricing risk or value or any similar transaction or any combination of these transactions; provided that no phantom stock or similar plan providing for payments only on
account of services provided by current or former directors, officers, employees or consultants of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries shall be a Swap Agreement.

“Target” shall mean Prestige Cruises International, Inc., a corporation organized under the Laws of the Republic of Panama.

“Tax Agreements” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.06(b).

“Taxes” shall mean any and all present or future taxes, duties, levies, imposts, assessments, deductions, withholdings or other similar charges imposed by any
Governmental Authority whether computed on a separate, consolidated, unitary, combined or other basis and any interest, fines, penalties or additions to tax with respect to the
foregoing.

“Term A Borrowing” shall mean a Borrowing comprised of Term A Loans.

“Term A Facility” shall mean the Term A Loan Commitments and any Term A Loans made hereunder.

“Term A Lender” shall mean a Lender with a Term A Loan Commitment and/or an outstanding Term A Loan.

“Term A Loan Commitment” shall mean with respect to each Term A Lender, the commitment of such Term A Lender to make Term A Loans in Dollars on the
Restatement Effective Date as set forth in Section 2.01(a). The initial amount of each Lender’s Term A Loan Commitment is set forth on Schedule 2.01 or in the Assignment
and Acceptance pursuant to which such Lender shall have assumed its Term A Loan Commitment, as applicable. The aggregate amount of the Term A Loan Commitments on
the Restatement Effective Date is $1,506,562,500.

“Term A Loan Installment Date” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.10(a)(i).

“Term A Loan Maturity Date” shall mean June 6, 2021; provided that (i) the Term A Loan Maturity Date shall be the earlier date that is 91 days prior to the final
maturity date of the 5.25% Notes if on such date (x) the 5.25% Notes have not been repaid (or refinanced with Indebtedness maturing after the Term A Loan Maturity Date) by

such date and (y) Free Liquidity does not exceed the aggregate principal amount of outstanding 5.25% Notes by at least $50,000,000 and (ii) the Term A Loan Maturity Date
shall be the earlier date that is 91 days prior to the final maturity date of the 4.625% Notes if on such date (x) the 4.625% Notes have not
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been repaid (or refinanced with Indebtedness maturing after the Term A Loan Maturity Date) by such date and (y) Free Liquidity does not exceed the aggregate principal
amount of outstanding 4.625% Notes by at least $50,000,000.

“Term A Loans” shall mean (a) any term loans made by the Lenders to the Borrowers on the Restatement Effective Date pursuant to Section 2.01(a) and (b) any
Incremental Term Loans in the form of Term A Loans made by the Incremental Term Lenders to the Borrowers pursuant to Section 2.01(c).

“Term Borrowing” shall mean any Term A Borrowing, any Incremental Term Borrowing or any other Term Borrowing.
“Term Facility” shall mean the Term A Facility and/or any or all of the Incremental Term Facilities and/or any or all of the Refinancing Term Loans.

“Term Facility Maturity Date” shall mean, as the context may require, (a) with respect to the Term A Facility in effect on the Restatement Effective Date, the Term A
Loan Maturity Date and (b) with respect to any other Class of Term Loans, the maturity dates specified therefor in the applicable Incremental Assumption Agreement.

“Term Loan Installment Date” shall mean any Term A Loan Installment Date, any Incremental Term Loan Installment Date or any Other Term Loan Installment Date.
“Term Loans” shall mean the Term A Loans and/or the Incremental Term Loans and/or the Refinancing Term Loans.

“Test Period” shall mean, on any date of determination, the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters of the Company then most recently ended (taken as one
accounting period).

“Third Valuation” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.16.

“Total Capitalization” shall mean, at any date of determination, the Total Net Funded Debt plus the consolidated stockholders’ equity of the Company and its
Subsidiaries at such date determined in accordance with GAAP and derived from the then latest unaudited and consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
Subsidiaries delivered to the Administrative Agent in the case of the first three quarters of each fiscal year and the then latest audited and consolidated financial statements
delivered to the Administrative Agent in the case of each fiscal year; provided it is understood that the effect of any impairment of intangible assets shall be added back to
stockholders’ equity and provided further, that Total Capitalization shall be determined on a Pro Forma Basis.

“Total Leverage Ratio” shall mean, on any date, the ratio of (a) (i) the aggregate principal amount of Consolidated Debt of the Company and its Subsidiaries

outstanding as of the last day of the Test Period most recently ended as of such date less (ii) without duplication, the Unrestricted Cash and Permitted Investments of the
Company and its Subsidiaries as of the last day of such Test Period, to (b) EBITDA for such Test Period, all determined on a consolidated basis in
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accordance with GAAP; provided, that the Total Leverage Ratio shall be determined for the relevant Test Period on a Pro Forma Basis.

“Total Net Funded Debt” shall mean, as at any relevant date:

1) Indebtedness for borrowed money of the Company and its Subsidiaries; and

(i1) the amount of any Indebtedness for borrowed money of any person other than the Company or its Subsidiaries but which is guaranteed by the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries as at such date:

less an amount equal to any Unrestricted Cash as at such date;provided that any unused Commitments and other amounts available for drawing under other revolving
or other credit facilities of the Company and its Subsidiaries which remain undrawn shall not be counted as cash or indebtedness for the purposes of Total Net Funded Debt and
provided further, that Total Net Funded Debt shall be determined on a Pro Forma Basis.

“Trade Letter of Credit” shall have the meaning provided in Section 2.05(a)(i).

“Transactions” shall mean, collectively, (a) the execution, delivery and performance by the Loan Parties of the Loan Documents to which they are a party and, in the
case of the Borrowers, the making of the Borrowings hereunder, and (b) the payment of related fees and expenses.

“Trust Property” shall mean (a) the security, powers, rights, titles, benefits and interests (both present and future) constituted by and conferred on the Mortgage Trustee
under or pursuant to the Vessel Mortgages (including the benefits of all covenants, undertakings, representations, warranties and obligations given, made or undertaken to the
Mortgage Trustee in the Vessel Mortgages), (b) all moneys, property and other assets paid or transferred to or vested in the Mortgage Trustee, or any agent of the Mortgage
Trustee whether from any Loan Party or any other person, and (c) all money, investments, property and other assets at any time representing or deriving from any of the
foregoing, including all interest, income and other sums at any time received or receivable by the Mortgage Trustee or any agent of the Mortgage Trustee in respect of the same
(or any part thereof).

“Type” shall mean, when used in respect of any Loan or Borrowing, the Rate by reference to which interest on such Loan or on the Loans comprising such Borrowing
is determined. For purposes hereof, the term “Rate” shall include the Adjusted LIBO Rate and the ABR.

“Unfunded Pension Liability” shall mean the excess of a Plan’s “accumulated benefit obligations” as defined under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
87, over the current fair market value of that Plan’s assets.

“Uniform Commercial Code” shall mean the Uniform Commercial Code as the same may from time to time be in effect in the State of New York or the Uniform
Commercial Code (or similar code or statute) of another jurisdiction, to the extent it may be required to apply to any item or items of Collateral.
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“United Kingdom” and “U.K.” shall mean the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland.
“United States” and “U.S.” shall mean the United States of America.

“Unrestricted Cash” shall mean cash or cash equivalents of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that would not appear as “restricted” on a consolidated balance
sheet of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

“Unrestricted Subsidiary” shall mean any Subsidiary of the Company that is acquired or created after the Restatement Effective Date and designated by the Company
as an Unrestricted Subsidiary hereunder by written notice to the Administrative Agent; provided, that the Company shall only be permitted to so designate a new Unrestricted
Subsidiary after the Restatement Effective Date so long as (a) no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or would result therefrom, (b) immediately after
giving effect to such designation (as well as all other such designations theretofore consummated after the first day of such Reference Period), the Company shall be in Pro
Forma Compliance, (c) such Unrestricted Subsidiary shall be capitalized (to the extent capitalized by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries) through Investments as permitted
by, and in compliance with, Section 6.04, (d) [reserved]; (¢) such Subsidiary shall have been designated an “unrestricted subsidiary” (or otherwise not be subject to the
covenants and defaults) under the Senior Unsecured Notes Indentures, all Permitted Additional Debt and all Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness in respect of any of the
foregoing and all Disqualified Stock; provided, further, that at the time of the initial Investment by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in such Subsidiary, the Company shall
designate such entity as an Unrestricted Subsidiary in a written notice to the Administrative Agent. The Company may designate any Unrestricted Subsidiary to be a Subsidiary
for purposes of this Agreement (each, a “Subsidiary Redesignation”); provided, that (i) such Unrestricted Subsidiary, both before and after giving effect to such designation,
shall be a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company, (ii) no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or would result therefrom, (iii) immediately after
giving effect to such Subsidiary Redesignation (as well as all other Subsidiary Redesignations theretofore consummated after the first day of such Reference Period), the
Company shall be in Pro Forma Compliance, (iv) all representations and warranties contained herein and in the other Loan Documents shall be true and correct in all material
respects with the same effect as though such representations and warranties had been made on and as of the date of such Subsidiary Redesignation (both before and after giving
effect thereto), unless stated to relate to a specific earlier date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such
earlier date, and (v) the Company shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent an officer’s certificate executed by a Responsible Officer of the Company, certifying to the
best of such officer’s knowledge, compliance with the requirements of preceding clauses (i) through (iv), inclusive, and containing the calculations and information required by
the preceding clause (ii).

“USA PATRIOT Act” shall mean the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001
(Title IIT of Pub. L. No. 107 56 (signed into law October 26, 2001)).
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“Valuation” shall mean, in relation to any Mortgaged Vessel, a valuation of such Mortgaged Vessel made at any relevant time by an Approved Broker with or without
physical inspection of such Mortgaged Vessel, on the basis of a sale for prompt delivery for cash at arms’ length on customary commercial terms as between a willing seller and
a willing buyer, free of any existing charter or other contracts of employment. If any Approved Broker shall deliver a Valuation indicating a range of values for a Mortgaged
Vessel, the Valuation for such Mortgaged Vessel shall be the arithmetic mean of the two endpoints of such range. Further, if any Approved Broker shall deliver a Valuation
indicating a value for a Mortgaged Vessel in any currency other than Dollars, the Valuation for such Mortgaged Vessel shall be the Dollar Equivalent thereof. It is agreed that as
of the Restatement Effective Date and until a Valuation shall have been obtained pursuant to Section 5.16 for any Mortgaged Vessel, the Valuation for such Mortgaged Vessel
shall be as follows: (i) $[*] for the NORWEGIAN SUN, (ii) $[*] for the NORWEGIAN DAWN, (iii) $[*] for the NORWEGIAN STAR, (iv) $[*] for the NORWEGIAN
SPIRIT, (v) $[*] for the NORWEGIAN PEARL, (vi) $[*] for the NORWEGIAN GEM, (vii) $[*] for the INSIGNIA, (viii) $[*] for the NAUTICA, (ix) $[*] for the REGATTA,
(x) $[*] for the MARINER, (xi) $[*] for the NAVIGATOR, and (xii) $[*] for the VOYAGER.

«

Value Component” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of Loan-to-Value Ratio in this Section 1.01.
“Vessel” shall mean a passenger cruise vessel.
“Vessel Mortgages” shall mean each first priority statutory ship mortgage or first preferred ship mortgage (or equivalent) granting a Lien on a Mortgaged Vessel.

“Wholly Owned Subsidiary” of any person shall mean a subsidiary of such person, all of the Equity Interests of which (other than directors’ qualifying shares or
nominee or other similar shares required pursuant to applicable law) are owned by such person or another Wholly Owned Subsidiary of such person.

“Withdrawal Liability” shall mean liability to a Multiemployer Plan as a result of a complete or partial withdrawal from such Multiemployer Plan, as such terms are
defined in Part I of Subtitle E of Title IV of ERISA.

«

Withholding Agent” shall mean the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent or any other applicable withholding agent.

“Write-Down and Conversion Powers” means, with respect to any EEA Resolution Authority, the write-down and conversion powers of such EEA Resolution
Authority from time to time under the Bail-In Legislation for the applicable EEA Member Country, which write-down and conversion powers are described in the EU Bail-In
Legislation Schedule.

Section 1.02. Terms Generally. With reference to this Agreement and each other Loan Document, unless otherwise specified herein or in such other Loan
Document:
(a) The definitions set forth or referred to in Section 1.01 shall apply equally to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined. Whenever the

context may require,
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any pronoun shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine and neuter forms. The words “include,” “includes” and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by
the phrase “without limitation.” All references herein to Articles, Sections, Exhibits and Schedules shall be deemed references to Articles and Sections of, and Exhibits
and Schedules to, this Agreement unless the context shall otherwise require. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, any reference in this Agreement to any Loan
Document shall mean such document as amended, restated, supplemented, replaced or otherwise modified from time to time. All references to a person shall include that
person’s permitted successors and assigns (subject to any restrictions on assignment set forth herein). With respect to any Default or Event of Default, the words “exist,”
“existence,” “occurred” or “continuing” shall be deemed to refer to a Default or Event of Default that has not been waived in accordance with Section 10.08 or, to the
extent applicable, cured in accordance with Section 8.02 or otherwise. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms of an accounting or financial nature shall
be construed in accordance with GAAP, as in effect from time to time; provided, that, if the Company notifies the Administrative Agent that the Company requests an
amendment to any provision hereof to eliminate the effect of any change occurring after the Closing Date in GAAP or in the application thereof on the operation of such
provision (or if the Administrative Agent notifies the Company that the Required Lenders request an amendment to any provision hereof for such purpose), regardless of
whether any such notice is given before or after such change in GAAP or in the application thereof, then such provision shall be interpreted on the basis of GAAP as in
effect and applied immediately before such change shall have become effective until such notice shall have been withdrawn or such provision amended in accordance
herewith.

(b) In the computation of periods of time from a specified date to a later specified date, the word “from” means “from and including,” the words “to” and
“until” each mean “to but excluding,” and the word “through” means “to and including.”

Section 1.03. Exchange Rates: Currency Equivalents Except for purposes of financial statements delivered by Loan Parties hereunder or calculating financial

covenants hereunder or except as otherwise provided herein, the applicable amount of any currency (other than Dollars) for purposes of the Loan Documents shall be such
Dollar Equivalent amount as so determined by the Administrative Agent or Issuing Bank, as applicable. No Default or Event of Default shall arise as a result of any limitation
or threshold set forth in Dollars in Article VI or paragraph (f) or (j) of Section 8.01 being exceeded solely as a result of changes in currency exchange rates from those rates
applicable on the first day of the fiscal quarter in which such determination occurs or in respect of which such determination is being made.

Section 1.04. Effect of this Agreement on the Original Credit Agreement and the Other Existing Loan Documents Upon satisfaction of the conditions precedent to

the effectiveness of this Agreement set forth in Section 4.02, this Agreement shall be binding on the Borrowers, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent, the Lenders and
the other parties hereto and the Original Credit Agreement and the provisions thereof shall be replaced in their entirety by this Agreement and the provisions hereof; provided
that for the avoidance of doubt, each Borrower and each other Loan Party hereby reaffirms that (a) the Obligations (as defined in the Original
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Credit Agreement) of the Borrowers and the other Loan Parties under the Original Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents that remain unpaid and outstanding as of
the date of this Agreement shall continue to exist under and be evidenced by this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, (b) all Letters of Credit under and as defined in the
Original Credit Agreement shall continue as Letters of Credit under this Agreement and (c) the Collateral and the Loan Documents shall continue to secure, guarantee, support
and otherwise benefit the Obligations on the same terms as prior to the effectiveness hereof. Upon the effectiveness of this Agreement, each Loan Document (other than the
Original Credit Agreement) that was in effect immediately prior to the date of this Agreement shall continue to be effective on its terms unless otherwise expressly stated
herein.

ARTICLE I
THE CREDITS
Section 2.01. Commitments. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein:
(a) each Lender with a Term A Loan Commitment on the Restatement Effective Date agrees to make a Term A Loan denominated in Dollars to the

Borrowers on the Restatement Effective Date in a principal amount equal to its Term A Loan Commitment;

(b) each Lender agrees to make Revolving Facility Loans denominated in Dollars of a Class to the Borrowers from time to time during the Availability
Period in an aggregate principal amount that will not result in (i) such Lender’s Revolving Facility Credit Exposure of such Class exceeding such Lender’s Revolving
Facility Commitment of such Class or (ii) the Revolving Facility Credit Exposure of such Class exceeding the total Revolving Facility Commitments of such Class.
Within the foregoing limits and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Borrowers may borrow, prepay and reborrow amounts under the Revolving
Facility Loans; and

() each Lender having an Incremental Term Loan Commitment agrees, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the applicable Incremental
Assumption Agreement, to make Incremental Term Loans denominated in Dollars to the Borrowers, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed its Incremental Term
Loan Commitment.

Section 2.02. Loans and Borrowings.

(a) Each Loan shall be made as part of a Borrowing consisting of Loans under the same Facility and of the same Type made by the Lenders ratably in accordance
with their respective Commitments under the applicable Facility; provided, however, that Revolving Facility Loans of any Class shall be made by the Revolving Facility
Lenders of such Class ratably in accordance with their respective Revolving Facility Percentages on the date such Loans are made hereunder. The failure of any Lender to make
any Loan required to be made by it shall not relieve any other Lender of its obligations hereunder; provided that unless otherwise agreed by all the Lenders, (i) the obligations
of a Lender under the Loan Documents are several, (ii) failure by a Lender to perform its obligations does not affect the obligations of any other party under the Loan
Documents, (iii) no Lender is responsible for the obligations of any other Lender under the
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Loan Documents, (iv) the rights of a Lender under the Loan Documents are separate and independent rights, (v) a Lender may, except as otherwise stated in the Loan
Documents, separately enforce those rights and (vi) a debt arising under the Loan Documents to a Lender is a separate and independent debt.

(b) Subject to Section 2.01(a) and Section 2.14, each Borrowing shall be comprised entirely of ABR Loans or Eurocurrency Loans as the Borrowers may request
in accordance herewith. Each Lender at its option may make any ABR Loan or Eurocurrency Loan by causing any domestic or foreign branch or Affiliate of such Lender to
make such Loan; provided, that any exercise of such option shall not affect the obligation of the Borrowers to repay such Loan in accordance with the terms of this Agreement
and such Lender shall not be entitled to any amounts payable under Section 2.15 or 2.17 solely in respect of increased costs resulting from such exercise and existing at the time
of such exercise.

(c) At the commencement of each Interest Period for any Eurocurrency Revolving Facility Borrowing, such Borrowing shall be in an aggregate amount that is an
integral multiple of the Borrowing Multiple and not less than the Borrowing Minimum. At the time that each ABR Revolving Facility Borrowing is made, such Borrowing shall
be in an aggregate amount that is an integral multiple of the Borrowing Multiple and not less than the Borrowing Minimum; provided, that an ABR Revolving Facility
Borrowing may be in an aggregate amount that is equal to the entire unused balance of the Revolving Facility Commitments or that is required to finance the reimbursement of
an L/C Disbursement as contemplated by Section 2.05(e). Borrowings of more than one Type and under more than one Facility may be outstanding at the same time; provided,
that there shall not at any time be more than a total of (1) 10 Eurocurrency Borrowings outstanding under the Term Facilities and (2) 10 Eurocurrency Borrowings outstanding
under the Revolving Facility.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Borrowers shall not be entitled to request, or to elect to convert or continue, any Borrowing of any
Class if the Interest Period requested with respect thereto would end after the Revolving Facility Maturity Date or the Term Facility Maturity Date for such Class, as applicable.

Section 2.03. Requests for Borrowings. To request a Revolving Facility Borrowing and/or a Term Borrowing, the applicable Borrower shall notify the
Administrative Agent of such request by telephone (a) in the case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing, not later than 2:00 p.m., Local Time, three Business Days before the date of the
proposed Borrowing or (b) in the case of an ABR Borrowing not later than 12:00 noon, Local Time, on the date of the proposed Borrowing. Each such telephonic Borrowing
Request shall be irrevocable and shall be confirmed promptly by hand delivery or electronic means to the Administrative Agent of a written Borrowing Request in a form
approved by the Administrative Agent and signed by the applicable Borrower. Each such telephonic and written Borrowing Request shall specify the following information in
compliance with Section 2.02:

@) whether such Borrowing is to be a Borrowing of Term A Loans, Revolving Facility Loans, Other Incremental Revolving Loans, Other Revolving
Loans, Replacement Revolving Loans, Refinancing Term Loans or Other Incremental Term Loans;
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(i1) the aggregate amount of the requested Borrowing;
(iif) the date of such Borrowing, which shall be a Business Day;
@iv) subject to Section 2.01(a), whether such Borrowing is to be an ABR Borrowing or a Eurocurrency Borrowing;

W) in the case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing, the initial Interest Period to be applicable thereto, which shall be a period contemplated by the definition of
the term “Interest Period”; and

(vi) the location and number of the applicable Borrower’s account to which funds are to be disbursed.

If no election as to the Type of Borrowing is specified, then the requested Borrowing shall be an ABR Borrowing. If no Interest Period is specified with respect to any requested
Eurocurrency Borrowing, then the Borrowers shall be deemed to have selected an Interest Period of one month’s duration. Promptly following receipt of a Borrowing Request
in accordance with this Section 2.03, the Administrative Agent shall advise each Lender of the details thereof and of the amount of such Lender’s Loan to be made as part of the
requested Borrowing.

Section 2.04. [Reserved].
Section 2.05. Letters of Credit.
(a) General.

1) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Company may request the issuance of (w) trade letters of credit in support of trade obligations of the
Loan Parties and their Affiliates incurred in the ordinary course of business (such letters of credit issued for such purposes, “Trade Letters of Credit”) and (x) standby letters of
credit issued for any other lawful purposes of the Loan Parties and their Affiliates (such letters of credit issued for such purposes, “Standby Letters of Credit”), in each case, for
its own account in Dollars and in a form reasonably acceptable to the applicable Issuing Bank, at any time and from time to time during the applicable Availability Period and
prior to the date that is five Business Days prior to the applicable Revolving Facility Maturity Date. In the event of any inconsistency between the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and the terms and conditions of any form of letter of credit application or other agreement submitted by the Borrowers to, or entered into by the Borrowers with, an
Issuing Bank relating to any Letter of Credit, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall control. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Issuing Bank shall
have any obligation hereunder to issue any Letter of Credit the proceeds of which would be made available to any person (i) to fund any activity or business of or with any
Sanctioned Person or in any Sanctioned Country, in violation of any Sanctions or (ii) in any manner that would result in a violation of any Sanctions by any party to this
Agreement. All Existing Letters of Credit shall be deemed to be “Letters of Credit” issued pursuant to this Agreement on the Restatement Effective Date and from and after the
Restatement Effective Date shall be subject to and governed by the terms and
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conditions hereof and shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding under the Original Credit Agreement.

(ii) No Issuing Bank shall be under any obligation to issue any Letter of Credit if any order, judgment or decree of any Governmental Authority or arbitrator shall
by its terms purport to enjoin or restrain such Issuing Bank from issuing such Letter of Credit or any requirement of law applicable to such Issuing Bank or any request or
directive (whether or not having the force of law) from any Governmental Authority with jurisdiction over such Issuing Bank shall prohibit, or request that such Issuing Bank
refrain from, the issuance of letters of credit generally or such Letter of Credit in particular or shall impose upon such Issuing Bank with respect to such Letter of Credit any
restriction or reserve or capital requirement (for which such Issuing Bank is not otherwise compensated hereunder) not in effect with respect to such Issuing Bank on the
Restatement Effective Date, or any unreimbursed loss, cost or expense (including as a result of Basel IIT) which was not applicable or in effect with respect to such Issuing Bank
as of the Restatement Effective Date and which such Issuing Bank reasonably and in good faith deems material to it or if the amount of such Letter of credit, when aggregated
with the amount of all other Letters of Credit (and L/C Disbursements in respect thereof) issued by such Issuing Bank would exceed such Issuing Bank’s Issuing Bank Sublimit.

(b) Notice of Issuance, Amendment, Renewal, Extension: Certain Conditions. To request the issuance of a Letter of Credit (or the amendment, renewal (other
than an automatic extension in accordance with paragraph (c) of this Section) or extension of an outstanding Letter of Credit), the Company shall hand deliver or telecopy (or
transmit by electronic communication, if arrangements for doing so have been approved by the applicable Issuing Bank) to the applicable Issuing Bank and the Administrative
Agent (three Business Days in advance of the requested date of issuance, amendment or extension or such shorter period as the Administrative Agent and the applicable Issuing
Bank in their sole discretion may agree) a notice requesting the issuance of a Letter of Credit, or identifying the Letter of Credit to be amended or extended, and specifying the
date of issuance, amendment or extension (which shall be a Business Day), the date on which such Letter of Credit is to expire (which shall comply with paragraph (c) of this
Section), the amount and currency of such Letter of Credit, the name and address of the beneficiary thereof, whether such Letter of Credit constitutes a Standby Letter of Credit
or a Trade Letter of Credit, and such other information as shall be necessary to issue, amend or extend such Letter of Credit. If requested by the applicable Issuing Bank, the
Company also shall submit a letter of credit application on such Issuing Bank’s standard form in connection with any request for a Letter of Credit. A Letter of Credit shall be
issued, amended or extended only if (and upon issuance, amendment or extension of each Letter of Credit the Company shall be deemed to represent and warrant that), after
giving effect to such issuance, amendment or extension (i) the Revolving L/C Exposure shall not exceed the Letter of Credit Sublimit, (ii) the applicable Revolving Facility
Credit Exposure shall not exceed the applicable Revolving Facility Commitments.

() Expiration Date. Each Standby Letter of Credit shall expire at or prior to the close of business on the earlier of (i) the date one year (unless otherwise agreed
upon by the Administrative Agent and the applicable Issuing Bank in their sole discretion) after the date of the issuance of such Standby Letter of Credit (or, in the case of any
extension thereof, one year (unless otherwise agreed upon by the Administrative Agent and the applicable Issuing Bank in their
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sole discretion) after such renewal or extension) and (ii) the date that is five Business Days prior to the applicable Revolving Facility Maturity Dateprovided, that any Standby
Letter of Credit with a one year tenor may provide for automatic extension thereof for additional one year periods (which, in no event, shall extend beyond the date referred to
in clause (ii) of this paragraph (c)) so long as such Standby Letter of Credit permits the applicable Issuing Bank to prevent any such extension at least once in each twelve-
month period (commencing with the date of issuance of such Standby Letter of Credit) by giving prior notice to the beneficiary thereof within a time period during such twelve-
month period to be agreed upon at the time such Standby Letter of Credit is issued; provided, further, that if the applicable Issuing Bank and the Administrative Agent each
consent in their sole discretion, the expiration date on any Standby Letter of Credit may extend beyond the date referred to in clause (ii) above, provided, that if any such
Standby Letter of Credit is outstanding or is issued under the Revolving Facility Commitments of any Class after the date that is 30 days prior to such Revolving Facility
Maturity Date for such Class the Borrowers shall provide cash collateral pursuant to documentation reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and the relevant Issuing
Bank in an amount equal to [*]% of the face amount of each such Standby Letter of Credit on such date of issuance. Each Trade Letter of Credit shall expire on the earlier of (x)
180 days after such Trade Letter of Credit’s date of issuance or (y) the date five Business Days prior to the applicable Revolving Facility Maturity Date.

(d) Participations. By the issuance of a Letter of Credit (or an amendment to a Letter of Credit increasing the amount thereof) under the Revolving Facility
Commitments of any Class and without any further action on the part of the applicable Issuing Bank or the Revolving Facility Lenders, such Issuing Bank hereby grants to each
Revolving Facility Lender under such Class, and each such Revolving Facility Lender hereby acquires from such Issuing Bank, a participation in such Letter of Credit equal to
such Revolving Facility Lender’s applicable Revolving Facility Percentage of the aggregate amount available to be drawn under such Letter of Credit. In consideration and in
furtherance of the foregoing, each Revolving Facility Lender hereby absolutely and unconditionally agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the applicable
Issuing Bank, such Revolving Facility Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage of each L/C Disbursement made by such Issuing Bank and not reimbursed by the Borrowers on
the date due as provided in paragraph (e) of this Section, or of any reimbursement payment required to be refunded to the Borrowers for any reason, in each case, in Dollars.
Each Revolving Facility Lender acknowledges and agrees that its obligation to acquire participations pursuant to this paragraph in respect of Letters of Credit is absolute and
unconditional and shall not be affected by any circumstance whatsoever, including any amendment, renewal or extension of any Letter of Credit or the occurrence and
continuance of a Default or Event of Default or reduction or termination of the Commitments or the fact that, as a result of changes in currency exchange rates, such Revolving
Facility Lender’s Revolving Facility Credit Exposure at any time might exceed its Revolving Facility Commitment at such time (in which case Section 2.11(f) would apply),
and that each such payment shall be made without any offset, abatement, withholding or reduction whatsoever. The obligation of the Revolving Facility Lenders to participate in
Letters of Credit shall terminate on the Revolving Facility Maturity Date.

(e) Reimbursement. If the applicable Issuing Bank shall make any L/C Disbursement in respect of a Letter of Credit, the Borrowers shall reimburse (or cause the
applicable Loan Party or Subsidiary to reimburse) such L/C Disbursement by paying to the Administrative Agent an
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amount in Dollars equal to such L/C Disbursement not later than 2:00 p.m., Local Time, on the same day (or if such day is not a Business Day, the next following Business Day)
the Company receives notice under paragraph (g) of this Section of such L/C Disbursement, together with accrued interest thereon from the date of such L/C Disbursement at
the rate applicable to ABR Revolving Facility Loans of the applicable Class; provided, that the Borrowers may, subject to the conditions to borrowing set forth herein, request in
accordance with Section 2.03 that such payment be financed with an ABR Revolving Facility Borrowing of the applicable Class, as applicable, in an equivalent amount and
currency and, to the extent so financed, the Borrowers’ obligations to make such payment shall be discharged and replaced by the resulting ABR Revolving Facility Borrowing.
If the Borrowers fail to reimburse any L/C Disbursement when due, then the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify the applicable Issuing Bank and each other applicable
Revolving Facility Lender of the applicable L/C Disbursement, the payment then due from the Borrowers in respect thereof and, in the case of a Revolving Facility Lender, such
Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage thereof. Promptly following receipt of such notice, each Revolving Facility Lender with a Revolving Facility Commitment of the
applicable Class shall pay to the Administrative Agent in Dollars, its Revolving Facility Percentage (as specified by the Administrative Agent to such Revolving Facility Lender
at the time) of the payment then due from the Borrowers in the same manner as provided in Section 2.06 with respect to Loans made by such Lender (and Section 2.06 shall
apply, mutatis mutandis, to the payment obligations of the Revolving Facility Lenders), and the Administrative Agent shall promptly pay to the applicable Issuing Bank the
amounts so received by it from the Revolving Facility Lenders. Promptly following receipt by the Administrative Agent of any payment from the Borrowers pursuant to this
paragraph, the Administrative Agent shall distribute such payment to the applicable Issuing Bank or, to the extent that Revolving Facility Lenders have made payments pursuant
to this paragraph to reimburse such Issuing Bank, then to such Lenders in Dollars and such Issuing Bank as their interests may appear. Any payment made by a Revolving
Facility Lender pursuant to this paragraph to reimburse an Issuing Bank for any L/C Disbursement (other than the funding of an ABR Revolving Loan as contemplated above)
shall not constitute a Loan and shall not relieve the Borrowers of their obligation to reimburse such L/C Disbursement.

®) Obligations Absolute. The obligation of the Borrowers to reimburse L/C Disbursements as provided in paragraph (e) of this Section shall be absolute,
unconditional and irrevocable, and shall be performed strictly in accordance with the terms of this Agreement under any and all circumstances whatsoever and irrespective of (i)
any lack of validity or enforceability of any Letter of Credit or this Agreement, or any term or provision therein or herein, (ii) any draft or other document presented under a
Letter of Credit proving to be forged, fraudulent or invalid in any respect or any statement therein being untrue or inaccurate in any respect, (iii) payment by the applicable
Issuing Bank under a Letter of Credit against presentation of a draft or other document that does not comply with the terms of such Letter of Credit or (iv) any other event or
circumstance whatsoever, whether or not similar to any of the foregoing, that might, but for the provisions of this Section, constitute a legal or equitable discharge of, or provide
a right of setoff against, the Borrowers’ obligations hereunder. Neither the Administrative Agent, the Lenders nor any Issuing Bank, nor any of their Related Parties, shall have
any liability or responsibility by reason of or in connection with the issuance or transfer of any Letter of Credit or any payment or failure to make any payment thereunder
(irrespective of any of the circumstances referred to in the preceding sentence), or any error, omission, interruption, loss or delay in transmission
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or delivery of any draft, notice or other communication under or relating to any Letter of Credit (including any document required to make a drawing thereunder), any error in
interpretation of technical terms or any consequence arising from causes beyond the control of such Issuing Bank, or any of the circumstances referred to in clauses (i), (ii) or
(iii) of the first sentence; provided, that the foregoing shall not be construed to excuse the applicable Issuing Bank from liability to the Borrowers to the extent of any direct
damages (as opposed to consequential damages, claims in respect of which are hereby waived by the Borrowers to the extent permitted by applicable law) suffered by the
Borrowers that are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been caused by such Issuing Bank’s failure to exercise care when determining whether drafts and
other documents presented under a Letter of Credit comply with the terms thereof. The parties hereto expressly agree that, in the absence of gross negligence or willful
misconduct on the part of the applicable Issuing Bank, such Issuing Bank shall be deemed to have exercised care in each such determination. In furtherance of the foregoing and
without limiting the generality thereof, the parties agree that, with respect to documents presented that appear on their face to be in substantial compliance with the terms of a
Letter of Credit, the applicable Issuing Bank may, in its sole discretion, either accept and make payment upon such documents without responsibility for further investigation,
regardless of any notice or information to the contrary, or refuse to accept and make payment upon such documents if such documents are not in strict compliance with the terms
of such Letter of Credit.

(€] Disbursement Procedures. The applicable Issuing Bank shall, promptly following its receipt thereof, examine all documents purporting to represent a demand
for payment under a Letter of Credit. Such Issuing Bank shall promptly notify the Administrative Agent and the Company by telephone (confirmed by electronic means) of any
such demand for payment under a Letter of Credit and whether such Issuing Bank has made or will make a L/C Disbursement thereunder; provided, that any failure to give or
delay in giving such notice shall not relieve the Borrowers of their obligations to reimburse such Issuing Bank and the Revolving Facility Lenders with respect to any such L/C
Disbursement.

(h) Interim Interest. If an Issuing Bank shall make any L/C Disbursement, then, unless the Borrowers shall reimburse such L/C Disbursement in full on the date
such L/C Disbursement is made, the unpaid amount thereof shall bear interest, for each day from and including the date such L/C Disbursement is made to but excluding the
date that the Borrowers reimburse such L/C Disbursement, at the rate per annum then applicable to ABR Revolving Loans of the applicable Class; provided, that, if such L/C
Disbursement is not reimbursed by the Borrowers when due pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section, then Section 2.13(c) shall apply. Interest accrued pursuant to this
paragraph shall be for the account of the applicable Issuing Bank, except that interest accrued on and after the date of payment by any Revolving Facility Lender pursuant to
paragraph (e) of this Section to reimburse such Issuing Bank shall be for the account of such Revolving Facility Lender to the extent of such payment.

@) Replacement of an Issuing Bank. An Issuing Bank may be replaced at any time by written agreement among the Company, the Administrative Agent, the

replaced Issuing Bank and the successor Issuing Bank. The Administrative Agent shall notify the Lenders of any such replacement of an Issuing Bank. At the time any such
replacement shall become effective, the Borrowers shall pay all unpaid fees accrued for the account of the replaced Issuing Bank pursuant
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to Section 2.12. From and after the effective date of any such replacement, (i) the successor Issuing Bank shall have all the rights and obligations of the replaced Issuing Bank
under this Agreement with respect to Letters of Credit to be issued thereafter and (ii) references herein to the term “Issuing Bank” shall be deemed to refer to such successor or
to any previous Issuing Bank, or to such successor and all previous Issuing Banks, as the context shall require. After the replacement of an Issuing Bank hereunder, the replaced
Issuing Bank shall remain a party hereto and shall continue to have all the rights and obligations of such Issuing Bank under this Agreement with respect to Letters of Credit
issued by it prior to such replacement but shall not be required to issue additional Letters of Credit.

1) Cash Collateralization. If any Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, (i) in the case of an Event of Default described in Section 8.01(h) or (i), on the
Business Day or (ii) in the case of any other Event of Default, on the third Business Day, in each case, following the date on which the Company receives notice from the
Administrative Agent (or, if the maturity of the Loans has been accelerated, Revolving Facility Lenders with Revolving L/C Exposure representing greater than 50% of the total
Revolving L/C Exposure) demanding the deposit of cash collateral pursuant to this paragraph, the Borrowers shall deposit in an account with or at the direction of the
Administrative Agent, in the name of the Administrative Agent and for the benefit of the Lenders, an amount in cash in Dollars equal to the Revolving L/C Exposure as of such
date plus any accrued and unpaid interest thereon; provided, that upon the occurrence of any Event of Default with respect to a Borrower described in clause (h) or (i) of
Section 8.01, the obligation to deposit such cash collateral shall become effective immediately, and such deposit shall become immediately due and payable, without demand or
other notice of any kind. Each such deposit pursuant to this paragraph shall be held by the Administrative Agent as collateral for the payment and performance of the
obligations of the Borrowers under this Agreement. At any time that there shall exist a Defaulting Lender, within one Business Day following the written request of the
Administrative Agent or any Issuing Bank (with a copy to the Administrative Agent) the Borrowers shall Cash Collateralize the Issuing Banks’ Fronting Exposure with respect
to such Defaulting Lender (determined after giving effect to Section 2.22(a)(iv) and any Cash Collateral provided by such Defaulting Lender) in an amount not less than the
Minimum Collateral Amount. The Administrative Agent shall have exclusive dominion and control, including the exclusive right of withdrawal, over such account. Other than
any interest earned on the investment of such deposits, which investments shall be made at the option and sole discretion of (i) for so long as an Event of Default shall be
continuing, the Administrative Agent and (ii) at any other time, the Company, in each case, in Permitted Investments and at the risk and expense of the Borrowers, such deposits
shall not bear interest. Interest or profits, if any, on such investments shall accumulate in such account. Moneys in such account shall be applied by the Administrative Agent to
reimburse each Issuing Bank for L/C Disbursements for which such Issuing Bank has not been reimbursed and, to the extent not so applied, shall be held for the satisfaction of
the reimbursement obligations of the Borrowers for the Revolving L/C Exposure at such time or, if the maturity of the Loans has been accelerated (but subject to the consent of
Revolving Facility Lenders with Revolving L/C Exposure representing greater than 50% of the total Revolving L/C Exposure), be applied to satisfy other obligations of the
Borrowers under this Agreement. If the Borrowers are required to provide an amount of cash collateral hereunder as a result of the occurrence of an Event of Default or the
existence of a Defaulting Lender, such amount (to the extent not applied as aforesaid) shall be returned to the Borrowers within three Business
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Days after all Events of Default have been cured or waived or the termination of the Defaulting Lender status, as applicable.

k) Additional Issuing Banks. From time to time, the Company may by notice to the Administrative Agent designate up to three Lenders (in addition to the three
Issuing Banks as of the Restatement Effective Date) each of which agrees (in its sole discretion) to act in such capacity and is reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative
Agent as an Issuing Bank. Each such additional Issuing Bank shall execute a counterpart of this Agreement upon the approval of the Administrative Agent (which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld) and shall thereafter be an Issuing Bank hereunder for all purposes.

1) Reporting. Unless otherwise requested by the Administrative Agent, each Issuing Bank shall (i) provide to the Administrative Agent copies of any notice
received from the Borrowers pursuant to Section 2.05(b) no later than the next Business Day after receipt thereof and (ii) report in writing to the Administrative Agent (A) on or
prior to each Business Day on which such Issuing Bank expects to issue, amend or extend any Letter of Credit, the date of such issuance, amendment or extension, and the
aggregate face amount of the Letters of Credit to be issued, amended or extended by it and outstanding after giving effect to such issuance, amendment or extension occurred
(and whether the amount thereof changed), and such Issuing Bank shall be permitted to issue, amend or extend such Letter of Credit if the Administrative Agent shall not have
advised such Issuing Bank that such issuance, amendment or extension would not be in conformity with the requirements of this Agreement, (B) on each Business Day on
which such Issuing Bank makes any L/C Disbursement, the date of such L/C Disbursement and the amount and currency of such L/C Disbursement and (C) on any other
Business Day, such other information with respect to the outstanding Letters of Credit issued by such Issuing Bank as the Administrative Agent shall reasonably request.

Section 2.06. Funding of Borrowings.

(a) Each Lender shall make each Loan to be made by it hereunder on the proposed date thereof by wire transfer of immediately available funds by 12:00 noon,
Local Time on the Business Day specified in the applicable Borrowing Request, to the account of the Administrative Agent most recently designated by it for such purpose by
notice to the Lenders. The Administrative Agent will make such Loans available to the Borrowers by promptly crediting the amounts so received, in like funds, to an account of
the Borrowers designated by the Company in the applicable Borrowing Request; provided, that ABR Revolving Loans made to finance the reimbursement of a L/C
Disbursement and reimbursements as provided in Section 2.05(e) shall be remitted by the Administrative Agent to the applicable Issuing Bank.

(b) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from a Lender prior to the proposed date of any Borrowing that such Lender will not make
available to the Administrative Agent such Lender’s share of the Borrowing, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Lender has made such share available on such date
in accordance with paragraph (a) of this Section and may, in reliance upon such assumption, make available to the Borrowers a corresponding amount. In such event, if a Lender
has not in fact made its share of the Borrowing available to the Administrative Agent, then the applicable Lender and the Borrowers severally
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agree to pay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand (without duplication) such corresponding amount with interest thereon, for each day from and including the date
such amount is made available to the Borrowers to but excluding the date of payment to the Administrative Agent, at (i) in the case of such Lender, the greater of (A) the Federal
Funds Effective Rate and (B) a rate as reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent in accordance with banking industry rules on interbank compensation or (ii) in the
case of the Borrowers, the interest rate applicable to ABR Loans at such time. If such Lender pays such amount to the Administrative Agent, then such amount shall constitute
such Lender’s Loan included in the Borrowing.

Section 2.07. Interest Elections.

(a) Each Borrowing initially shall be of the Type specified in the applicable Borrowing Request and, in the case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing, shall have an
initial Interest Period as specified in the Borrowing Request. Thereafter, the Company may elect to convert the Borrowing to a different Type or to continue the Borrowing and,
in the case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing, may elect Interest Periods therefor, all as provided in this Section. The Company may elect different options with respect to different
portions of the affected Borrowing, in which case each such portion shall be allocated ratably among the Lenders holding the Loans comprising the Borrowing, and the Loans
comprising each such portion shall be considered a separate Borrowing.

(b) To make an election pursuant to this Section, the Company shall notify the Administrative Agent of such election by telephone by the time that a Borrowing
Request would be required under Section 2.03 if the Company were requesting a Borrowing of the Type and in the applicable currency resulting from such election to be made
on the effective date of such election. Each such telephonic Interest Election Request shall be irrevocable and shall be confirmed promptly by hand delivery or electronic means
to the Administrative Agent of a written Interest Election Request in the form of Exhibit E and signed by the Company.

(c) Each telephonic and written Interest Election Request shall specify the following information in compliance with Section 2.02:
@) the Borrowing to which such Interest Election Request applies and, if different options are being elected with respect to different portions thereof, the

portions thereof to be allocated to each resulting Borrowing (in which case the information to be specified pursuant to clauses (iii) and (iv) below shall be specified for
each resulting Borrowing);

(ii) the effective date of the election made pursuant to such Interest Election Request, which shall be a Business Day;
(iii) whether the resulting Borrowing is to be an ABR Borrowing or a Eurocurrency Borrowing; and
@iv) if the resulting Borrowing is a Eurocurrency Borrowing, the Interest Period to be applicable thereto after giving effect to such election, which shall be

a period contemplated by the definition of the term “Interest Period.”
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If any such Interest Election Request requests a Eurocurrency Borrowing but does not specify an Interest Period, then the Company shall be deemed to have selected an Interest
Period of one month’s duration.

(d) Promptly following receipt of an Interest Election Request, the Administrative Agent shall advise each Lender to which such Interest Election Request relates
of the details thereof and of such Lender’s portion of each resulting Borrowing.

(e) If the Company fails to deliver a timely Interest Election Request with respect to a Eurocurrency Borrowing prior to the end of the Interest Period applicable
thereto, then, unless the Borrowing is repaid as provided herein, at the end of such Interest Period the Borrowing shall be converted to an ABR Borrowing. Notwithstanding any
contrary provision hereof, if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and the Administrative Agent, at the written request (including a request through electronic
means) of the Required Lenders, so notifies the Company, then, so long as an Event of Default is continuing (i) no outstanding Borrowing may be converted to or continued as
a Eurocurrency Borrowing and (ii) unless repaid, each Eurocurrency Borrowing shall be converted to an ABR Borrowing at the end of the Interest Period applicable thereto.

Section 2.08. Termination and Reduction of Commitments.

(a) Unless previously terminated, the Revolving Facility Commitments of each Class shall terminate on the applicable Revolving Facility Maturity Date for such
Class. Unless previously terminated, the Term A Loan Commitments shall terminate on the earliest of (i) the funding of the Term A Loans pursuant to such Term A Loan
Commitments on the Restatement Effective Date and (ii) 11:59 p.m., Local Time, on the Restatement Effective Date. All Existing Commitments shall terminate on the
Restatement Effective Date.

(b) The Company may at any time terminate, or from time to time reduce, the Commitments of any Class;provided, that (i) each reduction of the Commitments
of any Class shall be in an amount that is an integral multiple of $1,000,000 and not less than $5,000,000 (or, if less, the remaining amount of the Revolving Facility
Commitments of such Class) and (ii) the Company shall not terminate or reduce the Revolving Facility Commitments of any Class if, after giving effect to any concurrent
prepayment of the Revolving Facility Loans in accordance with Section 2.11, the Revolving Facility Credit Exposure of such Class would exceed the total Revolving Facility
Commitments of such Class.

(c) The Company shall notify the Administrative Agent of any election to terminate or reduce the Commitments of any Class under paragraph (b) of this
Section at least three Business Days prior to the effective date of such termination or reduction, specifying such election and the effective date thereof. Promptly following
receipt of any notice, the Administrative Agent shall advise the applicable Lenders of the contents thereof. Each notice delivered by the Company pursuant to this Section shall
be irrevocable; provided, that a notice of termination of the Revolving Facility Commitments delivered by the Company may state that such notice is conditioned upon the
effectiveness of other credit facilities, in which case such notice may be revoked by the Company (by notice to the Administrative Agent on or prior to the specified effective
date) if such condition is not satisfied. Any termination or reduction of the Commitments
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shall be permanent. Each reduction of the Commitments of any Class shall be made ratably among the Lenders in accordance with their respective Commitments of such Class.

(d) The Borrowers shall repay all outstanding Existing Loans and all accrued interest and fees under the Original Credit Agreement to but excluding the
Restatement Effective Date on the Restatement Effective Date.

Section 2.09. Repayment of Loans; Evidence of Debt

(a) Each Borrower hereby jointly and severally unconditionally promises to pay (i) to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Revolving Facility Lender
the then unpaid principal amount of each Revolving Facility Loan on the Revolving Facility Maturity Date applicable to such Revolving Facility Loans and (ii) to the
Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender the then unpaid principal amount of each Term Loan of such Lender as provided in Section 2.10.

(b) Each Lender shall maintain in accordance with its usual practice an account or accounts evidencing the indebtedness of the Borrowers to such Lender
resulting from each Loan made by such Lender, including the amounts of principal and interest payable and paid to such Lender from time to time hereunder.

() The Administrative Agent shall maintain accounts in which it shall record (i) the amount of each Loan made hereunder, the Facility and Type thereof and the
Interest Period (if any) applicable thereto, (ii) the amount of any principal or interest due and payable or to become due and payable from the Borrowers to each Lender
hereunder and (iii) any amount received by the Administrative Agent hereunder for the account of the Lenders and each Lender’s share thereof.

(d) The entries made in the accounts maintained pursuant to paragraph (b) or (c) of this Section shall be prima facie evidence of the existence and amounts of the
obligations recorded therein; provided, that the failure of any Lender or the Administrative Agent to maintain such accounts or any error therein shall not in any manner affect
the obligation of the Borrowers to repay the Loans in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(e) Any Lender may request that Loans made by it be evidenced by a promissory note (a Note”) in the applicable form set out inExhibit L. In such event, the
Borrowers shall prepare, execute and deliver to such Lender a promissory note payable to the order of such Lender (or, if requested by such Lender, to such Lender and its
registered assigns) and in a form approved by the Administrative Agent and reasonably acceptable to the Borrowers. Thereafter, the Loans evidenced by such promissory note
and interest thereon shall at all times (including after assignment pursuant to Section 10.04) be represented by one or more promissory notes in such form payable to the order
of the payee named therein (or, if such promissory note is a registered note, to such payee and its registered assigns).
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Date.

Section 2.10. Repayment of Term Loans and Revolving Facility Loans.
(a) Subject to the other paragraphs of this Section:

1) the Borrowers shall repay Term A Borrowings on the last day of each March, June, September and December of each year (commencing September
30, 2016) and on the Term A Loan Maturity Date or, if any such date is not a Business Day, on the next succeeding Business Day (each such date being referred to as a
“Term A Loan Installment Date”), in an aggregate principal amount of the Term A Loans equal to (A) in the case of quarterly payments due prior to the Term A Loan
Maturity Date and on or prior to the second anniversary of the Restatement Effective Date, an amount equal to 1.25% of the aggregate principal amount of Term A Loans
outstanding immediately after the Restatement Effective Date, (B) in the case of quarterly payments due prior to the Term A Loan Maturity Date but after the second
anniversary of the Restatement Effective Date, an amount equal to 2.50% of the aggregate principal amount of Term A Loans outstanding immediately after the
Restatement Effective Date, and (C) in the case of such payment due on the Term A Loan Maturity Date, an amount equal to the then unpaid principal amount of the
Term A Loans outstanding;

(ii) in the event that any Incremental Term Loans are made on an Increased Amount Date, the Borrowers shall repay such Incremental Term Loans on the
dates and in the amounts set forth in the Incremental Assumption Agreement (each such date being referred to as an “Incremental Term Loan Installment Date”);

(iii) in the event that any Refinancing Term Loans are made pursuant to Section 2.21(j), the applicable Borrower (or the relevant obligor) shall repay such
Refinancing Term Loans on the dates and in the amounts set forth in the related Incremental Assumption Agreement (each such date being referred to as an “Other Term

Loan Installment Date”); and

@iv) to the extent not previously paid, outstanding Term Loans shall be due and payable on the applicable Term Facility Maturity Date.

(b) To the extent not previously paid, outstanding Revolving Facility Loans of each Class shall be due and payable on the applicable Revolving Facility Maturity
(c) Prepayment of the Loans from:
@) any optional prepayments of the Term Loans pursuant to Section 2.11(a) shall be applied to the remaining installments of the Term Loans under the

applicable Class or Classes as the Company may direct; and
(ii) all Net Proceeds pursuant to Section 2.11(b) shall be allocated among the Term Facilities, with the application thereof (A) to reduce in direct order

amounts due on the next twelve succeeding Term Loan Installment Dates under the applicable Term Facilities as provided in paragraph (d) below, and (B) thereafter, to
reduce on a pro rata basis (based on the amount of such amortization payments) the remaining scheduled amortization
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payments under the applicable Term Facilities; provided, that any Lender, at its option, may elect to decline any such prepayment (such declined amounts, the Declined
Proceeds”) of any Term Loan held by it if it shall give written notice to the Administrative Agent thereof by 11:00 A.M. Local Time at least three Business Days prior to
the date of such prepayment (any such Lender, a “Declining Lender”). Any Declined Proceeds shall be offered to the Lenders not so declining such repayment on a pro
rata basis; provided, that any such non-Declining Lender, at its option, may elect to decline any such prepayment with Declined Proceeds at the time and in the manner
specified by the Administrative Agent. To the extent such non-declining Lenders elect to decline their pro rata share of such Declined Proceeds, any Declined Proceeds

remaining thereafter on the date of any such prepayment shall instead be retained by the Borrowers for application for any purpose not prohibited by this Agreement.

(d) Any mandatory prepayment of Term Loans pursuant to Section 2.11(b) shall be applied so that the aggregate amount of such prepayment is allocated among
the Term A Loans, the Other Incremental Term Loans and the Refinancing Term Loans, if any, pro rata based on the aggregate principal amount of outstanding Term A Loans,
Other Incremental Term Loans and Refinancing Term Loans, if any (unless, with respect to Other Incremental Term Loans or Refinancing Term Loans or the Incremental
Assumption Agreement relating thereto does not so require). Prior to any repayment of any Loan under any Facility hereunder, the Company shall select the Borrowing or
Borrowings under the applicable Facility to be repaid and shall notify the Administrative Agent by telephone (confirmed by electronic means) of such selection not later than
2:00 p.m., Local Time, (i) in the case of an ABR Borrowing, one Business Day before the scheduled date of such repayment and (ii) in the case of a Eurocurrency Borrowing,
three Business Days before the scheduled date of such repayment, which notice shall be irrevocable except to the extent conditioned on a refinancing or other event. Each
repayment of a Borrowing (x) in the case of the Revolving Facility of any Class, shall be applied to the Revolving Facility Loans included in the repaid Borrowing such that
each Revolving Facility Lender receives its ratable share of such repayment (based upon the respective Revolving Facility Credit Exposure of the Revolving Facility Lenders of
such Class at the time of such repayment) and (y) in all other cases, shall be applied ratably to the Loans included in the repaid Borrowing. Repayments of Loans (other than
repayments of ABR Revolving Facility Borrowings that are not made in connection with the termination or permanent reduction of the applicable Revolving Facility
Commitment) shall be accompanied by accrued interest on the amount repaid.

Section 2.11. Prepayment of Loans.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in any Incremental Assumption Agreement with respect to Incremental Term Loans, the Borrowers shall have the right at any
time and from time to time to prepay any Loan in whole or in part, without premium or penalty (but subject to Section 2.16), in an aggregate principal amount that is an integral
multiple of the Borrowing Multiple and not less than the Borrowing Minimum or, if less, the amount outstanding, subject to prior notice in accordance with Section 2.10(d).

(b) The Borrowers shall apply all Net Proceeds promptly upon receipt thereof to prepay Term Loans in accordance with paragraphs (c) and (d) of Section 2.10.
Notwithstanding the
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foregoing, the Borrowers may use a portion of such Net Proceeds pursuant to clause(a) of the definition thereof to prepay or repurchase Pari Passu Senior Secured Notes to the
extent any applicable Senior Secured Notes Indenture requires the Borrowers to prepay or make an offer to purchase such Pari Passu Senior Secured Notes with the proceeds of
such Asset Sale, in each case in an amount not to exceed the product of (x) the amount of such Net Proceeds multiplied by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is the
outstanding principal amount of the Pari Passu Senior Secured Notes and with respect to which such a requirement to prepay or make an offer to purchase exists and the
denominator of which is the sum of the outstanding principal amount of such Pari Passu Senior Secured Notes and the outstanding principal amount of Term Loans.

() [Reserved].

(d) In the event and on such occasion that the total Revolving Facility Credit Exposure of any Class exceeds the total Revolving Facility Commitments of such
Class, the Borrowers shall prepay Revolving Facility Borrowings of such Class (or, if no such Borrowings are outstanding, deposit cash collateral in an account with the
Administrative Agent pursuant to Section 2.05(j)) in an aggregate amount equal to such excess.

(e) In the event and on such occasion as the Revolving L/C Exposure exceeds the Letter of Credit Sublimit, the Borrowers shall deposit cash collateral in an
account with the Administrative Agent pursuant to Section 2.05(j) in an amount equal to such excess.

Section 2.12. Fees.

(a) The Borrowers jointly and severally agree to pay to each Lender (other than any Defaulting Lender), through the Administrative Agent, on the date that is 10
Business Days after the last day of March, June, September and December in each year (commencing June 2013), and three Business Days after the date on which the
Revolving Facility Commitments of all the Lenders shall be terminated as provided herein, a commitment fee (a “Commitment Fee”) on the daily amount of the applicable
Available Unused Commitment of such Lender during the preceding quarter (or other period commencing with the Closing Date or ending with the date on which the last of the
Commitments of such Lender shall be terminated) at a rate equal to the Applicable Commitment Fee. All Commitment Fees shall be computed on the basis of the actual number
of days elapsed in a year of 360 days. The Commitment Fee due to each Lender shall commence to accrue on the Closing Date and shall cease to accrue on the date on which
the last of the Commitments of such Lender shall be terminated as provided herein.

(b) The Borrowers jointly and severally from time to time agree to pay (i) to each Revolving Facility Lender of each Class (other than 